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Crown Appraisal Group

Corporate Office
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Columbus, OH 43085
tel 614.431.3332
fax 614.431.3376
www.crownappraisal.com

April 10,2017

Greystone Servicing Corporation, Inc.
Attn: Debi Martin

419 Belle Air Lane

Warrenton, VA 20186

Re: Chester Apartments
400 Wynne Avenue
Chester, Georgia

Dear Debi Martin:

At your request, Andy Moye has completed an inspection and analysis of the referenced property for
the purpose of developing and reporting an opinion of value for the property. The specific real
property interest, real estate, type of report, and type of value are detailed within the body of the
accompanying report. The accompanying report has been prepared in conformance with the
requirements established by the Appraisal Institute. The appraisal is in conformance with USPAP
requirements. The liability of Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. and its employees is limited to the fee
collected for the preparation of the appraisal report. There is no accountability or liability to any
third party. Based on discussions with market participants, the marketing period and exposure
period for the property is estimated at 12 months. The following summarizes the interest being
appraised, types of values, effective dates of values, and value opinions.

Competitive Rent Comparable Unit Conclusions (CRCU)
1 Bed, 1 Bath 2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH
As-is CRCU Value 1 rents 480 560
Prospective (Renovated) CRCU Value 4 rents 550 630
Value Opinions Date of Value Value
Value 1 - as conventional or unrestricted January 23, 2017 $1,160,000
Value 2-RD - subject to restricted rents January 23, 2017 $570,000
Value 3 - prospective, subject to restricted rents January 23, 2019 $995,000
Value 4 - prospective, as conventional or unrestricted January 23, 2019 $1,470,000
Value 5 - Interest Credit Subsidy Value from assuming the existing 515 Loan) December 22, 2017 $255,000
Value 5 - Interest Credit Subsidy Value (New 538 Loan) January 23, 2019 $80,000
Value 6 - LIHTC Value January 23,2019 $685,799
Value 6 - State Tax Credit Value January 23,2019 $239,232
Value 7 - Insurable Value January 23,2019 $1,446,132
Value 8 - Land Value January 23, 2017 $26,400
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The opinion of value contained in the attached appraisal report is based upon the following
extraordinary assumptions:

e The units and other improvements at the property that were viewed during the inspection (defined within the body of
the report) are representative of all the units and other improvements at the property.

e The prospective value conclusions incorporate the extraordinary assumptions that the improvements are renovated as
described, that the renovation is complete as of the prospective valuation date, and that the property is operating at a
stabilized level as of the prospective valuation date.

The opinion of value contained in the attached appraisal report is based upon the following
hypothetical condition:

e Hypothetical conditions are stated within the Parameters of Assignment section of the report.

The opinion of value contained in the attached appraisal report is based upon the following
assumptions and limiting conditions:

e The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable. No warranty is given for its accuracy, though.

e No responsibility is assumed for the legal description or for matters including legal or title considerations.
Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated.

e The property is appraised free and clear of any or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise stated in the
report.

e [t is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local environmental
regulations, laws, and license requirements unless otherwise stated in the report.

e The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements applies only under
the stated program of utilization. The separate valuations for land and improvements must not be used in
conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

e The value opinions, and the costs used, are as of the date of the value opinion.

e All engineering is assumed to be correct. The plot plans and other illustrative material in this report are
included only to assist the reader in visualizing the property.

e The proposed improvements, if any, on or off-site, as well as any repairs required, are considered, for purposes
of the appraisal, to be completed in a good and workmanlike manner according to information submitted
and/or considered by the appraiser.

e Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed.

e Itis assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements is within the boundaries or property lines of the
property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in the report.

e The appraiser is not required to give further consultation, testimony, or be in attendance in court with reference
to the property in question unless arrangements have been previously made.
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e [t is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or structures that make
it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for arranging for engineering or
environmental studies that may be required to discover them.

e Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous material, which may or may not be present on
or in the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such
materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect such substances. The
presence of such substances may affect the value of the property. The value opinion is predicated on the
assumption that there is no such material on or in the property that would cause a loss in value. No
responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any expertise or engineering knowledge required to
discover them. The client is urged to retain an expert in this field, if desired.

e All mechanical components are assumed to be in good, operable condition unless otherwise noted.

e Our opinion of value does not consider the effect (if any) of possible noncompliance with the requirements of
the ADA.

e Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. and its employees accept no responsibility for changes in market conditions
or the inability of the client, intended user, or any other party to achieve desired outcomes.

e Projections or estimates of desired outcomes by the client, intended user, or any other party may be
affected by future events. The client, intended user, or any other party using this report acknowledges and
accepts that Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. and its employees have no liability arising from these events.

e Unless specifically set forth, nothing contained herein shall be construed to represent any direct or indirect
recommendation of Crown Appraisal Group, Inc., its officers or employees to purchase, sell, or retain the
property at the value(s) stated.

e Unless specifically set forth, nothing contained herein shall be construed to represent any direct or indirect
recommendation of Crown Appraisal Group, Inc., its officers or employees to provide financing (mortgage,
equity, or other) for the property at the value(s) stated.

e Greystone Servicing Corporation, Inc., or its representative(s), agrees to indemnify and hold Crown Appraisal
Group, Inc., its officers and employees, harmless from and against any loss, damages, claims, and expenses
(including costs and reasonable attorney fees) sustained as a result of negligence or intentional acts or
omissions by Greystone Servicing Corporation, Inc., or its representative(s) arising from or in any way
connected with the use of or purported reliance upon, the appraisal report or any part of the appraisal report.

e The contents of the appraisal report, and all attachments and information that will be contained within the
report, is proprietary and confidential. Greystone Servicing Corporation, Inc., or its representative(s) will
not release or provide the report, in any form, in whole or in part, to any third party, including any
borrower, potential borrower, buyer or potential buyer, without the signing appraiser’s express written
authorization.

ACCEPTANCE OF, AND/OR USE OF, THIS APPRAISAL REPORT CONSTITUTES
ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABOVE CONDITIONS.
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The attached appraisal report contains the results of the investigation and opinion of value. We
appreciate this opportunity to serve you and your firm. Should you or anyone authorized to use this
report have any questions, contact us at your convenience.

Sincerely,
CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Andrew J. Moye, MAL, AI-GRS
Principal
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CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA Executive Summary Page 1

Executive Summary

Subject Real Estate Identification: The subject is known as Chester Apartments and has an
address of 400 Wynne Avenue in Chester, Georgia. The complex operates as a Class C, subsidized
income, non-age restricted property. Chester Apartments is located on the south side of Wynne
Avenue less than " mile northeast of the center of town. The property is in Dodge County.
Chester is in central Georgia.

The subject improvements include a 24-unit apartment complex (housed in 5 one to two-story
buildings). The property includes one and two bedroom units. The improvements were built in
1985. The property is in average physical and functional condition. The 24 units total 19,008 sf.
The property is currently 87.5% occupied. The subject site is +4.14 acres.

Existing Use of Real Estate: Apartment Complex
Highest and Best Use: Intensive Residential (current use)
Parcel Number/Legal Description: 091A 009 / CHESTER APTS
Zoning: No Zoning
USPAP Report Option: Appraisal report
Pertinent dates:
Date of valuation: see chart
Prospective date of valuation: see chart
Date of inspection: January 23, 2017
Date of report: April 10, 2017
Values, interests appraised: see next page
Conclusions:
Competitive Rent Comparable Unit Conclusions (CRCU)
1 Bed, 1 Bath 2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH
As-is CRCU Value 1 rents 480 560
Prospective (Renovated) CRCU Value 4 rents 550 630
Value Opinions Date of Value Value
Value 1 - as conventional or unrestricted January 23,2017 $1,160,000
Value 2-RD - subject to restricted rents January 23, 2017 $570,000
Value 3 - prospective, subject to restricted rents January 23,2019 $995,000
Value 4 - prospective, as conventional or unrestricted January 23,2019 $1,470,000
Value 5 - Interest Credit Subsidy Value from assuming the existing 515 Loan) December 22, 2017 $255,000
Value 5 - Interest Credit Subsidy Value (New 538 Loan) January 23,2019 $80,000
Value 6 - LIHTC Value January 23,2019 $685,799
Value 6 - State Tax Credit Value January 23,2019 $239,232
Value 7 - Insurable Value January 23, 2019 $1,446,132
Value 8 - Land Value January 23, 2017 $26,400
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CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA Parameters of Assignment Page 2

Parameters of Assignment

Purpose, Intended Use

The purpose of this assignment is to arrive at an opinion of the market value of the property
known as Chester Apartments. A number of value opinions of a number of interests are
provided. The value opinions, applicable notes (including discussion about the use of a
hypothetical condition), and intended use, are detailed below:

Value 1

Market Value within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(ii), Premised Upon A Hypothetical
Condition As-If Unsubsidized Conventional Housing in compliance with 7 CFR Part
3560.656(c)(1)(i).

Note - using the hypothetical condition ““as unsubsidized conventional housing”
according to 7 CFR Part 3560.656(c)(1)(i) means that when the appraiser develops their
highest and best use analysis they will not recognize any Rural Development restrictions
or subsidies and must only consider the property as continued use as housing.

The intended use of this appraised value is to determine the value of the property that
qualifies for an Incentive Offer within 7 CFR Part 3560.656 for sale/purchase and to
determine the amount and availability of any equity.

For ease of communication throughout the report, every effort is made to identify this
value either by the complete definition or “Value 1, as conventional or unrestricted”.

Comment: market-based rent, market-based vacancy, market-based operating expenses,
market-based overall rate used.

Value 2-RD

Market Value, within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(ii).

Note — this value opinion must consider all existing restrictions and prohibitions
including Restrictive-Use Provisions (RUPS).

The intended use of this appraised value is to determine the value of the property for
sale/purchase and to determine the amount and availability of any equity.

For ease of communication throughout the report, every effort is made to identify this
value either by the complete definition or “Market Value, Subject to Restricted Rents
within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(1)”.

Comment: basic rent, historic vacancy, historic expenses, market-based overall rate
(with recognition of “safeness” of RA units) used.

Value 3

Prospective Market Value, Subject To Restricted Rents within 7 CFR Part
3560.752(b)(1)(1).

Note — this value opinion must consider any rent limits, rent subsidies, expense
abatements, and restrict-use conditions that will affect the property. All intangible assets
must be evaluated individually and separately from real estate.

The intended use of this appraised value for a new or subsequent loan is to assist the
underwriter with calculating the security value for the basis of a loan or loan guarantee.

For ease of communication throughout the report, every effort is made to identify this
value either by the complete definition or “Value 3, prospective, subject to restricted
rents”.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP



CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA Parameters of Assignment Page 3

Comment: lesser of LIHTC or market-based rent, market-based vacancy, market-based
operating expenses, market-based overall rate (with recognition of “safeness” of RA)
units used.

Value 4

The intended use of the appraised value “Market Value within 7 CFR Part
3560.752(b)(1)(ii)), Premised Upon a Hypothetical Condition As-If Unsubsidized
Conventional Housing in compliance with 7 CFR Part 3560.656(c)(1)(i).” is to determine
the value of the property that qualifies for an Incentive Offer within 7 CFR Part 3560.656
for sale/purchase and to determine the amount and availability of any equity.

Note — this value opinion is based upon a highest and best use analysis as-if not
encumbered by USDA program provisions.

The intended use of this appraised value is for reasonable analysis and comparison as to
how the USDA restrictions affect the property. It should not be used as the basis of a
loan or loan guarantee.

For ease of communication throughout the report, every effort is made to identify this
value either by the complete definition or “Value 4, prospective, as conventional or
unrestricted”.

Comment: market-based rent, market-based vacancy, market-based operating expenses,
market-based overall rate used.

Value 5

Value of the interest credit subsidy from assumed 515 loan and new 538 loan.

Value 6

Market Value of LIHTC (tax credits).

Value 7

Insurable Value.

Value 8

Market Value of Underlying Land

Definitions

Market Value, incorporated in Value Opinions 1, 2, 5, 6, 8

The 6th edition of The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal includes several definitions for
market value. The following definition from the dictionary is used by the federal agencies that
regulate insured financial institutions in the United States.

“Market value: the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open
market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently
and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this
definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller
to buyer under conditions whereby:

Buyer and seller are typically motivated;

Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their best interests;

A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable
thereto; and

o The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative
financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Comments from HB-1-3560

Most appraisers and users of Agency Multi-Family Housing appraisals understand the definition
of market value to mean the value as a conventional or unrestricted or market property.
However, to avoid confusion when requesting or reporting this value type, the term “as
conventional or unrestricted” should be added to the term market value (i.e. “market value, as
conventional or unrestricted”).

Market Value, subject to restricted rents — incorporated in Value Opinions 2 (possible), 3

A definition of market value, subject to restricted rents, as the term is used by RHS, derived from
the definition of market value above, is stated as follows. Market value, subject to restricted
rents: the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market
under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and
knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this
definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller
to buyer under conditions whereby:

Buyer and seller are typically motivated;

Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their best interests;

A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable
thereto; and

e The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative
financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.

Comments from HB-1-3560

It considers any rent limits, rent subsidies, expense abatements, or restrictive-use conditions
imposed by any government or non-government financing sources but does not consider any
favorable financing involved in the development of the property.

Market value, subject to restricted rents, refers only to the value of the subject real estate, as
restricted, and excludes the value of any favorable financing. The market value, subject to
restricted rents, is based on a pro forma that projects income, vacancy, operating expenses, and
reserves for the property under a restricted (subsidized) scenario. This restricted pro forma
includes the scheduled restricted rents, a vacancy and collection loss factor that reflects any
rental assistance (RA) or Section 8, and operating expenses and reserves projected for the subject
as a subsidized property. Subsidized apartments typically experience higher management,
auditing, and bookkeeping expenses, relative to similar conventional apartments, but often have
lower real estate tax expenses.

Real Property Interest Valued, Value Opinions 1, 2 (possible), 4, 8
fee simple estate, subject to short term leases.

The 6th edition of the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal defines fee simple estate as “absolute
ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, subject only to the limitations imposed
by the governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain, police power, and escheat.”
Recognition is made that there are leases with tenants that are short term (no more than one year)
in nature for the units in the apartment building improvements.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Real Property Interest Valued, Value Opinions 2 (possible), 3
fee simple estate, as restricted, subject to short-term leases.

The 6th edition of the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal defines fee simple estate as “absolute
ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, subject only to the limitations imposed
by the governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain, police power, and escheat.”

Prospective Value, Value Opinions 3, 4, 7

The term prospective value is defined by the 6th edition of The Dictionary of Real Estate
Appraisal as follows. “Prospective value: a forecast of the value expected at a specified future
date. A prospective value opinion is most frequently sought in connection with real estate
projects that are proposed, under construction, or under conversion to a new use, or those that
have not achieved sellout or a stabilized level of long-term occupancy at the time the appraisal
report is written.”

Comments from HB-1-3560

As used in Agency regulations and instructions, the term “as-improved value” refers to the value
of real property after completion of proposed improvements. The Agency’s intended meaning of
“as-improved value” is the same as the definition of prospective value. However, use of the term
“as-improved value” can cause confusion for two reasons, as follows. 1) The term “as
improved”, as used in a Highest and Best Use analysis, refers to the subject real estate as it has
already been improved at the time of the appraisal, not as it is proposed to be improved.
Therefore, “as-improved value” could be interpreted to refer to the value of the subject property
as it has already been improved at the time of the appraisal. 2) There is a common misconception
with the use of the term “as-improved value” that this is a value based on a hypothetical
condition; that is, the value of the property as if it were improved, as proposed, as of the date of
inspection. Since this scenario is impossible, an “as-improved value”, as of appraisal date
(inspection date), is not useful. The term prospective value is better understood than the terms
as-improved value” and “as-complete value” by appraisers and users of appraisals and has
replaced these terms in appraisal literature and common usage. Therefore, the term prospective
value should be used when requesting or reporting a forecasted value, and the associated date of
value should be the projected date of completion of construction.

“As-1s” Value

The 6th edition of the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal defines value as is as follows. “Value
as is: the value of specific ownership rights to an identified parcel of real estate as of the
effective date of the appraisal; relates to what physically exists and is legally permissible and
excludes all assumptions concerning hypothetical market conditions or possible rezoning.”

Comments from HB-1-3560

HB-1-3560, Attachment 7-A, Page 5 of 8 notes that, “...the term ‘As-Is’ should not be used with
the term market value unless the property is a conventional or market property at the time of the
appraisal. The term ‘As-Is’ should precede the term market value, subject to restricted rents,
when the market value, subject to restricted rents, of the project at the time of the appraisal is
required.” In this assignment, the appraisers have tried to not use of the term “as-is”.

Insurable Value, Value 7
A definition of insurable value acceptable for use in Agency Multi-Family Housing appraisals is
as follows: Insurable value: the value of the destructible portions of a property which determines

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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the amount of insurance that may, or should, be carried to indemnify the insured in the event of
loss. The estimate is based on replacement cost new of the physical improvements that are
subject to loss from hazards, plus allowances for debris removal or demolition. It should reflect
only direct (hard) construction costs, such as construction labor and materials, repair design,
engineering, permit fees, and contractor's profit, contingency, and overhead. It should not
include indirect (soft) costs, such as administrative costs, professional fees, and financing costs.

The term “insurable cost” is sometimes used instead of the term insurable value because it is
based strictly on a cost estimate, not a value concluded in an appraisal. However, the term
insurable value is more commonly used. Attachment 7-I, Insurable Value Calculation, is a
worksheet that should be used as a guide by State Appraisers and fee appraisers contracted by
the Agency in calculating insurable value.

Extraordinary Assumption:

An assumption, directly related to a specific assignment, which, if found to be false, could alter the appraiser’s opinions or
conclusion.

Source: Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP)

For those reports that incorporate an extraordinary assumption, USPAP requires that the
appraiser provide notice to the user of the report that the use of the extraordinary assumption
might affect the assignment results. The appraiser(s) is not required to report on the impact of
the extraordinary assumption on assignment results. The following extraordinary assumptions
are incorporated:

e The units and other improvements at the property that were viewed during the inspection (defined within the body of
the report) are representative of all the units and other improvements at the property.

e The prospective value conclusions incorporate the extraordinary assumptions that the improvements are renovated as
described, that the renovation is complete as of the prospective valuation date, and that the property is operating at a
stabilized level as of the prospective valuation date.

Hvpothetical Condition:

That which is contrary to what exists but is supposed for the purpose of analysis.

Source: Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP)

For those reports that incorporate a hypothetical condition, USPAP requires that the appraiser
provide notice to the user of the report that the use of the hypothetical condition might affect the
assignment results. The appraiser(s) is not required to report on the impact of the hypothetical
condition on assignment results. Applicable hypothetical conditions have been identified earlier in
this section.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Intended Use, User

The intended use for most of the values developed and reported have been shown in the prior
section. For those values that do not have an intended use, the use is to assist the client in their
understanding and analysis of the property. Unless otherwise identified within this report, the
intended use of the report has not been more fully described to the appraiser(s). The client, or
intended user, for whom the report is prepared is identified in the letter of transmittal, Debi
Martin of Greystone Servicing Corporation, Inc. Other known intended users are representatives
from the USDA, Georgia Department of Community Affairs, and other lenders. Unless
otherwise identified within this report, no other intended users have been identified to the
appraiser(s).

The Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) have a number of rules,
comments, advisory opinions, and frequently asked questions relating to control or use of
reports. The signatory(ies) of this report is/are bound by USPAP. Therefore, as noted in the
letter of transmittal, no party other than the intended user may use this report without receiving
written consent from the signing appraiser(s). Further, no part of the report shall be published or
made available to the general public, nor shall any part of the report be published or made
available for public or private offering memorandum or prospectus, without the written consent
of the signing appraiser(s) of this report.

Scope

The scope of services was focused on reviewing issues considered relevant and appropriate by
the appraisers based on their knowledge of the subject's real estate market. The appraisers
believe that the scope was sufficient to arrive at an accurate value opinion. A summary of the
scope of work is presented below. Additional explanatory comments regarding the scope
undertaken can be found throughout the report. The scope included the following:

e  Review and analysis of the subject market area, economic and demographic issues.

e  Review of existing and planned comparable and/or competitive properties located within the subject area.

e  Analysis of economic, demographic and development factors within the subject market area.

e  Physical inspection of the real estate; specifically, observation of the above ground attributes of the site was made,
observation of representative exterior facades of building(s) on site was made, observation of representative property
amenities on site was made, and interior viewing of a sufficient number of representative living units within the
building(s) was made in a manner considered sufficient to comprehend and analyze the physical and functional
adequacy and appropriateness of the real estate in light of market conditions as of the date of valuation.

e  Evaluation of the highest and best use of the property.

e  Consideration of all applicable and appropriate valuation approaches.

e  Reconciliation of the above opinions to a point value opinion.

Note that:

e  Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. employees are not engineers and are not competent to judge matters of an engineering
nature.

e  Inspection of 100% of the units or other improvements at the real estate was not made.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Pertinent Dates

The various dates of valuation are noted in the charts on the first page of the letter of transmittal
and the Executive Summary Page. The most recent inspection of the real estate was on January
23, 2017. It is noted that the term inspection is not intended to convey a complete, exhaustive
examination of the real estate. Such an inspection is best suited for an engineer, architect, or
building inspector formally educated and trained in such matters. Rather, the term denotes that
the individual viewing the real estate was at the property on the date and observed the general
condition and quality of the real estate at that time. The date of report--the date the report was
written—is April 10, 2017.

Events subsequent to these dates may have an impact on the opinions developed through the
course of the assignment, and on the opinions contained within this report. All such subsequent
events are beyond the control of the appraiser(s), and any consequences thereof are beyond the
scope of this assignment.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Comments Regarding Appraisal

A number of comments regarding the subject and appraisal assignment are discussed below:

. Property. The subject is known as Chester Apartments and has an address of 400 Wynne Avenue in Chester,
Georgia. The property is a 24-unit apartment complex. The property includes one and two bedroom units.
The complex operates as a Class C, restricted income, non-age restricted property. The improvements were
built in 1985. Overall, the property is in average physical and functional condition.

The unit size is based on the best information provided. Crown was given floor plans, square foot
summary pages, and building plans. The information was generally consistent, but not identical.

Tenancy at the subject property is restricted to households with incomes of less than the area median
household income. The units at the subject have long maintained a high level of occupancy. Demand for
subsidized rental units is high locally.

Historical operating information for the subject was available for 2013, 2014, and 2015. In addition, the budget
for 2016 and 2017 were also provided. In general the information provided indicated that the property is being
run in an efficient manner. Historical information will be used when developing expenses and for valuation
purposes, while market data will be used as support.

. Near Term. The property is part of a portfolio of apartment properties in Georgia that are to transfer
ownership in the near term. There is a letter of intent on the subject property, proposing an option to purchase.
The letter of intent was requested but not provided. The transfer is assumed to be between related parties and
not one that is considered to be arms-length. The purchase price amount given to the appraisers is $702,994.
As the transfer is not arms-length no credence is given to this purchase price when determining the said values
of the subject property. Subsequent to the sale, ownership plans to renovate the subject with funding from a
combination of mortgage monies, sale proceeds of Section 42 Low Income Housing Tax Credits, and
equity. Following the acquisition the existing Section 515 loan will remain at the property. (The loan is
expected to be restated under new rates and terms.) Renovations will be extensive and will include interior
unit renovation as well as exterior unit renovation. Among the items that will be replaced and/or renovated
(depending upon the condition of the individual components) are air conditioning units, windows, roofs,
plumbing and electric, parking areas, and kitchens and bathrooms. Microwaves and dishwashers will be
added to each unit. In addition, a pavilion and playground will be added to the complex. Furthermore, all
Section 504 accessibility issues will be addressed and corrected as appropriate.

. Property Location. The property is on the south side of Wynne Avenue less than "4 mile northeast of the
center of town. The property is in Dodge County. Chester is in central Georgia. Chester is a relatively small
Georgia town. There are few truly comparable properties in the area.

. Value Opinions Developed and Reported. There are a number of value opinions developed and reported in
the appraisal report. In large part, this is due to the number of intended users — who have similar, but not
identical — needs. The values that are not required by a specific intended user should be ignored.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Apartment Housing

There is a continual change in the definition and implications of various apartment types. A
number of the more prevalent apartment classifications include luxury, Class A, Class B,
conventional, LIHTC, HUD, and affordable. With respect to the senior market, there are
classifications such as independent or assisted. Some terms have specific definitions, while some
can be used interchangeably (upscale or luxury, etc.). In some cases, the terms are meant to
suggest a specific resident profile or income level (LIHTC or affordable are examples). To
minimize confusion, the following definitions and comments are presented:

Luxury, Class A, Class B, Class C - The type of property is designated by the year of construction
and the amenities (unit and project). A luxury complex will
have more amenities than a Class A property, while a Class A
property has more amenities than Class B. A Class C property
typically possesses few amenities. An upscale property could be
either a luxury or a Class A property. A Class B property could
be new. A Class B property does not possess all the amenities
of'a Class A or luxury property.

Market rate, LIHTC, HUD - Refers to the rent limits, or rent payment structure. A market
rate property has no rent constraints (other than the market)
while a LIHTC (Low-Income Housing Tax Credit) property is
(or could be) constrained by income levels as well as the market.
A market rate property is also known as a conventional property.
Low-income, subsidized, or affordable (such as HUD Section 8
and/or Section 236) are designations used to denote subsidy
programs other than the LIHTC program, and refer to the entity
(or entities) that make the rent payment to the property owner.

Independent, assisted - Refers to the level of service offered, particularly with respect to
the senior housing/care market. An independent complex has
few, if any, services (such as meals, housekeeping). An assisted
living facility offers more ADL (Activities of Daily Living)
services. This classification also has implications as to the
typical design of apartment units within a complex — an
independent complex generally has apartments with full kitchens
and exterior entries, while the units at an assisted living complex
typically have a small kitchenette, many common areas, and
interior enclosed hallways.

Elderly Only (Age Restricted) - Refers to the minimum age of at least one of the residents of a
unit. Depending upon the specific nature of a given program,
the typical minimum age limit is within the 55 to 65 range.

Based on the above, the complex operates as a Class C, restricted income, non-age restricted
property.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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City Overview

Chester is a town in Dodge County, Georgia. Dodge County is located in south central Georgia.
The subject is located about 120 miles southeast of Atlanta, Georgia (the state capital of
Georgia), 100 miles southwest of Augusta, Georgia, 165 miles northwest of Jacksonville,
Florida, 280 miles northeast of Pensacola, Florida, and 185 miles east of Montgomery, Alabama.
The maps below show the subject’s location within the state of Georgia, Dodge County, and the
town of Chester. An aerial of the subject’s location relative to downtown Chester follows the

maps.

Dodge County
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Physical Boundaries

The Chester town limits are a circle that is about 1 mile in diameter. Chester, then, is roughly
bordered by Delaware Avenue to the north, Tower Street to the east, Philips Street and Rogers
Avenue to the south, and Prison Drive to the west.
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Road Infrastructure

There are no interstate highways in the immediate subject area. I-16 is about 10 miles north of
Chester. Two Georgia state routes intersect in downtown Chester: SR 126 and SR 257. SR 126
runs northwest-to-southeast through portions of Bleckley, Dodge, Laurens, and Wheeler
counties. SR 126 begins at an intersection with SR 26 (East Dykes Street) in Cochran, in
Bleckley County. It enters Dodge County and has a brief concurrency with SR 257 in Chester.
The road continues southeast to its terminus at an intersection with SR 19 north of Lumber City.

SR 257 is a southwest—to—northeast state highway. Its routing is located within portions of
Crisp, Dooly, Wilcox, Pulaski, Bleckley, Dodge, and Laurens counties. SR 257 begins at an
interchange with I-75 in Cordele in Crisp County. SR 257 enters Chester from the southwest and
exits to the northeast. It has a short concurrency with SR 126 in Chester. SR 257 exits Chester
to the northeast and heads to it terminus at an intersection with US 319/US 441/SR 31 in Dublin,
Georgia.

Population

The Chester population according to the 2000 census was 1,344. In 2010, the population was
1,596 (an increase of 1.7% compounded annual growth or CAG). The 2016 population
estimation is 1,536 (population decrease of 0.6% CAG from 2010). The population is expected
to decrease by 0.5% CAG in 2021 to 1,496.

Growth

Dodge County was created on October 26, 1870. The county was named for William E. Dodge,
a New York U.S. Representative, businessman, abolitionist, and “carpetbagger” who purchased
large tracts of timberland in the area after the Civil War. Parts of Pulaski, Montgomery, and
Telfair counties were used to create Dodge County. In 1869, the Macon and Brunswick railroad,
(now the Southern) was built. Towns began to spring up along the line. As this immediate
section was so far removed from the county seat, Hawkinsville, it was deemed expedient to
create a new county and place the county seat at this point. Mr. Eastman donated the land for the
new town and county seat, Eastman, and also donated the land for the court house. Among the
first industries were the saw mill, shingle mill, and turpentine still. The Seaboard Airline
Railroad was built through Dodge County in 1888. The soil in Dodge County is one of the
richest in the state, lying between the hills of North Georgia and the flat lands of South Georgia.
Agriculture also has a major economic impact in Dodge County.

The Heart of Georgia Regional Airport is located three miles east of Eastman off of State Route
46. Elevation is 304' and runway 02/20 is 6,506'x100'and has a precision instrument landing
system. The airport is owned by the Heart of Georgia Regional Airport Authority and is home to
the Middle Georgia State College Aviation campus. Middle Georgia State College operates the
Federal Aviation Administration's #1 ranked student control tower in the United States. Other
businesses at the airport include aircraft manufacturing, aircraft metal finishing, and general
metal fabrication. The airport's fixed-base operator is located in the terminal building midfield.
There is no known planned future development. According to the demographics of the area, the
population is expected to decrease and the viability of the area is stable.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Land Uses and Development

Chester is a small rural town with little commercial development. Main Street is the commercial
area. There are several closed businesses along Main Street. The subject is just east of Main
Street. Uses on Main Street include The Church of God, Warren Cabinet Company, Pit Stop
Cafg¢, Colony Bank, Chester Food Mart and Deli, Rogers Automotive Gas Station, Chester Fire
Department, car wash, post office, and Quick Stop c-store. Single-family residential are behind
the commercial uses.

Immediate (Adjacent) Land Uses

North: Uses to the north are vacant land and single-family residential.

East, South, and West: Vacant land is to the east, south, and west.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Market Area Demographic Profile

The chart below shows demographic data for the

subject market for a number of identified areas.

The map depicts the areas covered. = _

@
Chester Apartments
Demographic Profile: 1, 3 and 5-mile Radii
Chester Radius from subject Dodge
City CAG 1 Mile CAG 3 Mile CAG 5Mile CAG County CAG
Population
2000 1,344 1,374 1,812 2,822 19,171
2010 1,596 1.7% 1,632 1.7% 2,142 1.7% 3,339 1.7% 21,796 1.3%
2016 est. 1,536 -0.6% 1,570  -0.6% 2,072 -0.6% 3,267 -0.4% 20,674  -0.9%
2021 proj. 1,496  -0.5% 1,529  -0.5% 2,028  -0.4% 3,239 -0.2% 20,294 -0.4%
Median Age 39.80 39.60 39.70 40.30 39.60
Average Age 40.50 40.30 40.30 40.60 39.70
Households
2000 246 252 357 723 7,062
2010 308 2.3% 315 2.3% 438 2.1% 869 1.9% 8,177 1.5%
2016 est. 314 0.3% 321 0.3% 449 0.4% 886 0.3% 7,827 -0.7%
2021 proj 319 0.3% 326 0.3% 459 0.4% 906 0.5% 7,741 -0.2%
Average Household Size
2000 5.46 5.46 5.07 3.91 2.71
2010 5.18 -0.5% 5.18 -0.5% 4.89 -0.4% 3.84 -0.2% 2.67 -0.2%
2016 est. 489  -1.0% 490 -0.9% 461  -1.0% 3.69  -0.7% 2.64 -0.2%
2021 proj 4.69 -0.8% 4.69 -0.8% 4.42 -0.9% 3.57 -0.6% 2.62 -0.1%
Owner Occupied (est.) 231 73.57% 236  73.47% 337 74.99% 689  77.83% 5,440  69.50%
Renter Occupied (est.) 83  26.43% 85  26.53% 112 25.01% 196  22.17% 2,387  30.50%
Est. Household Income
$0-$14,999 14.33% 14.29% 13.93% 13.95% 21.86%
$15,000-$24,999 17.20% 17.01% 17.86% 17.58% 12.44%
$25,000-$34,999 13.38% 13.38% 13.02% 12.53% 12.30%
$35,000-$49,999 18.47% 18.59% 18.13% 15.74% 14.07%
$50,000-74,999 10.19% 10.43% 11.53% 14.98% 16.57%
$75,000-$99,000 17.83% 17.69% 16.64% 13.52% 10.36%
$100,000 + 8.60% 8.62% 8.90% 11.69% 12.39%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Average Household Income (est.)  $47,795 $47,868 $48,119 $51,267 $50,218
Median Household Income (est.) $39,138 $39,299 $39,293 $40,656 $38,617

' Compounded Annual Growth

Source: The Nielsen Company
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Supply Side Analysis - Competitive Properties Survey

A survey of multi-family complexes is detailed on the following pages. The map below shows
the locations of the rent comparables and the subject. Given the relatively small population in
the market area, there are few apartment properties, and it was necessary to use properties that
are somewhat geographically distant.
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Rent Comparable 1

General Data

Property Name: Brookington Apts
Property Address: 504 Brookwood Dr
City: Dublin
County: Laurens
MSA: Not in a MSA
State: GA
Zip: 31021
Renter Segmentation: General
Rent Structure: Market Rate
Property Data
Bedrooms Baths  Type  Size (rsf) Units Rent Rent/rsf]
Year Built: 1978 1 1.0 Garden 950 48 $510 $0.54
Size (Number of Units): 96 2 1.5 Townhouse 1,200 40 $575 $0.48
Rentable Size (rsf): 102,800 2 2.0  Garden 1,150 8 $600 $0.52
Site Size (acres): 10.890
Density (units/acre): 8.8
Occ. At Time Of Survey: 100.0%
Floors: 2
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Siding
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable Y Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool N Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio Y Clubhouse N Det. Garages
- Gas Y Water N Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis N Cov. Storage
Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement N Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable N Sewer Y Air Conditioning N Ceiling Fans Y Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceiling N Gated N Playground
- Gas N Water Y W/D Hookups N Security System N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments

The property is located along the west side of Brookwood Drive, just west of Claxton Dairy Road (CR
530), and about 3 miles northwest of downtown Dublin. The improvements are housed in 17 two-story
buildings. One-bedroom units have balconies; two-bedroom units have patios. Typical lease term is 1
year. Shorter lease terms are available with management consent. There is minimal turnover.

Property Contact: Linda (478) 272-6788
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Rent Comparable 2

General Data

Property Name: Claxton Pointe North Apts
Property Address: 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd
City: Dublin
County: Laurens

MSA: Not in a MSA
State: GA
Zip: 31021
Renter Segmentation: General
Rent Structure: Market Rate

Property Data

Bedrooms Baths  Type  Size (rsf) Units Rent Rent/rsf]
Year Built: 1992 1 1.0  Garden 600 12 $325 $0.54
Size (Number of Units): 136 1 1.0 Garden 850 1 $445 $0.52
Rentable Size (rsf): 166,050 2 1.0 Townhouse 975 12 $480 $0.49
2 2.5 Townhouse 1,300 103 $530 $0.41

Site Size (acres): 5.060 3 2.5 Townhouse 1,550 8 $650 $0.42
Density (units/acre): 26.9
Occ. At Time Of Survey:98.5%
Floors: 2
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Siding
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable N Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace N Pool N Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio N Clubhouse N Det. Garages
- Gas N Water N Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis N Cov. Storage

Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement N Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable Y Sewer Y Air Conditioning Y Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceiling; N Gated N Playground
- Gas Y Water Y W/D Hookups N Security System N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments

The property is on the northeast side of Claxton Dairy Road (CR 530) just west of US 441 and about 1
mile northwest of downtown Dublin. The property has 12 units that are on government subsidy. Typical
lease term is 1 year. Shorter lease terms are available with management consent. There is minimal
turnover.

Property Contact: Ms. Stewart (478) 272-7335
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Rent Comparable 3

General Data

Property Name: Houston Lake Apts
Property Address: 2350 Houston Lake Rd
City: Kathleen
County: Houston

MSA: Warner Robins
State: GA
Zip: 31047
Renter Segmentation: General

Rent Structure: Market Rate

Property Data
Bedrooms Baths  Type  Size (rsf) Units Rent Rent/rsf]

Year Built: 2008 1 1.0  Garden 825 22 $739 $0.90
Size (Number of Units): 300 1 1.0  Garden 915 22 $749 $0.82
Rentable Size (rsf): 345,705 2 1.0  Garden 1,031 90 $799 $0.78
Gross Size (gsf): 354,710 2 2.0  Garden 1,133 45 $810 $0.67
Site Size (acres): 25.750 2 2.0 Garden 1,230 45 $830 $0.67
Density (units/acre): 11.7 3 2.0 Garden 1,362 38 $949 $0.70
Occ. At Time Of Survey:91.7% 3 2.0 Garden 1,488 38 $969 $0.65
Floors: 2-3
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Siding
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable N Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool Y Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio Y Clubhouse Y Det. Garages
- Gas N Water Y Microwave N Att. Garage Y Tennis Y Cov. Storage

Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement Y Fit. Center Y Car Wash
Y Cable Y Sewer Y Air Conditioning Y Ceiling Fans Y Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceiling Y Gated Y Playground
- Gas Y Water Y W/D Hookups N Security Systeny N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments

Houston Lake is located on the east side of SR 127 (Houston Lake Road), about 5 miles east of the I-
75/SR 11 interchange, and about 5 miles northeast of downtown Perry. Additional amenities include a
picnic area, sports court, and a walking trail. Detached garages are charged a monthly fee. Lease terms
inlcude 6 months, 9 months, and 12 months. Turnover is minimal.

Property Contact: Angel (478) 987-4521
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Rent Comparable 4

General Data

Property Name: Pecan Ridge Apts
Property Address: 104 Parker Dairy Rd
City: Dublin
County: Laurens
MSA: Not in a MSA
State: GA
Zip: 31021
Renter Segmentation: General
Rent Structure: Market Rate

Property Data

Bedrooms Baths  Type  Size (rsf) Units Rent Rent/rsf

Year Built: 1980 1 1.0  Garden 630 20 $460 $0.73
Size (Number of Units): 51 2 1.5 Townhouse 900 22 $535 $0.59
Rentable Size (rsf): 40,950 3 1.0  Garden 950 9 $595 $0.63
Gross Size (gsf): 41,490

Site Size (acres): 5.500

Density (units/acre): 9.3
Occ. At Time Of Survey: 96.2%

Floors: 1

Property Design: Walk Up

Exterior: Combination

Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities

N Cable Y Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace N Pool Y Laundry

N Electric Y Trash Y Range N Balcony/Patio N Clubhouse N Det. Garages

- Gas Y Water N Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis N Cov. Storage
N Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage

Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement N Fit. Center N Car Wash

Y Cable N Sewer Y Air Conditioning N Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators

Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceiling N Gated N Playground

- Gas N Water Y W/D Hookups N Security System Y Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments

The property is on Pecan Trace Road, on the west side of CR 460. This location is about 1 mile northeast
of downtown Dublin. There are currently 10 units accepting housing vouchers. Typical lease term is 1
year. Shorter lease terms are available with management consent. There is minimal turnover.

Property Contact: Angel (478) 275-2795
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General Data

Rent Comparable 5

Property Name:
Property Address:
City:

County:

MSA:

State:

Zip:

Renter Segmentation:

Rent Structure:

Richmond Apts

1219 S Houston Lake Rd
Warner Robins

Houston

Warner Robins

GA

31088

General

Market Rate

Property Data
Bedrooms Baths  Type  Size (rsf) Units Rent Rent/rsf]

Year Built: 1999 1 1.0 Garden 850 8 $685 $0.81
Size (Number of Units): 124 2 2.5 Townhouse 1,140 80 $785 $0.69
Rentable Size (rsf): 148,400 3 3.0 Townhouse 1,400 36 $885 $0.63
Site Size (acres): 1.050
Density (units/acre): 118.1
Occ. At Time Of Survey: 89.0%
Floors: 2
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Siding
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable N Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool N Laundry
N Electric N Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio Y Clubhouse N Det. Garages
- Gas N Water Y Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis Y Cov. Storage

Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement Y Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable Y Sewer Y Air Conditioning Y Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators
Y Electric Y Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceiling N Gated N Playground
- Gas Y Water Y W/D Hookups N Security System N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments

The property is located on the west side of Houston Lake Road just north of the Sidney Street/Houston
Lake Road intersection, 5 miles northeast of the nearest I-75 interchange, and about 5 miles southwest of
downtown Warner Robins. Typical lease term is 1 year. Shorter lease terms are available with
management consent. There is minimal turnover.

Property Contact: Brenna (478) 988-0386
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Analysis

Chester Apartments: The subject has 24-units, was built in 1985, and is in average physical and
functional condition. It is more fully described and discussed in the Property Description section
of the report. It is summarized below.

Chester Apartments
Property and Unit Amenity Summary
Street Address 400 Wynne Avenue Year Built 1985 Floors
City Chester Total Units 24 Occupancy
Unit Types # units Size (sf) Utilities (L-landlord, T-tenant, na-not applicable)
1 Bed, 1 Bath 12 674 Water Sewer Electric Heat Trash
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH 11 910 T T T T L
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 910
Complex Amenities (Y/N)
Pool N Bus. Ctr. N Lake
Clubhouse N Laundry Y Gated
Tennis N Det. Garages N Car Wash
Jacuzzi N Cov. Storage N Elevators
Fit. Ctr N Open Storage N Playground
Unit Amenities (Y/N)
Refrigerator Y Disposal N Fireplace N Central A/C Y Ceil. Fans
Range Y Double Sink Y Patio Y Wall A/C N VIt Ceiling
Microwave N Fan Hood Y Balcony N W/D hk ups Y Sec Sys
Dishwasher N Att Garage N Bsmt N W/D N Storage

1 and 2

87.5%

Cable
T
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During the renovations, microwaves and dishwashers will be added to each unit. In addition, a

pavilion and playground will be added to the complex.
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Market Rent Conclusions
Apartment Survey Ranges
Chester Apartments
Unit Size Adj. Monthly Rent Rent/sf
1 Bed, 1 Bath
2 Chester Apartments 674 $480 $0.71
< Comparable Properties 600 - 950 $330 - $614 $0.44 - $0.74
average of comparables 771 $479 $0.63
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH
2 Chester Apartments 910 $560 $0.62
< Comparable Properties 900 - 1,200 $472 - $695 $0.39 - $0.67
average of comparables 1,049 $561 $0.54
1 Bed, 1 Bath
E Chester Apartments 674 $550 $0.82
< Comparable Properties 600 - 950 $400 - $684 $0.51 - $0.83
average of comparables 771 $549 $0.72
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH
E Chester Apartments 910 $630 $0.69
2 Comparable Properties 900 - 1,200 $542 - $765 $0.45 - $0.74
average of comparables 1,049 $631 $0.61
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

The chart above details the current (not renovated) and as renovated market-derived rents for the

subject as well as the range of rents offered at the comparable properties.

Adjustments are made to the comparables for perceived, material differences. (For example,
while a given comparable unit might be 3 square feet larger than a given subject unit, there is no
material difference in the unit size, so no adjustment is warranted, nor made.) Adjustments are
considered for property attributes such as location (specific or general), condition/street appeal,
or complex amenities, as well as unit attributes such as unit size, configuration (number of
bedrooms or bathrooms, style), utility payment structure, unit amenities, and any concessions. If
no adjustment is made, it is because there is no perceived difference between the comparable and

the subject.

The charts that follow detail the analysis, and show the adjustments considered appropriate.
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Unrenovated Market Rent, 1 br-1 ba (674 sf)

The subject is comprised of 12 of these units. Comparable properties from the area are used to
develop the unrenovated rent conclusion.

1 Bed, 1 Bath
As is
Subject Rent 1 Rent 2 Rent 3 Rent4 Rent 5
Name Chester Apartments Brookington Apts Claxton Pointe North Apts Houston Lake Apts Pecan Ridge Apts Richmond Apts
Address 400 Wynne Avenue 504 Brookwood Dr 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd 2350 Houston Lake Rd 104 Parker Dairy Rd 1219 S Houston Lake Rd
Unadjusted Rent $510 $325 5739 $460 $685
Location
Address 400 Wynne Avemue 504 Brookwood Dr 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd 2350 Houston Lake Rd 104 Parker Dairy Rd 1219 S Houston Lake Rd
City Chester Dublin Dublin Kathleen Dublin ‘Warner Robins
Population 1.536 16.082 16.082 16.524 16.082 72.490
Superior Superior Superior Superior Superior
-510 -810 -310 -310 -825
Year Builr 1985 1078 1992 2008 1980 1999
Condition/Street Appeal Inferior Inferior Superior Inferior Superior
$5 85 -510 $5 -85
Unit Size (sf) 674 950 600 825 630 830
Superior Inferior Superior Inferior Superior
-555 $15 -530 $9 -835
Bedrooms 1 1 1 1 1 1
Stmilar Stmilar Stmilar Similar Stmilar
$0 $0 S0 $0 $0
Bathrooms 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Similar Similar Stmilar Similar Similar
$0 50 S0 $0 50
Unilities (who pays?)
Heat Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Electric Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Water Tenant Landlord Tenant Tenant Landlord Tenant
Sewer Tenant Landlord Tenant Tenant Landlord Tenant
Trash Landlord Landlord Landlord Landlord Landlord Tenant
Cable Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Superior Similar Similar Superior Inferior
-520 S0 S0 -320 $5
Unit Amenities Ref, Range, A/C, Ref, Range, DW, Disp, Ref, Range, DW, Disp, Ref, Range, MW, DIV, Ref, Range, Disp, Ref, Range, Micro, Disp,
FPatio, WD HU, Storage A/C, WiD HU, A/C, WD HU, Disp, A/C, WiD HU, A/C, WD HU DW, A/C, WD HU,
Bal Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans
Superior Superior Superior Inferior Superior
-$5 -510 -515 $5 -515
Complex Amenifies Laundry Pool, CH, Lake None Pool, CH, Fit Ctr, Bus Ctr, Laundry Pool, CH, Fit Ctr,
Lake, Laundry, Gated, Cov Storage

Car Wash, Walking Trails,
Storage, Playground,
Tennis, Sports Ct,

Picnic Area
Superior Inferior Superior Superior Superior
-510 85 -560 -85 -S15
Concessions None None None None None None
S0 $0 S0 $0 $0
Net Adfustment -395 35 -8125 -316 -390
Adjusted Rent 5415 $330 S614 S444 §593

Market Rent Conclusion $480

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

The comparables range in size from 600 sf to 950 sf. After making the adjustments considered
appropriate, the rent range is $330 to $614. Central tendencies are $479 (average) and $444
(median). No one property stands out as being more comparable than another — no one
comparable is physically close, and all were adjusted. A point value near the mid-point is
reasonable. An as-is market rent of $480/month is concluded to be appropriate.
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As Renovated Market Rent, 1 br-1 ba (674 sf)

Comparable properties from the area are used to develop the as-renovated rent conclusion.

1 Bed, 1 Bath
As Renovated
Subject Rent 1 Rent 2 Rent3 Rent 4 Rent 5
Name Chester Apartments Brookington Apts Claxton Pointe North Apts Houston Lake Apts Pecan Ridge Apts Richmond Apts
Address 400 Wynne Avemue 504 Brookwood Dr 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd 2350 Houston Lake Rd 104 Parker Dary Rd 1219 S Houston Lake Rd
Unadjusted Rent $510 §325 §739 5460 5685
Location
Address 400 Wynne Avenue 504 Brookwood Dr 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd 2350 Houston Lake Rd 104 Parker Dairy Rd 1219 S Houston Lake Rd
City Chester Dublin Dublin Kathleen Dublin ‘Warner Robins
Population 1,536 16,082 16,082 16,524 16,082 72.490
Superior Superior Superior Superior Superior
-810 -810 -310 -310 -325
Year Built 1985/2019R 1978 1902 2008 1980 1999
Condition/Streer Appeal Inferior Inferior Inferior Inferior Inferior
355 3§35 540 855 $45
Unit Size (sf) 674 950 600 825 630 850
Superior Inferior Superior Inferior Superior
-§35 515 -530 $9 -335
Bedrooms 1 1 1 1 1 1
Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
$0 $0 S0 S0 S0
Bathrooms 1.0 10 10 1.0 1.0 1.0
Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Utlities (who pays?)
Heat Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Electric Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
‘Water Tenant Landlord Tenant Tenant Landlord Tenant
Sewer Tenant Landlord Tenant Tenant Landlord Tenant
Trash Landlord Landlord Landlord Landlord Landlord Tenant
Cable Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Superior Simular Similar Superior Inferior
-820 30 S0 -320 55
Unit Amenities Ref, Range, A'C, Ref, Range, DW, Disp, Ref, Range, DW, Disp, Ref, Range, MW, DT, Ref, Range, Disp, Ref, Range, Micro, Disp,
Patio, WD HU, Storage, A'C, WD HU, A/C, WiD HU, Disp, A/C, WD HU, A/C, WD HU DWW, A/C, WD HU,
Micro, DWW Bal Bai/Pat, Cail Fans Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans
Inferior Similar Supearior Inferior Supearior
85 30 -55 815 -85
Complex Amenities Laundry, Pavillion, Pool, CH, Lake None Pool, CH, Fit Cir, Bus Ctr, Laundry Pool, CH, Fit Crr,
Playground Lake, Laundry, Gated, Cov Storage
Car Wash, Walking Trails,
Storage, Playground,
Tennis, Sports Ct,
Picnic Area
Similar Inferior Superior Inferior Superior
$0 515 -850 $5 -85
Concessions None None None None None None
0 $0 S0 S0 S0
Net Adjustment -§25 375 -355 554 -520
Adjusted Rent $485 $400 $684 $514 $665
Market Rent Conclusion $550

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

The comparables range in size from 600 sf to 950 sf. After making the adjustments considered
appropriate, the rent range is $400 to $684. Central tendencies are $549 (average) and $514

(median).

No one property stands out as being more comparable than another — no one

comparable is physically close, and all were adjusted. A point value near the mid-point is

reasonable.

An as-renovated market rent of $550/month is concluded to be appropriate.
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Unrenovated Market Rent, 2 br-1.5 ba Townhouse (910 sf)

The subject is comprised of 12 of these units.
develop the unrenovated rent conclusion.

Comparable properties from the area are used to

2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH
Asis

Name

Address

Unadjusted Rent
Location

Address

City

Population

Year Built

Condition/Street Appeal

Uit Size (5f)

Bedrooms

Bathrooms

Unlities (who pays?)
Heat
Electric
Water
Sewer
Trash
Cable

Unit Amenities

Subject
Chester Apartments
400 Wynne Avenue

400 Wynne Avenue
Chester
1,536

1985

910

(¥

Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Landlord
Tenant

Ref, Range, A/C,
Patio, W/D HU, Storage

Complex Amenities Laundry
Concessions None
Net Adjustment

Adjusted Rent

Market Rent Conclusion 8560

Rent 1
Brookington Apts
304 Brookwood Dr
$575

504 Brookwood Dr
Dublin
16,082

Superior
-$10
1978

Inferior
35

1.200
Superior
-§58

2

Similar
$0

15
Similar

S0

Tenant
Tenant
Landlord
Landlord
Landlord
Tenant
Supearior
-825
Ref, Range, DW, Disp,
A/C, WD HU,
Patio
Superior
-85

Pool, CH, Lake

Superior
-§10

None
S0

-5103
5472

Rent 2

Claxton Pointe North Apts

1003 Claxton Dairy Rd
$480

1003 Claston Dairy Rd

Dublin

16,082
Superior

-810

1902
Inferior

85

975
Superior
-513

2

Stmilar
$0

1.0
Inferior
$15

Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Landlord
Tenant
Stmilar
S0

Ref, Range, DW, Disp,
A/C, WiD HU,
Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans
Superior
-810

None

Inferior
85

None
S0

=58
§472

Rent 3
Houston Lake Apts
2350 Houston Lake Rd
$799

2350 Houston Lake Rd
Kathleen
16,524
Supearior

-810

2008
Superior
-$10

1.031
Superior
-§24

2

Similar
$0

1.0
Inferior
$15

Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Landlord
Tenant
Similar
S0

Ref, Range, MW, DW,
Disp, A'C, WD HU,
Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans
Superior
-815

Pool, CH, Fit Ctr,
Laice, Laundry, Gated,

Car Wash, Walking Trails,

Storage, Playground,
Tenmnis, Sports Ct,
Picnic Area
Superior
-§60

Nowne
S0

-5104
5695

Rent4

Pecan Ridge Apts
104 Parker Dairy Rd

$535

104 Parker Dairy Rd

Dublin
16,082
Superior

-510
1080
Inferior
85

900
Inferior
52

2

Similar
$0

15
Similar

S0

Tenant
Tenant
Landlord
Landlord
Landlord
Tenant
Superior
-825
Ref, Range, Disp,
A/C, WD HU

Inferior
85

Bus Crr, Laundry

Superior
-35

Nore
50

-328
3507

Rent 5
Richmond Apts
1219 S Houston Lake Rd
$785

1219 S Houston Lake Rd
‘Warner Robins
72490
Superior
-825
1099
Superior
-85
1.140
Superior
-§46

2

Similar
S0
235

Superior
-825

Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Tenant
Inferior
$5
Ref, Range, Micro, Disp,
DW, 4/C, W/D HU,
Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans

Superior
-815

Pool, CH, Fit Ctr,
Cov Storage

Superior
-§15

Nore
50

-5126
3659

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

The comparables range in size from 900 sf to 1,200 sf. After making the adjustments considered
appropriate, the rent range is $472 to $695. Central tendencies are $561 (average) and $507

(median).

No one property stands out as being more comparable than another — no one

comparable is physically close, and all were adjusted. A point value near the mid-point is

reasonable.

An as-is market rent of $560/month is concluded to be appropriate.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP




CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA

City Overview

Page 27

As Renovated Market Rent, 2 br-1.5 ba Townhouse (910 sf)

Comparable properties from the area are used to develop the as-renovated rent conclusion.

2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH

As Renovated
Subject Rent 1 Rent 2 Rent 3 Rent 4 Rent 5
Name Chester Apartments Brookington Apts Claxton Pointe North Apts Houston Lake Apts Pecan Ridge Apts Richmond Apts
Address 400 Wynne Avemue 504 Brookwood Dr 1003 Claxton Dairv Rd 2350 Houston Lake Rd 104 Parker Dary Rd 1219 S Houston Lake Rd
Unadjusted Rent $575 5480 5799 $535 5785
Location
Address 400 Wynne Aveme 504 Brookwood Dr 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd 2350 Houston Lake Rd 104 Parker Dairy Rd 1219 S Houston Lake Rd
City Chester Dublin Dublin Kathleen Dublin ‘Warner Robins
Population 1,536 16,082 16,082 16,524 16,082 72,490
Superior Superior Superior Superior Superior
-810 -810 -810 -810 -825
Year Built 1985 1978 1902 2008 1980 1000
Condition/Strear Appeal Inferior Inferior Inferior Inferior Inferior
8§55 $55 $40 8§55 $45
Unit Size (sf) 910 1.200 975 1.031 900 1.140
Superior Superior Superior Inferior Superior
-558 -$13 -524 52 -546
Bedrooms 2 2 2 2 2 2
Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
S0 30 S0 S0 S0
Bathrooms 1.5 15 1.0 1.0 15 25
Similar Inferior Inferior Similar Superior
S0 515 815 S0 -825
Unlities (who pays?)
Heat Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Electric Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Water Tenant Landlord Tenant Tenant Landlord Tenant
Sewer Tenant Landlord Tenant Tenant Landlord Tenant
Trash Landlord Landlord Landlord Landlord Landlord Tenant
Cable Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant Tenant
Superior Similar Similar Superior Inferior
-825 30 $0 -825 85
Unit Amenities Ref, Range, A/'C, Ref, Range, DW, Disp, Ref, Range, DW, Disp, Ref, Range, MW, DWW, Ref, Range, Disp, Ref, Range, Micro, Disp,
Patio, W/D HU, Storage, A/C, WD HU, A/C, W/D HU, Disp, A/C, W/D HU, A/C, WD HU DW, A/C, W/D HU,
Micro, DIV Bal Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans Bal/Pat, Ceil Fans
Inferior Similar Superior Inferior Superior
85 50 -35 515 -35
Complex Amenities Laundry, Pavillion, Pool, CH, Lake None Pool, CH, Fir Ctr, Bus Crr, Laundry Pool, CH, Fit Cir,
Playground Lake, Laundry, Gated, Cov Storage
Car Wash, Walking Trails,
Storage, Playground,
Tennis, Sports Ct,
Picnic Area
Similar Inferior Superior Inferior Superior
S0 $15 -850 85 -85
Concessions None None None None None None
S0 $0 S0 S0 S0
Net Adjustment -833 562 -834 542 -856
Adjusted Rent $542 $542 3763 8577 §729
Market Rent Conclusion 85630

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

The comparables range in size from 900 sf to 1,200 sf. After making the adjustments considered
appropriate, the rent range is $542 to $765. Central tendencies are $631 (average) and $577

(median).

No one property stands out as being more comparable than another — no one

comparable is physically close, and all were adjusted. A point value near the mid-point is

reasonable.

An as-renovated market rent of $630/month is concluded to be appropriate.
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Market Vacancy Conclusion

Five market rate properties have been detailed. There are relatively few market rate rent
comparables. Occupancy of the comparable properties ranges from 89.0%-100.0%.

Apartment Vacancy
Chester Apartments
[ Name Location Total Units Occ.  Vacancy |
| Chester Apartments 400 Wynne Avenue 24 87.5% 12.5% |
Brookington Apts 504 Brookwood Dr 96 100.0%
Claxton Pointe North Apts 1003 Claxton Dairy Rd 136  98.5% 1.5%
Houston Lake Apts 2350 Houston Lake Rd 300 91.7% 8.3%
Pecan Ridge Apts 104 Parker Dairy Rd 51 96.2% 3.8%
Richmond Apts 1219 S Houston Lake Rd 124 89.0% 11.0%
Minimum 89.0%
Maximum 100.0% 11.0%
Totals and average (excluding subject) 707  94.0% 6.0%
Source: Area Managers; Crown Appraisal Group

The subject has historically operated as a government subsidized property. Most of the units are
available for rental assistance, with the tenant paying 30% of their income towards the rent
figure. Historic vacancy at Chester Apartments has been trending downward. Average vacancy
in the past 3 years was 8.2%. This is expected to continue to decline. When inspected, there
were 3 vacant units.

Therefore, in recognizing the economic benefit due to the governmental assistance as well as
historic vacancy, a vacancy below 5% is reasonable when developing the value opinions for the
restricted rent scenarios. However, additional consideration is given the possible uncertainty of
increased vacancy when considering the prospective restricted valuation as a function of the as
renovated rent conclusions.

After consideration of the market vacancy and the area supply/demand components, the
following vacancy conclusions are drawn:

Value 1, as conventional or unrestricted -5%

Value 2-RD, subject to restricted rents within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(i) — 3%
Value 3, prospective, subject to restricted rents — 3%

Value 4, prospective, as conventional or unrestricted - 5%
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Property Description

This section will present a description of the physical and economic characteristics of the site and
building improvements. The description is based upon an inspection of the property, discussions
with local municipal authorities, and data provided by the client and management.

General Location

The subject is located on the south side of Wynne Avenue less than % mile northeast of the center
of town. The property is in Dodge County. Chester is located central Georgia. The property has
an address of 400 Wynne Avenue, Chester, Georgia. The maps in the preceding section show the
property’s location.

Access, Ingress. Eeress, Visibility

Overall, access is average from both a neighborhood (local) perspective, as well as a macro
(regional) perspective. Ingress/egress to the property is from Wynne Avenue. The ingress and
egress attributes are average. Visibility to the subject is considered average.

History of the Property

According to public records, the subject is owned by Chester Apartments, LP. The current owner
has owned the property for more than 3 years. The property is part of a portfolio of apartment
properties in Georgia that are to transfer ownership in the near term. While the sale price is in the
final stages of negotiation, the price is expected to be about $702,994. The transfer is assumed to be
between related parties and not one that is considered to be arms-length. As the transfer is
presumably not arms-length, no credence is given to this purchase price when determining the said
values of the subject property. Subsequent to the sale, ownership plans to renovate the subject with
funding from a combination of mortgage monies, sale proceeds of Section 42 Low Income
Housing Tax Credits, and equity. Following the acquisition the existing Section 515 loan will
remain at the property. (The loan is expected to be restated under new rates and terms.) The
developer estimates the renovation cost to be about $35,855 per unit, or about $860,508.
Renovations will be extensive and will include interior unit renovation as well as exterior unit
renovation. It is expected that the air conditioning units will be replaced, windows will be
repaired/replaced, new roofs will be installed, parking areas will be repaired, and kitchens and
bathrooms will be updated as needed. Microwaves and dishwashers will be added to each unit.
In addition, a pavilion and playground will be added to the complex.

Fair Housing

There are no known violations of the Fair Housing Act of 1988, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. There are 2 units that are UFAS
(Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards) accessible, 1 unit that is equipped for the sight/hearing
impaired and 3 ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) parking spaces at the subject. Note: The
appraisers are not experts in such matters. It is assumed that fair housing practices are
implemented at the subject. The user of the report is instructed to seek the advice of an expert
if further questions arise pertaining to fair housing issues.
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Easements

No detrimental easements that would substantially deter development are known to exist. Others,
such as utility easements, allow for development of the site and are considered beneficial to the tract.

Environmental Hazards

Soil conditions are assumed to be adequate. The site appears to be well drained. No engineering or
soil testing has been performed to the knowledge of the appraisers, and no further conclusion as to
the condition of the foundation or soil condition is made. There is no reason to suspect that
hazardous materials are on the property such as discolored vegetation, oil residue, asbestos-
containing materials, and lead-based paint. Note: The appraisers are not experts in
environmental matters. It is assumed that the site is clean from an environmental standpoint.
The user of the report is instructed to seek the advice of an expert if further questions arise
pertaining to environmental issues.

Third Party Reports

No third party reports (such as market studies, environmental or physical condition) have been
reviewed, and, unless noted, no warranty is made for any such reports that may exist.

Topography
The topography at the site is level to gently sloping.

Flood Plain

According to FEMA's flood insurance rate map community panel number 13091C0045C, dated
August 19, 2010, the subject is located in Zone X. Zone X is identified as not being in a flood plain.

Zoning

The property is not zoned. According to local government officials, the current use was permissible.
If damaged or destroyed the improvements could be rebuilt.

Utilities

The subject site is serviced by the following utilities (the payor of the utilities is also shown):

Utility Details

Chester Apartments

Service Paid by
Heat Tenant
Electric Tenant
Water Tenant
Sewer Tenant
Trash Landlord
Cable Tenant
Source: Management
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Improvements

The subject improvements include a 24-unit apartment complex (housed in 5 one to two-story
buildings). The improvements were initially developed in 1985.

The buildings have a poured concrete foundation. The buildings have a combination brick and
siding exterior, and a pitched roof covered with shingles.

Each unit has a living room/living area, kitchen, one or two bedrooms, and one or one and a half
bathrooms. The floors in the units are a combination of carpet and tile. Windows are double hung.
Exterior doors are metal; interior doors are hollow core wood. Interior walls are painted drywall;
ceilings are painted drywall. Ceiling height is generally 8 feet. Hot water is supplied via individual
water heaters. Each unit includes a washer/dryer hook-up.

Kitchens have vinyl flooring. They are equipped with a refrigerator, double sink, fan hood, and
range.

Each unit has an individual forced air furnace. The units have central air conditioning. The units
have battery powered and hard wired smoke alarms.

Property amenities include a laundry room. While not a property amenity per se, the units have a
small enclosed storage room to the rear of the units off of the patio.

Parking areas are in average condition. There appears to be sufficient parking for the property.
Overall parking at the subject is adequate.

Unit Mix

The composition of the property is shown in the chart below.

Chester Apartments
Unit Mix
Total % of Vacant
Description Units total units Units Size (sf) 2 Bed
1 Bed, 1 Bath 12 50% 2 674 50% _
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH 11 46% 1 910 : ol
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 4% 0 910
Overall Totals/Averages 24 100% 3 19,008

Source: Property Management
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Physical and Functional Condition

The improvements were completed in 1985 and renovated periodically over time. The property has
been maintained on an as needed basis.

The total building size is 19,488 sf. This is the sum of the apartment units (1 Bedroom - 674 sf/unit
* 12 units — 8,088 sf plus 2 Bedroom — 910 sf/unit * 12 units — 10,920 sf) plus the office/laundry
room (480 sf).

A major renovation is planned for the property improvements. Preliminary plans, completed by
Wallace Architects, LLC, are include in the addendum of the report. Per the client, finalized plans
will be provided to Rural Development and DCA for review and approval separately. Planned
renovations include replacement of all existing flooring, replacement of kitchen cabinets and
countertops, replacement of existing kitchen appliances, plumbing fixtures, lighting fixtures,
bathroom cabinets and countertops, HVAC, repainting, re-roofing (new shingles), as well as exterior
upgrades and improvements, and re-paving and re-striping of drive and parking areas. Microwaves
and dishwashers will be added to each unit. In addition, a pavilion and playground will be added
to the complex. Furthermore, all Section 504 accessibility issues will be addressed and corrected
as appropriate. The renovation is expected to cost about $35,855 per unit, or about $860,508.

Upon completion of the renovations, the property’s marketability, overall quality, and aesthetic
appeal will be increased and enhanced. Following the renovations, the subject is projected to have a
remaining economic life — assuming normal maintenance and repairs - of 60 years. If the property
were not renovated, the remaining economic life (the “remaining economic life”) is estimated at 25
years.

Current Rent Parameters/Rent Roll

The chart below illustrates the current rent parameters. As has been discussed, there are LIHTC
restrictions applicable to the units at the property. The market rent and as-renovated market rent
(CRCU) conclusions are well above the maximum LIHTC rent figure.

Chester Apartments
Rent Parameters
Total % of Vacant % of Total| [ Basic Note|| Gross  Utility Net CRCU
Units total Units unittype Size (sf) Size (sf)]| Rent Rent| | LIHTC Costs LIHTC As-Is As-Renovated
1 Bed, 1 Bath 12 50% 2 17% 674  8,083|| $384 $517 $558 $107  $451 $480 $550
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH 11 46% 1 9% 910 10,010|| $412 $544 $670 $141  $529 $560 $630
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 4% 0 0% 910 9tof| -- - Non-Revenue Non-Revenue
[overall Totals/Averages 24 100% 3 13% 792 19,008 ]

Source: Property Management
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Operating History

The chart below shows the recent operating history for the subject. Repairs and maintenance
expenses also include capital improvements.

Chester Apartments

Operating History 24 units
Revenue 2013  Per Unit 2014 Per Unit 2015 Per Unit |2016 Budget Per Unit 2017 Budget Per Unit
Apartment Rental Income 78,545 3,273 96,974 4,041 96,859 4,036 97,848 4,077 98,712 4,113
Plus: Other Income 1,746 73 1,431 60 3,429 143 1,836 77 1,185 49
[Effective Gross Income 80,291 3,345 98,405 4,100 100,288 4,179 99,684 4,154 99,897 4,162
Operating Expenses
Real Estate Taxes 4,243 177 3,488 145 2,955 123 3,558 148 3,961 165
Insurance 2,032 85 3,861 161 3,872 161 4,274 178 3,797 158
Repairs & Maintenance 21,062 878 17,690 737 25,498 1,062 21,269 886 22,980 958
General & Administrative 9,990 416 6,594 275 7,647 319 7,208 300 7,745 323
Management Fees 7,920 330 9,252 386 9,804 409 11,592 483 11,316 472
Utilities
Electric 4,728 197 2,351 98 2,887 120 2,952 123 2,460 103
Water/Sewer 2,377 9 150 6 236 10 300 13 345 14
Total Utilities 7,105 296 2,500 104 3,123 130 3,252 136 2,805 117
Payroll 16,251 677 9,360 390 15,366 640 17,166 715 17,976 749
Marketing 1.463 61 560 23 324 14 350 15 575 24
Total Expenses 70,065 2,919 53,305 2,221 68,589 2,858 68,669 2,861 71,155.43 2,965
operating expense ratio 87.3% 54.2% 68.4% 68.9% 71.2%
|Net Operating Income 10,226 426 45,100 1,879 31,699 1,321 31,015 1,292 28,742 1,198|

Source: Property Management

While individual line items will vary depending upon the specific valuation developed later in

the report, the following generally holds true:

Interest Appraised
Value 1

Market value, unrestricted rents

Value 2-RD

Market value, subject to restricted rents

Comment
The effective gross income, which is comprised
primarily of apartment rent, should be above
historic levels.  The apartment rent will be
constrained by market rent levels.

The total operating expense estimate will be less
than historic primarily due to reduced Repairs &
Maintenance, General &  Administrative,
Management Fee, and Payroll expenses. The
Marketing expense will be higher than historic, and
there will be an explicit Reserve expense.

The effective gross income, which is comprised
primarily of apartment rent, should be above
historic levels. The apartment rent will be
constrained by basic rent levels.

The total operating expense estimate will be similar
to historic expenses at the subject. There will be an
explicit Reserve expense.
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Value 3
Prospective, subject to restricted rents.

Value 4

Prospective, as conventional or unrestricted.

The effective gross income, which is comprised
primarily of apartment rent, should be above
historic levels. The apartment rent will recognize
the economic benefits of the renovation as the units
will be in better physical (and functional)
condition. The apartment rent will be constrained
by the lesser of market rent or LIHTC constraints

With respect to operating expense line items, Real
Estate Taxes, Insurance, General & Administrative,
Management Fee, Utilities, and Marketing should
be near historic. Repairs & Maintenance should be
lower due to the renovations. Payroll should also
be lower, also due to the renovation. An explicit
Reserve will be recognized.

The effective gross income, which is comprised
primarily of apartment rent, should be above
historic levels. The apartment rent will recognize
the economic benefits of the renovation as the units
will be in better physical (and functional)
condition. The apartment rent will based on the
(prospective) market rent figures.

The total operating expense estimate should be
lower due to renovation (reduced Repairs &
Maintenance as well as Payroll) as well as reduced
General & Administrative and Management
expenses. The Marketing expense should be higher
than historic, and there will be an explicit Reserve
expense.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP



CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA Property Description  Page 35

Real Estate Taxes and Assessments

The chart below shows the tax details. The assessor’s land and improvement values are shown
for informational purposes only. Actual land sales are used in order to develop the value of the
subject’s site while Marshall Valuation service has been used to develop the replacement cost of
the improvements.

Real Estate Taxes

Chester Apartments

Parcel Number 091A 009
Appraised Assessed

Land $26,266 $10,506

Improvements 247,397 98,959

Total 273,663 109,465

Real Estate Taxes $2,907

Taxes/unit $121

Source: County Auditor

The chart below shows the recent assessed values and taxes for the subject for the past few years.

Real Estate Taxes
Chester Apartments
Auditors Appraised Values Assessed Values Annual Tax

Year Land Building Total Land Building Total Taxes Rate
2016 26,266 247,397 273,663 10,506 98,959 109,465 2,907 26.55607
2015 26,266 247,397 273,663 10,506 98,959 109,465 2,912 26.60599
2014 26,266 247,397 273,663 10,506 98,959 109,465 2,726 24.89851
2013 26,266 372,495 398,761 10,506 148,998 159,504 3,702 23.20977
Source: County Auditor

The following chart notes area tax comparables. The reader is referred to the assessed value per
unit column, which is the best indicator of comparability. Properties with higher real estate taxes
per unit than others also have higher assessed values per unit than others. The tax comparables
confirm the reasonableness of the real estate taxes.

Chester Apartments
Tax Comparables

Effective Taxes/ Land Improvements Total  Assessed
Name/Location Parcel # Millage Units RE Taxes unit| | Assessed Value Assessed Value Assessed Value Value/unit|
Chester Apartments 091A 009  26.5561 24 2,907 121 10,506 98,959 109,465 4,561
400 Wynne Avenue
Eastman Gardens E0130-00000-026-000  28.7220 65 9,048 139 55,900 259,120 315,020 4,846
525 Plaza Ave, Eastman
Groveland Terrace Apts D11D-027 9.2899 52 2,585 50 67,072 292,416 278,260 5,351
1717 Telfair St, Drublin
Pecan Point Apts B37A-017  12.6753 50 9,232 185 457,560 270,784 728,344 14,567
133 Limestone Rd, Cochran
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Highest and Best Use

Highest and best use is defined in The Appraisal of Real Estate, 14" Edition, Appraisal Institute, as
follows:

...the reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved property that is physically possible,
appropriately supported, and financially feasible, and that results in the highest value.

Some of the more germane comments from this publication regarding highest and best use are
noted in the following bullet points:

= If, however, the market value of the property with the existing improvements is greater than the market value of
the land as though vacant less costs to demolish the existing improvements, then the highest and best use of the
property as improved is to keep the improvements for residential or commercial use.

=  The use that a site or improved property is put to until it is ready for its highest and best use has traditionally
been known as the interim use. An interim use is not the highest and best use of the property at the present time,
and it should not be represented as the subject property’s current highest and best use. Rather, the current
highest and best use of a property with an interim use would be to leave the property as is until land value rises
to a level for modification of the interim use (or demolition of the improvements and redevelopment for some
other use) is financially feasible.

= These criteria [legally permissible, physically possible, financially feasible, maximally productive] are
generally considered sequentially.

After consideration of the data, the following conclusions are drawn:
As If Vacant:

Physically Possible Uses: Physical constraints include site area, shape, and adjacent uses. The site
has all public utilities available. Noted easements are typical, and soil
conditions are assumed to be adequate. There are acceptable access and
visibility attributes. Based on location and site constraints, the most
probable physically possible uses would be an intensive use. The existing
improvements are such a use, and effectively utilize the site.

Legally Permissible Uses: According to government officials, the current multi-family use is a
permissible use.

Financially Feasible Uses: The subject has a good location and is convenient to major traffic arteries.
The surrounding area has been developed with a number of properties,
including single-family residential properties, multi-family properties,
retail properties, office and institutional uses (churches, schools,
parkland). The residential users in the immediate area appear to have met
with market acceptance. If vacant, a similar use is appropriate. The
existing improvements develop a return in excess of that if the property
were not improved.
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Conclusion/Maximum Productivity: Of those uses that are physically possible, legally
permissible, and financially supported, a residential development is concluded to be the highest and
best use of the site as if vacant. Given the area demographics, development should not be
speculative — rather, development should only occur with an identified end user in place.

As Improved:

Physically Possible Uses: The presence of the improvements demonstrate their physical
possibility.

Legally Permissible Uses: The current multi-family use is a permissible use.

Financially Feasible Uses: As is shown in the valuation, the existing improvements develop a

return well in excess of that if the property were not improved.

Conclusion/Maximum Productivity: The existing improvements are considered to be financially
feasible. The chart below demonstrates that the proposed renovation is appropriate and financially
viable — when considering the inclusion of the additional value from the interest credit subsidy and
LIHTC. As shown, the sum of the prospective market value, interest credit values, and LIHTC
values are in excess of the property’s as is value plus renovation costs. Therefore, the proposed
renovations provide a higher return to the property than if the property were not renovated, and the
highest and best as improved is concluded to be with the renovations made to the property. There are
no negative market trends that would influence the value of the property.

Financial Feasiblility
Chester Apartments
Initial Test of Financial Feasibility
Value 3, prospective, subject to restricted rents $995,000
Value 2-RD, as-is, subject to restricted rents $570,000
Incremental difference $425,000
Renovation Cost $860,508
Benefit (cost) of renovating before consideration of other benefits -$435,508
Other Benefits
Value 5 Interest Credit Subsidy Value from assuming the existing 515 Loan) $255,000
Value 6 LIHTC Value $685.799
Value of additional benefits of renovation $940,799
Net benefits, or added value, of renovation $505,291

These thoughts are carried to the Valuation section.
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Valuation

The valuation process involves the gathering of data in order to develop opinions of value for the
subject. A number of value opinions are provided; the value opinions are identified and the
applicable approaches to value are also identified.

Value 1
as conventional or unrestricted

The income capitalization and sales comparison approaches
are used.

Comment:  market-based rent, market-based vacancy,
market-based operating expenses, market-based overall rate
used.

Value 2-RD
subject to restricted rents

The income capitalization approach is used.

Comment: basic rent, historic vacancy, historic expenses,
market-based overall rate (with recognition of ““safeness” of
RA units) used.

Value 3
prospective, subject to restricted rents

The income capitalization approach is used.

Comment: lesser of LIHTC or market-based rent, market-
based vacancy, market-based operating expenses, market-
based overall rate used.

Value 4
prospective, as conventional or unrestricted

The income capitalization and cost approaches are used.

Comment:  market-based rent, market-based vacancy,
market-based operating expenses, market-based overall rate
used.

Value 5
Market value of the interest credit subsidy from
assumed loan and new loan

The income capitalization approach is used.

Value 6
Market value of LIHTC (tax credits)

The income capitalization approach is used.

Value 7
Insurable value

The cost approach is used.

Value 8
Market value of underlying land

This value is developed within the cost approach valuation
used for Value 4.
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Market Valuation

An opinion of the market value, unrestricted rents (fee simple estate, as conventional or
unrestricted, as of the date of valuation) is subject to the hypothetical condition that the subject
property is operated as a conventional, market rate property. Historically, the subject property
has been operated as a subsidized property. Both the income capitalization approach and the
sales comparison approach are utilized to arrive at opinions of the market value of Chester
Apartments, as conventional or unrestricted (Value 1). The income capitalization approach is
used to arrive at the market value, subject to restricted rents (Value 2).

Income Capitalization Approach
Value 1, as conventional or unrestricted

The income capitalization approach to value opinion is based on the economic principle of
anticipation--that the value of an income producing property is the present value of anticipated
future net benefits. Other appraisal principles and concepts upon which this approach is based
include supply and demand, change, substitution, and externalities.

Net operating income projections (future net benefits) are translated into a present value indication
using a capitalization process. In this appraisal, a pro forma technique is explicitly used. Market
value is developed through the use of market derived financial opinions and return parameters.
More specifically, the capitalization process steps in the pro forma technique are as follows:

o The effective gross revenue is estimated by the sum of the market rents on the units less an allowance
for vacancy, plus other income.

e Expenses inherent in the operation of the property, including real estate taxes, insurance, repairs and
maintenance, general and administrative, management, utilities, payroll, marketing, and reserve are
estimated.

o The net operating income is derived by deducting the operating expenses from the effective gross
revenue.

e The net operating income is then capitalized to obtain an indication of value.

With respect to this valuation, the effective gross income, which is comprised primarily of
apartment rent, should be above historic levels. The apartment rent will be based on market rent
figures.

The total operating expense estimate will be less than historic primarily due to reduced Repairs
& Maintenance, General & Administrative, Management Fee, and Payroll expenses. The
Marketing expense will be higher than historic, and there will be an explicit Reserve expense.
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Pro Forma Capitalization

Base Rent Revenue — is based on the market rent levels for the units at the subject. The annual
market rent is shown in the chart below.

Chester Apartments Value 1
Base Rent Revenue as conventional or unrestricted
Total % of Size Total Market Rent
Units  total (rsf) rsf Rent/Month  Rent/sf Monthly Yearly
1 Bed, 1 Bath 12 50% 674 8,088 $480 $0.71  $5,760 $69,120
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH 11 46% 910 10,010 $560 0.62 6,160 73,920
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 4% 910 910 Non-Revenue
Overall Totals/Averages [ 24 100% 792 19,008/ | 497  0.63 11,920 143,040 | |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Vacancy — Stabilized vacancy has been discussed in the Market Area Overview section.
Vacancy is estimated at 5%, and is applied to base rent revenue.

Other Income — Other revenues include laundry income, late/nsf charges, application fees, forfeited
deposits, termination/restoration fees and other miscellaneous incomes. Other revenue is estimated
at $60/unit. This is a net income line item component, with vacancy inherently considered.

Operating Expenses — are those costs necessary to maintain the property at or near a maximum level
of economic performance. These expenses are categorized as real estate taxes, insurance, repairs
and maintenance, general and administrative, management fees, utilities, payroll, and marketing. In
addition, reserves are also considered. Estimated operating expenses are based on historical figures,
and support from market data. The market data information is of properties similar in size, age,
condition, and location relative to the subject that have been appraised by Crown Appraisal Group.
All of these properties are RD properties — none are market rate ones. Like the subject, the operating
histories reflect the benefits — and costs — associated with operating as a rural property subject to
various RD operating costs.

With respect to operating expense line items, Real Estate Taxes, Insurance, and Utilities should
be near historic. Repairs & Maintenance, General & Administrative, Management Fees and
Payroll should be lower than historic due to the nature of market rate operations as compared to
subsidized operations. Marketing should be above historic, also due to the nature of market rate
operations. An explicit Reserve will be recognized.

The line item operating expenses are presented in the chart below. The chart details the median and
average operating expenses by the operating expense comparables, the historic operating expenses at
the subject, and the pro forma operating expense projections.
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Operating Expense Comparables
Chester Apartments
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Units 49 51 51 37 18 20 55 65 55 24
Year 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Per Unit Basis
Real Estate Taxes 300 227 125 196 432 393 341 208 171 213
Insurance 209 166 499 173 154 222 189 316 400 296
Repairs and Maintenance 599 472 791 646 1,198 778 976 447 319 735
General and Administrative 329 253 242 284 527 368 283 204 211 306
Management Fees 533 528 506 477 524 520 500 529 529 337
Utilities
Electric 110 98 155 90 111 190 162 101 108 95
Water/Sewer 936 24 20 547 46 42 35 32 556 6
Total Utilities 1,046 122 175 637 156 232 197 132 664 101
Payroll 923 1,096 457 879 636 1,066 1,245 768 955 1,331
Marketing 2 1 9 12 23 4 0 0 2 2
Total 3,941 2,865 2,803 3,305 3,649 3,582 3,731 2,603 3,251 3,321
Per Unit Basis
Category Minimum Maximum Average Median
Real Estate Taxes 125 432 261 220
Insurance 154 499 263 216
Repairs and Maintenance 319 1,198 696 691
General and Administrative 204 527 300 283
Management Fees 337 533 498 522
Utilities
Electric 90 190 122 109
Water/Sewer 6 936 224 38
Total Utilities 101 1,046 346 186
Payroll 457 1,331 935 939
Marketing 0 23 5 2
Total 2,603 3,941 3,305 3,313
Source: Apartment Management, Crown Appraisal Group
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Chester Apartments
Operating Expense Estimates

as conventional or unrestricted

as-

is

Real Estate Taxes

Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 220 med| 261  avg 177 145 123 148 165 121 $2,907
Insurance
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget|2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 216 med| 263 avg 85 161 161 178 158 142 $3,413
Repairs & Maintenance
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget|2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 691 med| 696 avg 878 737 1,062 886 958 700 $16,800
General & Administrative
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget|2017 Budget| Pro Forma | Amount
Cost/unit 283 med| 300 avg 416 275 319 300 323 275 $6,600
Management
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget|2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 522 med| 498 avg[ 330 386 409 483 472 286 $6,866
Electric Utilities
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 109 med| 122  avg| 197 98 120 123 103 105 $2,520
Water & Sewer
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 [2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 38 med| 224 avg 99 6 10 13 14 10 $240
Total Utilities
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 186 med| 346  avg| 296 104 130 136 117 115 $2,760
Payroll
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 939  med| 935 avg| 677 390 640 715 749 550 $13,200
Marketing
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit 2 med| 5 avg 61 23 14 15 24 15 $360
Total Operating Expenses (including consideration of Reserve)
Source Comparables 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget| 2017 Budget| Pro Forma| Amount
Cost/unit [ 3,313 med| 3,305 avg| 2,919 2,221 2,858 2,861 2,965 2,454 $58,906

Source: Property Management; Crown Appraisal Group
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Chester Apartments Value 1
Operating Expense Estimates as conventional or unrestricted

Operating Expense Cost/unit Discussion
Real Estate Taxes 121 Based on the current real estate taxes of the
subject as reported by the county.

Insurance 142 Based on historic with support from market.
Repairs & Maintenance 700 Below historic; property would not be as well
maintained if it were to be operated as a

market rate one.

General & Administrative 275 Below historic; market rate properties have lower
general & administrative costs than subsidized

properties.

Management 5.00% Percent of effective gross income rather than fee
per occupied door per month.

Utilities 105  Electric Based on historic with support from market.
10  Water and sewer Based on historic with support from market.

Payroll 550 Based on the size of the property, a total cost per year,
or a cost per month, is the appropriate manner in which to

develop this operating expense estimate. The expense

is based on the probable cost if the property were operated

as a market rate one.

Marketing 15 Above historic; market rate properties
require a higher cost for marketing.

Reserve 250 Based on market participant attitudes.

Total Operating Expenses — The chart below compares historical and market derived operating
expense data with the pro forma. Notice the market estimates are lower than the historical figures as
government subsidized properties typically cost more to operate than market rate.

Pro Forma Operating Expense Estimate & Comparisons (per unit basis) Value 1
Chester Apartments as conventional or unrestricted
Crown Appraisal Group Survey Year End Historical Subject
Low High Avg. Med. 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget 2017 Budget Pro Forma
Real Estate Taxes 125 432 261 220 177 145 123 148 165 121
Insurance 154 499 263 216 85 161 161 178 158 142
Repairs and Maintenance 319 1,198 696 691 878 737 1,062 886 958 700
General and Administrative 204 527 300 283 416 275 319 300 323 275
Management Fees 337 533 498 522 330 386 409 483 472 286
Utilities
Electric 90 190 122 109 197 98 120 123 103 105
Water/Sewer 6 936 224 38 9 6 10 13 14 10
Total Utilities 101 1,046 346 186 296 104 130 136 117 115
Payroll 457 1,331 935 939 677 390 640 715 749 550
Marketing 0 23 5 2 61 23 14 15 24 15
Reserve n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 250
Total Operating Expenses 2,603 3,941 3,305 3,313 2,919 2,221 2,858 2,861 2,965 2,454
Note: columns with low, high, average, and median figures may not add to total
Source: Property Managers; Crown Appraisal Group
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The net operating income is estimated by deducting the operating expenses from the effective
gross income. The pro forma is shown below.

Pro Forma Operating Statement as conventional or unrestricted
Chester Apartments Value 1
24 units
% of EGI Per Unit Amount

Potential Rental Revenue 104.2%  $5,960  $143,040
Less: Vacancy and Collection Loss @ 5.0% -5.2% -298 -7,152
Effective Rent 99.0% 5,662 135,888
Plus Other Revenue:

Other Income 1.0% 60 1,440
[Effective Gross Income 100.0% 5,722 137,328|
Less: Operating Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 2.1% 121 2,907

Insurance 2.5% 142 3,413

Repairs and Maintenance 12.2% 700 16,800

General and Administrative 4.8% 275 6,600

Management Fees @ 5.0% 5.0% 286 6,866

Utilities

Electric 1.8% 105
Water/Sewer 0.2% 10

Total Utilities 2.0% 115 2,760

Payroll 9.6% 550 13,200

Marketing 0.3% 15 360

Reserve 4.4% 250 6,000
Total Operating Expenses 42.9% 2,454 58,906
[Net Operating Income 57.1% 3,268 78,422 |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Capitalization Rate Discussion

Capitalization is the process by which net operating income is converted into a value indication.
A capitalization rate is utilized that most accurately represents the risk associated with receiving
the property's net operating income. A property that has a "safer" income stream is one that has
less risk.

In order to arrive at an appropriate range, emphasis was put on data provided by comparable
sales and analysis of financing techniques.
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Comparable Sales

The comparable sales utilized in the Sales Comparison Approach section indicate an overall
capitalization rate range as shown below. Other data is shown, including the dates of the sales.
Overall, the sales properties are comparable in the sense that they are recent sales of similar
apartment complexes in the greater market area.

Comparable Sales
Overall Capitalization Rates

Name/Location Sale Date Year Built Units Sale Price Price/Unit OAR
Douglas Pines Apts Oct-16 1987 48 1,925,100 40,106 7.02%
Douglas, GA

Spanish Mission Sep-15 1976 150 7,000,000 46,667 7.36%
Valdosta, GA

The Reserve at Altama Jul-16 1972 108 6,300,000 58,333 6.75%
Brunswick, GA

Ashley Park Apts Oct-16 2013 84 8,000,000 95,238 5.70%
Thomasville, GA

The Gables of St Augustine May-15 1989 144 4,000,000 27,778 6.10%
Valdosta, GA

[Average, Median, Range | [ 659% || 6.75%]| [ 570% - 7.36%]|

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

A number of differences between the properties and the specifics of transaction, however, make
correlation to a specific rate within the range problematic. The sales do represent current market
activity and characteristics of the properties that are similar to the subject. An overall rate near
the range is appropriate. Certainly, the market data alone does not support the selection of a rate
below 5.70% or a rate above 7.36%. If the sales were the only data source from which to select
the overall capitalization rate, a rate near the middle of the range is most appropriate given the
net operating income figure.

Final consideration of an appropriate rate is through an analysis of lender requirements. After
all, properties such as the subject are usually transferred only after financing has been arranged.
The debt coverage ratio technique calculates an overall rate by multiplying the mortgage
constant by the loan-to-value ratio and then by the debt coverage figure.
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Financing Techniques
Debt Coverage Ratio

The debt coverage ratio technique places emphasis on lender requirements while inherently
providing for a reasonable equity return. Rather than developing an explicit equity dividend, the
equity position is left with a residual dividend return. This has good applicability for properties such
as the subject. Using current parameters, development of the overall rate can be seen in the
following chart.

Overall Rate Derivation

Debt Coverage Ratio Technique

Mtg. Rate Term of Mtg. Mtg. Constant Loan to Value @ DCR OAR
5.00% 30 0.0644 70.0% 1.25 5.64%
5.00% 30 0.0644 75.0% 1.20 5.80%
5.25% 30 0.0663 70.0% 1.25 5.80%
5.25% 30 0.0663 75.0% 1.20 5.96%
5.50% 30 0.0681 70.0% 1.25 5.96%
5.50% 30 0.0681 75.0% 1.20 6.13%

[ roundedto 56% - 6.1% |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Given the specific characteristics of the property, the overall capitalization rate range derived from
the debt coverage ratio appears to be reasonable.

Band of Investment

There are two primary components utilized in the band of investment technique. These are the debt
and equity components. Both are explicitly developed. A weighted average, which combines these
two components, is used to capitalize the net operating income. The strength of the band of
investment is that it has long been used by real estate market participants in developing an overall
rate. The band of investment technique quantifies the appropriate overall rate as follows:

Overall Rate Derivation
Band of Investment Technique

Interest Weighted
Rate Amort. Constant Average
5.00% 30 75%  (loan to value) x 0.0644 = 4.831%
25% (equity to value) x 6.0% = 1.500%
Overall Rate = 6.331%
| Rounded To: 6.3% |

Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Conclusion

In summarizing, most of the market-based indicators suggest that a rate toward the middle of the
range is most appropriate. The weakness in the rates indicated by the comparable sales is that the
figures are historic. The overall rates from the comparable sales are also suspect to relatively wide
fluctuations when relatively minor changes are made (as an example, an change to the net operating
income of only $1,000 on a $1,000,000 sale impacts the overall rate by 10 basis points). The
strength in the debt coverage and the band of investment techniques, is that they are based on real
participants and real mortgage rates. The information from the latter analysis suggests that the
appropriate rate is in the upper 6.0% range.

In the final analysis, an overall rate that lies between the comparable sale and financing technique
analysis of 6.75% is selected as being appropriate to accurately reflect the risk characteristics arising
from the income stream. The rate selected falls within the ranges indicated by comparable sales, and
the quantitative overall rate derivation techniques (band of investment and debt coverage ratio).
Application of the rate to the pro forma net operating income is shown in the chart below.

Pro Forma Technique Value Conclusion Value 1
Chester Apartments as conventional or unrestricted
Net Operating Income $78,422
Overall Capitalization Rate 6.75%
Value Conclusion 1,161,802
[Rounded To: $1,160,000 |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Value 2-RD, subject to restricted rents

A pro forma is used. Much of the valuation is based on the analysis previously presented. Major

differences (and similarities) are detailed below.

Base Rent

The appropriate unit rent to use is the basic rent figure.

Chester Apartments Value 2-RD
Base Rent Revenue subject to restricted rents
Total % of Size Total Basic Rent
Units total (rsf) rsf Rent/Month Rent/sf Monthly Yearly
1 Bed, 1 Bath 12 50% 674 8,088 $384 $0.57  $4,608 $55,296
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH 11 46% 910 10,010 $412 0.45 4,532 54,384
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 4% 910 910 Non-Revenue
Overall Totals/Averages [ 24 100% 792 19,008] | 381 048 9,140 109,680 ||

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Vacancy
Based on historic.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses are largely based on recent history at the subject. Figures used are shown

below.

Chester Apartments
Operating Expense Estimates

Value 2-RD
subject to restricted rents

Operating Expense Cost/unit
Real Estate Taxes 121
Insurance 142
Repairs & Maintenance 850

General & Administrative 325

Management 42.00
Utilities 105  Electric
10 Water and sewer
Payroll 650
Marketing 15
Reserve 350

Discussion
Based on the current real estate taxes of the
subject as reported by the county.

Based on historic with support from market.

Near the recent historic figures with the recognition
that some of the historic amounts have some costs
better categorized as capital expenditures.

Based on historic.
Based on cost per occupied door per month.

Based on historic with support from market.
Based on historic with support from market.

Based on historic.
Based on historic.

Based on market participant attitudes.
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The pro forma is shown below.

Pro Forma Operating Statement Value 2-RD
Chester Apartments as-is
24 units
% of EGI Per Unit Amount
Potential Rental Revenue 101.7%  $4,570 $109,680
Less: Vacancy and Collection Loss @  3.0% -3.1% -137 -3.290
Effective Rent 98.7% 4,433 106,390
Plus Other Revenue:
Other Income 1.3% 60 1,440
|Effective Gross Income 100.0% 4,493 107,830|
Less: Operating Expenses
Real Estate Taxes 2.7% 121 2,907
Insurance 3.2% 142 3,413
Repairs and Maintenance 18.9% 850 20,400
General and Administrative 7.2% 325 7,800
Management Fees 10.9% 489 11,733
Utilities
Electric 2.3% 105
Water/Sewer 0.2% 10
Total Utilities 2.6% 115 2,760
Payroll 14.5% 650 15,600
Marketing 0.3% 15 360
Reserve 7.8% 350 8,400
Total Operating Expenses 68.0% 3,057 73,373
[Net Operating Income 32.0% 1,436 34,457 |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Capitalization Rate Discussion

The appropriate rate selected should recognize two primary characteristics. There is a need for
affordable housing in the area. Second, the net operating income developed is within the range
at that seen during the prior three years. In that sense, the net operating income is one that is
relatively “safe”. The conclusion is that the appropriate overall rate should be less than that
selected for the market, unrestricted. The question is, of course, how much lower. There is
some information available from RD that helps answer this. The consensus is that, for properties
that are comprised of all (or mostly all) RA units, the appropriate rate should be about 100 basis
points less than the market rate conclusion (the rate used for market unrestricted). For properties
that do not have a high percentage of RA units, the overall rate should not be significantly
different than the overall rate used in the unrestricted valuation. The chart quantifying this is
shown below, with the value opinion shown after.

Overall Capitalization Rate Selection Value 2-RD
Chester Apartments subject to restricted rents
Lease # of % of Selected  Weighted
Guarantor Units Total OAR Rate
Tenant 7 29.2% 6.75%  1.969%
Rental Assistance 17 70.8% 5.75% 4.073%
Total 24 100.0% 6.042%
| Indicated OAR 6.04% |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Pro Forma Technique Value Conclusion Value 2-RD
Chester Apartments subject to restricted rents
Net Operating Income $34,457
Overall Capitalization Rate 6.04%
Value Conclusion 570,315
[Rounded To: $570,000 |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Sales Comparison Approach
Value 1, as conventional or unrestricted

The sales comparison approach is based upon the theory that an informed purchaser will pay no
more for a property than the cost of acquiring an equally desirable substitute property. The principle
of substitution confirms that the maximum value of a property is set by the cost of acquisition of an
equally desirable and valuable substitute property, assuming that substitution can be made without
costly delay. Other appraisal principles and concepts relating to the approach include supply and
demand, balance, and externalities.

In order to obtain an indication of value from the sales comparison approach, recent sales of similar
properties have been analyzed and the sales prices adjusted to reflect dissimilarities between these
properties and the subject. From these sales prices an indication of market value for the subject has
been developed.

One of the fundamental considerations in the sales comparison approach is defining substitute or
comparable properties. Issues that are involved in this consideration involve determination of
physically similar properties as well as similarly located properties. Sales properties analyzed
involve small to medium-sized multi-family properties. All are located in the regional area.

The accuracy of this approach relies upon the similarities, or lack thereof, between the sales
properties and the subject. The greater the differences, the more subjective this valuation technique
becomes. Multi-family properties, like any specialized real estate product, are complex and involve
a variety of considerations. A comparison of sales properties includes reviewing size, location,
financing and date of transaction. In essence, these categories are all tied to one over-riding factor--
the financial aspects and implications arising from the improvements.
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The initial sales search was limited to sales of similar size properties, built during the same time
period as the subject, having the same general economic characteristics, and having occurred within
the immediate market area during the past six months. There were no sales meeting these criteria.
When expanding the time frame and geographical area, a sufficient number of comparable sales
were uncovered. While the research uncovered several sales properties which share similar
attributes with the subject, dissimilarities do exist. The map below locates the comparable sales that
were utilized. A detailed write up page and photograph of each sale can be found after the map.
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Sale Comparable 1

General Data

Property Name: Douglas Pines Apts
Property Address: 820 Bowens Mill Rd SE
City: Douglas
County: Coffee
MSA: Not in a MSA
State: GA
Zip: 31533
Renter Segmentation: General

Rent Structure: Market Rate

Sale and Economic Data

Total Per Unit Perrsf % of EGI
Sale Price: $1,925,100
Sale Price/unit: $40,106 Net Operating Income: 135,142 2,815 3.27 100.0%
Sale Price/rsf: $46.64 Overall rate: 7.02%
Sale Date: 10/21/2016 Occupancy at time of sale: 95.0%
Parcel Number: 0117C-131
Legal Description: LL 222 6LD SPRING LAKE APTS.PH I
Buyer (Grantee): Bpp Douglas Pines Llc
Seller (Grantor): Reef Properties Of Georgia Llc
Property Data
Bedrooms Baths Type Size (rsf) Units
Year Built: 1987 2 2.0 Garden 841 48
Size (Number of Units): 48
Rentable Size (rsf): 41,280
Site Size (acres): 7.590
Density (units/acre): 6.3
Floors: 2
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Siding
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable N Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool N Laundry
N Electric N Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio N Clubhouse N Det. Garages
N Gas N Water N Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis N Cov. Storage
Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities N Garbage Disposal N Basement N Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable Y Sewer Y Air Conditioning Y Ceiling Fans Y Lake N Elevators
Y Electric Y Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceilings N Gated N Playground
N Gas Y Water Y W/D Hookups N Security Systemg N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments
Douglas Pines Apartments consists of five two-story buildings. The property is situated on SR-206 (Bowens Mill Road),
1.5 miles west of SR-441, and a mile north of SR-32 and two miles northwest of downtown Douglas.
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Sale Comparable 2

General Data

Property Name: Spanish Mission
Property Address: 422 Connell Rd
City: Valdosta
County: Lowndes
MSA: Valdosta
State: GA
Zip: 31602
Renter Segmentation: General
Rent Structure: Market Rate

Sale and Economic Data

Total Per Unit Perrsf % of EGI
Sale Price: $7,000,000
Sale Price/unit: $46,667 Net Operating Income: 515,200 3,435 2.73 100.0%
Sale Price/rsf: $37.09 Overall rate: 7.36%
Sale Price/gsf: $35.00
Sale Date: 9/9/2015 Occupancy at time of sale: 93.0%
Parcel Number: 0112A-113
Legal Description: SPANISH MISSION APTS
Buyer (Grantee): Magnolia Mission Partners LLC
Seller (Grantor): Valdosta Associates LTD
Property Data
Bedrooms Baths Type Size (rsf)
Year Built: 1976 1 1.0 Garden 890
Size (Number of Units): 150 2 2.0 Garden 1,213
Rentable Size (rsf): 188,716 2 2.5 Townhouse 1,125
Gross Size (gsf): 200,000 3 2.5 Townhouse 1,456
Site Size (acres): 12.000
Density (units/acre): 12.5
Floors: 2
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Stucco
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities

N Cable N Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool N Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio Y Clubhouse N Det. Garages
N Gas N Water N Microwave N Att. Garage Y Tennis N Cov. Storage

Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage

Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement Y Fit. Center Y Car Wash

Y Cable Y Sewer Y Air Conditioning N Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash Y Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceilings N Gated Y Playground
Y Gas Y Water Y W/D Hookups N Security Systemg N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments
Spanish Mission Apartments is located on the northeast corner of Connell Road and Tara Drive in Valdosta, Georgia. It is
3 miles north of downtown Valdosta in Lowndes County.
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Sale Comparable 3

General Data

Property Name: The Reserve at Altama
Property Address: 5801 Altama Ave
City: Brunswick
County: Glynn
MSA: Brunswick
State: GA
Zip: 31525
Renter Segmentation: General
Rent Structure: Market Rate

Sale and Economic Data

Total Per Unit  Perrsf % of EGI
Sale Price: $6,300,000
Sale Price/unit: $58,333 Net Operating Income: 425,250 3,938 3.37 100.0%
Sale Price/rsf: $49.90 Overall rate: 6.75%
Sale Price/gsf: $46.71 EGIM: 14.8
Sale Date: 7/5/2016 Occupancy at time of sale: 98.2%
Parcel Number: 03-00925
Legal Description: 10.45 AC ALTAMA
Buyer (Grantee): Reserve at Altama, LLC
Seller (Grantor): South Shore, LLC
Property Data
Bedrooms Baths Type Size (rsf) Units
Year Built: 1972 1 1.0 Garden 960 20
Size (Number of Units): 108 2 1.5 Garden 1,160 72
Rentable Size (rsf): 126,240 3 2.0 Garden 1,470 16
Gross Size (gsf): 134,886
Site Size (acres): 10.220
Density (units/acre): 10.6
Floors: 2
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Combination
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable Y Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool Y Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio Y Clubhouse N Det. Garages
N Gas Y Water Y Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis Y Cov. Storage
N Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities N Garbage Disposal N Basement Y Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable N Sewer Y Air Conditioning N Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceilings N Gated Y Playground
Y Gas N Water Y W/D Hookups N Security Systemg N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Other Comments
The Reserve at Altama is located on the west side of Altama Ave south of Chapel Crossing Rd about 5 miles north of
downtown Brunswick.
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General Data

Sale Comparable 4

Property Name:
Property Address:
City:

County:

MSA:

State:

Zip:

Renter Segmentation:

Rent Structure:

Ashley Park Apartments
1 Ashley Park P1

Not in a MSA

Thomasville

Thomas

GA

31792
General
Market Rate

Sale and Economic Data

Other Comments

Total Per Unit Perrsf % of EGI
Sale Price: $8,000,000
Sale Price/unit: 95,238 Net Operating Income: 456,000 5,429 5.06 100.0%
Sale Price/rsf: $88.80 Overall rate: 5.70%
Sale Price/gsf: $54.24
Sale Date: 10/28/2016 Occupancy at time of sale: 99.0%
Parcel Number: 2051-317
Legal Description: 25.61 AC/ W BYPASS @ SUNSET DR/Ashley Park
Buyer (Grantee): Young America Property, LLC
Seller (Grantor): Ashley Park Llc
Property Data
Bedrooms Baths Type Size (rsf) Units
Year Built: 2013 1 1.0 Garden 644 6
Size (Number of Units): 84 1 1.0 Garden 751 6
Rentable Size (rsf): 90,090 2 2.0 Garden 1,047 48
Gross Size (gsf): 147,480 3 2.0 Garden 1,311 24
Site Size (acres): 25.610
Density (units/acre): 3.3
Floors: 4
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Combination
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable Y Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace N Pool Y Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range Y Balcony/Patio Y Clubhouse N Det. Garages
N Gas Y Water Y Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis N Cov. Storage
Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities Y Garbage Disposal N Basement Y Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable N Sewer Y Air Conditioning Y Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceilings Y Gated Y Playground
Y Gas N Water N W/D Hookups Y Security Systemg N Bus. Center N Racquetball

Ashley Park Apartments is located on the north side of Sunset Dr east of US 319 about 2 miles southwest of downtown
Thomasville. This property is in Thomas County.
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Sale Comparable 5

General Data

Property Name: The Gables of St Augustine
Property Address: 1415 N Saint Augustine Rd
City: Valdosta
County: Lowndes
MSA: Valdosta
State: GA
Zip: 31602
Renter Segmentation: General
Rent Structure: Market Rate

Sale and Economic Data

Other Comments

Total Per Unit Perrsf % of EGI
Sale Price: $4,000,000
Sale Price/unit: $27,778 Net Operating Income: 244,000 1,694 2.29 100.0%
Sale Price/rsf: $37.48 Overall rate: 6.10%
Sale Price/gsf: $30.28 EGIM: N/A
Sale Date: 5/29/2015 Occupancy at time of sale: 96.5%
Parcel Number: 0081A-003
Legal Description: LL 14 & 15LD 12 TRACT 1
Buyer (Grantee): Hi-lo Investments Llc
Seller (Grantor): Benton Properties Inc
Property Data
Bedrooms Baths Type Size (rsf) Units
Year Built: 1989 0 1.0 Garden 360 20
Size (Number of Units): 144 1 1.0 Garden 480 25
Rentable Size (rsf): 106,728 1 2.0 Garden 500 5
Gross Size (gsf): 132,080 2 2.0 Garden 792 34
Site Size (acres): 26.990 2 2.0 Garden 800 20
Density (units/acre): 5.3 3 2.0 Garden 1,040 35
Floors: 3 3 2.0 Garden 1,140 5
Property Design: Walk Up
Exterior: Combination
Landlord Paid Utilities Unit Amenities Complex Amenities
N Cable Y Sewer Y Refrigerator N Fireplace Y Pool Y Laundry
N Electric Y Trash Y Range N Balcony/Patio N Clubhouse N Det. Garages
N Gas Y Water N Microwave N Att. Garage N Tennis N Cov. Storage
Y Dishwasher N Carport N Jacuzzi N Open Storage
Tenant Paid Utilities N Garbage Disposal N Basement N Fit. Center N Car Wash
Y Cable N Sewer Y Air Conditioning N Ceiling Fans N Lake N Elevators
Y Electric N Trash N Washer/Dryer N Vaulted Ceilings N Gated N Playground
Y Gas N Water Y W/D Hookups N Security Systemg N Bus. Center N Racquetball

The Gables of St Augustine is located on the northeast side of N Saint Augustine Rd west od I-75 about 4 miles northwest
of downtown Valdosta. This property is in Lowndes County.
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Comparable Sales Data

The sales that were utilized to develop the value of the subject are detailed in the chart that follows.
The sale price per unit of comparison is used to develop the value of the subject. To arrive at a value
conclusion, the comparables are adjusted for dissimilarities to the subject with respect to property
rights conveyed, financing terms, conditions of sale, date of sale, location, physical and economic
attributes. Adjustments are made based on a comparison with one another as well as the appraisers’
knowledge about the sales as they relate to the subject. Based on discussions with market
participants, the marketing period and exposure period for each of the sales is estimated at 12
months. The chart also notes the adjustments.

Chester Apartments Value 1
Improved Sales as conventional or unrestricted
Sale Subject 1 2 3 4 5
Name Chester Apartments ~ Douglas Pines Apts ~ Spanish Mission The Reserve at Altama Ashley Park Apts The Gables of St Augustine
Location 400 Wynne Avenue 820 Bowens Mill Rd SE 422 Connell Rd 5801 Altama Ave 1 Ashley Park P1 1415 N Saint Augustine Rd
City or Township Chester Douglas Valdosta Brunswick Thomasville Valdosta
County Dodge Coffee Lowndes Glynn Thomas Lowndes
MSA Not in a MSA Not in a MSA Valdosta Brunswick Not in a MSA Valdosta
Date of Sale October-16 September-15 July-16 October-16 May-15
Sale Price $1,925,100 $7,000,000 $6,300,000 $8,000,000 $4,000,000
Building Size (units) 24 48 150 108 84 144
Building Size (inc. community) 19,488 41,280 188,716 126,240 90,090 106,728
Sale Price/Unit $40,106 $46,667 $58,333 $95,238 $27,778
Sale Price/sf $46.64 $37.09 $49.90 $88.80 $37.48
Year Built 1985 1987 1976 1972 2013 1989
Site Size 4.140 7.590 12.000 10.220 25.610 26.990
Coverage 11% 12% 36% 28% 8% 9%
Average Unit Size (sf) 812 860 1,258 1,169 1,073 741
Units per Acre 5.8 6.3 12.5 10.6 3.3 5.3
EGI/unit $5,722 $2,815 $3,435 $3,938 $5,429 $1,694
EGIM 14.2 13.6 14.8 17.5 16.4
Expenses/Unit $2,454 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
NOI/unit $3,268 $2,815 $3,435 $3,938 $5,429 $1,694
OAR 7.02% 7.36% 6.75% 5.70% 6.10%
Sale Adjustments
Property Rights Conveyed Fee Simple Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Financing Terms Market Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Conditions of Sale Arm's Length Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Market Conditions Current Similar Similar Similar Similar Similar
Total Sale Adjustments 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Adjusted Price per Unit $40,106 $46,667 $58,333 $95,238 $27,778
Property Adjustments
Location 400 Wynne Avenue 820 Bowens Mill Rd SE 422 Connell Rd 5801 Altama Ave 1 Ashley Park P 1415 N Saint Augustine Rd
Chester Douglas Valdosta Brunswick Thomasville Valdosta
Dodge Coffee Lowndes Glynn Thomas Lowndes
Population 1,536 12,002 55,754 15,133 18,413 55,754
Comparison to subject Superior Superior Superior Superior Superior
-10% -25% -10% -10% -25%
Physical
Avg. Unit Size 812 860 1,258 1,169 1,073 741
Comparison to subject Similar Superior Superior Superior Inferior
0% -20% -15% -10% 5%
Age 1985 1987 1976 1972 2013 1989
Quality/Condition Average Average Below Average Below Average Good Average
Comparison to subject Similar Inferior Inferior Superior Similar
0% 5% 5% -15% 0%
Total Property Adjustments -10% -40% -20% -35% -20%
|Value Indication per Unit $36,096 $28,000 $46,667 $61,905 $22,222

Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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As shown, no sale adjustments are indicated as appropriate for property rights conveyed, financing
terms, conditions of sale, and market conditions, as they are considered to be the same as the subject.
With respect to property adjustments, all location, physical, and economic attributes were reviewed
— the analysis of each comparable sale is below.

Douglas Pines Apartments (Comparable 1) - The comparable has a superior (better) general
location at the time of sale when compared to the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward.
The adjustments total -10%.  This results in a value indication of $36,096/unit for Chester
Apartments.

Spanish Mission (Comparable 2) - The comparable has a superior (better) general location at the
time of sale when compared to the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward. On average,
the unit size at the comparable is larger, which is considered to be a superior attribute, as compared
to the average unit size at the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward. At the time of sale,
the general physical aspects of the comparable (such as age and quality/condition attributes) were
inferior to the subject, and an adjustment is made. Combined, the adjustments total -40%. This
results in a value indication of $28,000/unit for Chester Apartments.

The Reserve at Altama (Comparable 3) - The comparable has a superior (better) general location
at the time of sale when compared to the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward. On
average, the unit size at the comparable is larger, which is considered to be a superior attribute, as
compared to the average unit size at the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward. At the
time of sale, the general physical aspects of the comparable (such as age and quality/condition
attributes) were inferior to the subject, and an adjustment is made. Combined, the adjustments total -
20%. This results in a value indication of $46,667/unit for Chester Apartments.

Ashley Park Apartments (Comparable 4) - The comparable has a superior (better) general
location at the time of sale when compared to the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward.
On average, the unit size at the comparable is larger, which is considered to be a superior attribute,
as compared to the average unit size at the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward. At the
time of sale, the general physical aspects of the comparable (such as age and quality/condition
attributes) were superior to the subject, and an adjustment is made. Combined, the adjustments total
-35%. This results in a value indication of $61,905/unit for Chester Apartments.

The Gables of St Augustine (Comparable 5) - The comparable has a superior (better) general
location at the time of sale when compared to the subject, and the comparable is adjusted downward.
On average, the unit size at the comparable is smaller, which is considered to be an inferior attribute,
as compared to the average unit size at the subject, and the comparable is adjusted upward.
Combined, the adjustments total -20%.  This results in a value indication of $22,222/unit for
Chester Apartments.
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All of the sales were given credence when determining the value via this approach. This
approach is used only as support for the primary approach, and the value conclusion reflects a
hypothetical condition. This value indication is concluded to as representative of the property’s
value as if operated under the hypothetical conventional, market rate scenario. A value conclusion
of $39,000/unit is selected to represent the market value as of the date of valuation. This indicates
an aggregate value of $1,000,000. The following summarizes the projections of value via the sales
comparison approach.

Sales Comparison Approach Summary Value 1
Chester Apartments as conventional or unrestricted
Unadjusted Value Range Per Unit 27,778 - 95,238
Indicated Value Range (rounded) 700,000 - 2,300,000
Adjusted Value Range Per Unit 22,222 - 61,905
Indicated Value Range (rounded) 500,000 - 1,500,000
Average, Median (adjusted) 38,978 36,096
Indicated Value (rounded) 935,000

Value per Unit 39,000 /unit
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Prospective Market Value

The prospective market value subject to restricted rents is projected under the extraordinary
assumption that the proposed renovations to the subject property are complete. This valuation
also assumes that the subject is operated as a subsidized, rural housing property. The income
capitalization approach is utilized to project the prospective market value, subject to restricted
rents (Value 3). The income capitalization approach and cost approach are used to arrive at the
prospective market value, as conventional or unrestricted (Value 4).

Income Capitalization Approach
Value 3, prospective, subject to restricted rents

The income capitalization approach to value opinion is based on the economic principle of
anticipation--that the value of an income producing property is the present value of anticipated
future net benefits. Other appraisal principles and concepts upon which this approach is based
include supply and demand, change, substitution, and externalities.

Net operating income projections (future net benefits) are translated into a present value indication
using a capitalization process. In this appraisal, a pro forma technique is explicitly used. A
discounted case flow technique is not considered appropriate. Market value is projected through the
use of market derived financial projections and return parameters. More specifically, the
capitalization process steps in the pro forma technique are as follows:

o The effective gross revenue is projected by the rents on the units less an allowance for vacancy, plus
other income.

e Expenses inherent in the operation of the property, including real estate taxes, insurance, repairs and
maintenance, general and administrative, management, utilities, payroll, marketing, and reserve are
projected.

o The net operating income is derived by deducting the operating expenses from the effective gross
revenue.

e The net operating income is then capitalized to obtain an indication of value.

With respect to this valuation, the effective gross income, which is comprised primarily of
apartment rent, should be above historic levels. The apartment rent will recognize the economic
benefits of the renovation as the units will be in better physical (and functional) condition. The
apartment rent will be constrained by the lesser of market rent or LIHTC constraints.

With respect to operating expense line items, Real Estate Taxes, Insurance, General &
Administrative, Management Fee, Ultilities, and Marketing should be near historic. Repairs &
Maintenance should be lower due to the renovations. Payroll should also be lower, also due to
the renovation. An explicit Reserve will be recognized.
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Pro Forma Capitalization

Base Rent Revenue — is based on the market rent levels for the units at the subject. The annual
market rent is shown in the chart below. The rent is based on the lesser of market rent or LIHTC
restrictions.

Chester Apartments Value 3
Base Rent Revenue prospective
subject to restricted rents
Rent Total % of Size Total Market Rent
Constraint Units  total (rsf) rsf  Rent/Month Rent/sf Monthly Yearly
1 Bed, 1 Bath LIHTC 12 50% 674 8,088 451 $0.67 $5412  $64,944
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH LIHTC 11 46% 910 10,010 529 $0.58 $5819 69,828
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 4% 910 910 Non-Revenue
Overall Totals/Averages 24 100% 792 19,008] | 468 059 11231 134,772||
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
Vacancy — Stabilized vacancy has been discussed in the Market Area Overview section.

Vacancy is estimated at 3%, and is applied to base rent revenue.

Other Income — Other revenues include laundry income, late/nsf charges, application fees, forfeited
deposits, termination/restoration fees and other miscellaneous incomes. Other revenue is estimated
at $60/unit. This is a net income line item component, with vacancy inherently considered.

Operating Expenses — are based on historic and comparable data. The comparable data has been
presented previously. As noted, Real Estate Taxes, Insurance, General & Administrative,
Management Fee, Utilities, and Marketing should be near historic. Repairs & Maintenance
should be lower due to the renovations. Payroll should also be lower, also due to the renovation.
An explicit Reserve will be recognized.
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Chester Apartments
Operating Expense Estimates

subject to restricted rents

Value 3
prospective

Operating Expense Cost/unit
Real Estate Taxes 133
Insurance 142
Repairs & Maintenance 750

General & Administrative 325

Management 49.00
Utilities 105  Electric
10 Water and sewer
Payroll 600
Marketing 15
Reserve 350

Based on the current real estate taxes of the
subject as reported by the county, and increased
to reflect the renovations.

Based on historic with support from market.

Based on cost per occupied door per month.

Based on historic with support from market.
Based on historic with support from market.

Near the lower end of historic range reflecting
the renovation.

Lower end of the historic range reflecting
the renovation.

Based on historic.

Based on historic.

Based on market participant attitudes recognizing
the renovation.

Discussion

Total Operating Expenses — The chart below compares historical and market derived operating

expense data with the pro forma.

Pro Forma Operating Expense Estimate & Comparisons (per unit basis) Value 3
Chester Apartments prospective
subject to restricted rents
Crown Appraisal Group Survey Year End Historical Subject
Low High Avg. Med. 2013 2014 2015 2016 Budget 2017 Budget Pro Forma
Real Estate Taxes 125 432 261 220 177 145 123 148 165 133
Insurance 154 499 263 216 85 161 161 178 158 142
Repairs and Maintenance 319 1,198 696 691 878 737 1,062 886 958 750
General and Administrative 204 527 300 283 416 275 319 300 323 325
Management Fees 337 533 498 522 330 386 409 483 472 570
Utilities
Electric 90 190 122 109 197 98 120 123 103 105
Water/Sewer 6 936 224 38 9 6 10 13 14 10
Total Utilities 101 1,046 346 186 296 104 130 136 117 115
Payroll 457 1,331 935 939 677 390 640 715 749 600
Marketing 0 23 5 2 61 23 14 15 24 15
Reserve n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 350
Total Operating Expenses 2,603 3,941 3,305 3,313 2,919 2,221 2,858 2,861 2,965 3,001
Note: columns with low, high, average, and median figures may not add to total
Source: Property Managers; Crown Appraisal Group
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The net operating income is estimated by deducting the operating expenses from the effective

gross income. The pro forma is shown below.

Pro Forma Operating Statement subject to restricted rents

Chester Apartments prospective

24 units Value 3

% of EGI Per Unit Amount

Potential Rental Revenue 102.0%  $5,616 $134,772

Less: Vacancy and Collection Loss @ 3.0% -3.1% -168 -4,043

Effective Rent 98.9% 5,447 130,729
Plus Other Revenue:

Other Income 1.1% 60 1,440
[Effective Gross Income 100.0% 5,507 132,169|
Less: Operating Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 2.4% 133 3,198

Insurance 2.6% 142 3,413

Repairs and Maintenance 13.6% 750 18,000

General and Administrative 5.9% 325 7,800

Management Fees 10.4% 570 13,689

Utilities

Electric 1.9% 105 2,520
Water/Sewer 0.2% 10 240

Total Utilities 2.1% 115 2,760

Payroll 10.9% 600 14,400

Marketing 0.3% 15 360

Reserve 6.4% 350 8,400
Total Operating Expenses 54.5% 3,001 72,019
[Net Operating Income 455% 2,506 60,150 |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Capitalization Rate Discussion

Page 64

Capitalization is the process by which net operating income is converted into a value indication.
A capitalization rate is utilized that most accurately represents the risk associated with receiving
the property's net operating income. A property that has a "safer" income stream is one that has
less risk.

In order to arrive at an appropriate range, emphasis was put on data provided by comparable
sales and analysis of financing techniques.

It is noted that Attachment 7-A of Chapter 7 of the USDA Rural Development handbook states
the following:

Use of an overall rate from the conventional market, which reflects conventional financing, is
appropriate because all favorable financing will be valued separately from the market value,
subject to restricted rents, of the real estate.
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The handbook also notes that there is additional value of RA (rental assistance) to the net
operating income stream through reducing the risk of investment by improving the durability of
the [rental] income stream (through the assistance of the rent subsidy). The handbook further
recognizes that the overall rate can be adjusted downward to account for the reduced risk due to
RA.

Before consideration of the ramifications of the RA units, an overall rate of 6.75% is selected as
being appropriate to accurately reflect the risk characteristics arising from the income stream. The
rate selected falls within the ranges indicated by comparable sales, and the quantitative overall rate
derivation techniques (band of investment and debt coverage ratio).

Attachment 7-A of Chapter 7 of the USDA Rural Development handbook states the following:

When the subject property has RA, the appraisal must include a discussion of the Section 521 Rental Assistance
Program, the number of RA units at the subject, and how RA affects the market value, subject to restricted
rents, of the property. Rental assistance is a rent subsidy provided to owners of 514/515 projects. The renter of
an RA unit is required to pay a tenant contribution toward the approved shelter cost (rent plus tenant based
utilities) of the unit that is equal to no more than 30 percent of his/her income. RA is the portion of the
approved shelter cost paid by the Agency to compensate a borrower for the difference between the approved
shelter cost and the tenant contribution. RA usually adds value to a 514/515 project in three ways: 1) it
guarantees that the scheduled base rate rent for all occupied RA units will be attained; 2) it usually increases
demand for the subject's units and consequently decreases the vacancy rate; and 3) it reduces the risk of
investment in the subject project by improving the durability of the income stream. Rental assistance need not
be separately valued; the value of RA can be incorporated within the market value, subject to restricted rents.
This can be accomplished within the Income Approach by taking into account the three ways that RA increases
value, listed above, as follows. 1) Base rate rents should be included as Potential Gross Income (PGI) in the
restricted pro forma; 2) a vacancy and collection loss factor that reflects the amount of RA at the property
should be included; and 3) a capitalization rate for the subject may be adjusted downward to account for the
reduced risk to the investor due to RA.

Based on market participant attitudes and prior experience in the valuation of subsidized properties,
overall capitalization rates for properties that have 100% subsidized tenancy typically are +£100 basis
points lower than the overall capitalization rates of similar properties than are market rate properties.
This is due to market participant attitudes that view the income that is provided by a government
funded source to be “safer” than income that is provided from market rate tenants.

When arriving at an opinion of the Market Value of the fee simple estate, as conventional or
unrestricted, subject to the short term leases as of the date of valuation a weighted average
technique is utilized to arrive at an overall capitalization rate conclusion. The weighted average
technique take the relative “safeness” of the income streams attributable to the rental assistance
and non rental assistance units at the property into consideration. The chart below summarizes
the technique utilized to arrive at a final overall capitalization rate opinion.
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Overall Capitalization Rate Selection

subject to restricted rents

Value 3
prospective

Lease # of
Guarantor Units
Tenant 7
Rental Assistance 17
Total 24

Selected  Weighted
OAR Rate

6.75% 1.969%
5.75% 4.073%

6.042%

Indicated OAR 6.04% |

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

Recognizing that about 71% of the units have RA, an overall rate of 6.04% is selected as being
appropriate to accurately reflect the risk characteristics arising from the subject income stream.
Application of the rate to the pro forma net operating income is shown in the chart below.

Pro Forma Technique Value Conclusion Value 3
Chester Apartments prospective
subject to restricted rents
Net Operating Income $60,150
Overall Capitalization Rate 6.04%
Value Conclusion 995,579
[Rounded To: $995,000 |

Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Value 4, prospective, as conventional or unrestricted

As has been discussed, the prospective market value market value upon completion and as stabilized
(unrestricted rents) assumes that the subject is operated as a conventional, market rate property.

The effective gross income, which is comprised primarily of apartment rent, should be above
historic levels. The apartment rent will recognize the economic benefits of the renovation as the
units will be in better physical (and functional) condition. The apartment rent will be
constrained by market rent.

The total operating expense estimate should be lower due to renovation (reduced Repairs &
Maintenance as well as Payroll) as well as reduced General & Administrative and Management
expenses. The Marketing expense should be higher than historic, and there will be an explicit
reserve expense.

Many of the parameters used in this valuation have been extensively discussed and analyzed. A
summary of them follows.

Chester Apartments Value 4
Operating Expense Estimates prospective
as conventional or unrestricted

Operating Expense Cost/unit Discussion
Real Estate Taxes 133 Based on the current real estate taxes of the

subject as reported by the county, and increased
to reflect the renovations.

Insurance 142 Based on historic with support from market.

Repairs & Maintenance 600 Below historic; reflects the renovation as well as the
recognition that the property would not be as well
maintained if it were to be operated as a market rate one.

General & Administrative 275 Below historic; market rate properties have lower
general & administrative costs than subsidized

properties.

Management 5.00% Percent of effective gross income rather than fee

per occupied door per month.

Utilities 105  Electric Based on historic with support from market.
10 Water and sewer Based on historic with support from market.
Payroll 500 Based on the size of the property, a total cost per year,

or a cost per month, is the appropriate manner in which to
develop this operating expense estimate. The expense
recognizes the renovation and is based on the probable
cost if the property were operated as a market rate one.

Marketing 15 Above historic; market rate properties
require a higher cost for marketing.

Reserve 250 Based on market participant attitudes reflecting
the renovation.

The pro forma and value conclusion are below.
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Chester Apartments Value 4
Base Rent Revenue prospective

as conventional or unrestricted

Total % of Size Total Market Rent
Units total (rsf) rsf  Rent/Month Rent/sf Monthly Yearly
1 Bed, 1 Bath 12 50% 674 8,088 $550 $0.82  $6,600  $79,200
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH 11 46% 910 10,010 $630 0.69 6,930 83,160
2 Bed, 1.5 Bath TH (Non-Revenue) 1 4% 910 910 Non-Revenue
Overall Totals/Averages [ 24 12000 792 19,008 | 564 071 13530 162,360 ||
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
Pro Forma Operating Statement prospective
Chester Apartments as conventional or unrestricted
24 units Value 4
% of EGI Per Unit Amount
Potential Rental Revenue 104.3%  $6,765 $162,360
Less: Vacancy and Collection Loss @ 5.0% -5.2% -338 -8,118
Effective Rent 99.1% 6,427 154,242
Plus Other Revenue:
Other Income 0.9% 60 1,440
[Effective Gross Income 100.0% 6,487 155,682
Less: Operating Expenses
Real Estate Taxes 2.1% 133 3,198
Insurance 2.2% 142 3,413
Repairs and Maintenance 9.2% 600 14,400
General and Administrative 4.2% 275 6,600
Management Fees 5.0% 324 7,784
Utilities
Electric 1.6% 105 2,520
Water/Sewer 0.2% 10 240
Total Utilities 1.8% 115 2,760
Payroll 7.7% 500 12,000
Marketing 0.2% 15 360
Reserve 3.9% 250 6,000
Total Operating Expenses 36.3% 2,355 56,515
[Net Operating Income 63.7% 4,132 99,167 |
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
Pro Forma Technique Value Conclusion Value 4

Chester Apartments

prospective

as conventional or unrestricted

Net Operating Income $99,167
Overall Capitalization Rate 6.75%
Value Conclusion 1,469,144
[Rounded To: $1,470,000 |

Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Cost Approach

Value 4, prospective, as conventional or unrestricted

The cost approach aggregates land value as if vacant, plus the cost to replace the existing
improvements, less any accrued depreciation. The cost approach reflects value by recognizing that
participants relate value to cost. Appraisal principles and concepts relating to this approach include
substitution, supply and demand, balance, externalities, and highest and best use. Land valuation
concepts and principles include anticipation, change, supply and demand, substitution, and balance.
This approach provides an opinion of value principally based on the principle of substitution that
states that:

No rational person would pay more for a property than that amount by which he or she can obtain, by
purchase of a site and construction of a building, without undue delay, a property of equal desirability
and utility.

Methodology

The cost approach involves several steps (presented below) that have been employed to project the
value of the subject:

0 Comparable land sales are typically analyzed and adjusted to provide an estimate of the subject's site
as if vacant.

0 The improvement cost was projected using the Marshall Valuation Service.

0 The amount of accrued depreciation or obsolescence (physical, functional and economic) has been
projected and deducted from the replacement cost opinion.

0 The depreciated replacement cost opinion is then added to the land value projected for the subject site.

0 The sum of these opinions produces an indication of value by the cost approach.
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Value 8, Land Value

Typically, land sales within the area are utilized to develop a land value. However, a search for
comparable land sales in the subject’s market area found insufficient results. The reality is that
few properties have been acquired to construct new multi-family properties in this part of the
state. This is understood through a review of the rent comparables — the newest of these was
constructed in 2008 — 9 years ago.

With the absence of comparable land sales, the appraiser is left with several alternative
techniques. These include extraction, allocation, and a number of income capitalization methods
such as land residual, ground rent capitalization, and discounted cash flow analysis.

Extraction and land residual methods have too many variables to be of use. (In part, improved
sales are required, with an accurate knowledge of the contributory improvement value to those
sales.) Ground rent capitalization is often used for properties that are ground leased. The
discounted cash flow analysis is appropriate for subdivision development valuation. Neither of
these are appropriate in this case.

Of the alternative techniques, allocation is left. As noted in The Appraisal of Real Estate, 14
edition, this technique is applicable when relatively few sales are available, which is certainly
the case here. However, the same text notes that the allocation method does not produce credible
value indications unless ample sales data is available. This commentary is somewhat ironic —
after all, if ample sales data was available, the allocation method would not even be considered
by the appraiser.

Allocation, though, incorporates the principles of balance and contribution. That is, market
participants recognize there is a land value for property that is based on typical ratios that
translates to specific value conclusions. To that end, the appraiser has worked on many multi-
family developments and had discussion with many developers of those properties. In major
MSA locations, developers are willing to pay $10,000 per unit to $15,000 per unit for sites to
develop multifamily. For smaller MSAs, land costs are somewhat less. In rural settings, the
appraiser has observed and developers have indicated prices of £$1,000 up to +£$8,000 per unit.
The range is understandably large due to the variables inherent in the specific attributes of the
particular site in question.

The subject is part of a number of properties that were appraised at the same time period. The
properties that comprise this portfolio share similar locational features as the subject. The
majority of the properties are located in rural Georgia areas. In the course of valuing these
properties, a number of land sales were uncovered. Though the sales are not all in the same
county, they share a number of attributes similar to the subject. They are generally recent and
they are in a generally similar (non-urban) locale. The map and sales are summarized below.
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FCharjotle
-

#af Sale Location  Adjusted

shol  Adiespen Pricoted E : I £ t
1 10% § 938 The Laser lmvestment Group Sandia East 11 Apartmests OWO9E01 Muti Famdy
2 Whitied 3432 Dug Gap Bd SW 22950 Al Emronmental Services, LLC Jeanoette 5 Longley  13-103-03-000 Comemercial
3 Ha 2941 Lights Ferry R4 18680 Senshern Hevitage Hen Blds LLC  MeGerwsn Famdy Faring Partnersdis 08118 0010044  Muski Farsy Commnercial
4 Gm 5999 SR 99 26,000 LWD Properties LLC Ameris Bank 03.25289  Mui-Family Commercial
3 Baldwin 1963 N Jefferson 5t 11,000 Diaes Tomlin First American Bask & Trust 085003 Multi-Family Commercial
6 Ha 2380 Spreg Re 10,120 10§ 6385 -lo% § 5748 Sgring Road Groap LLC Heery B Humphries 08005 000042 Muli-Fasshy Coemnercial
7 Libenty SEQ E Ogleshorpe Hwy & Mclntosh Lake Rd 5.660 Termmore Development LLC Frier Land Hokdings [nc 101-039 M- Famdy
§  Lumplkin Rock House Rd 14430 William Masson RAD Enterprines (/78-000-158-000 Meut Famdy
9 Jackson 915 BE Wright Rd 15.000 CBD Investmesss LLC Rocio Woody Altmans 078029 Mubi- Family Comenercial
10 Jackson 970 Sase 52 12000 4 E Mascn Manor LP Olyvegoia Commmmtion bne 005-007C Mt Famady
11 Jones 140 Semior Center Way 10.279 7 5% Water Tower Park Semor Village LP Water Tower Park bvestments  GOT.00.037 Muti Famdy
12 Hal 5108 Moustan View Picy 29450 William N Tuk Doc Eaterprises loc. 09-0053-00-009  Mubi- Family Comenercial
13 Bullech 1851 S&S Rakoad Bed Rd 38600 176 5 3290 -25% 5 2467 Heacon Place Statesboro LLC NA 107 000005 007 Nl Frmdy
14 Catoosa Sexmmer Brocze & Sumy La 7030 T2 5 4514 0% 5 4514 Stsmmner Breeze Pak LP Jobwmry Coots & Dan Bradioed 0023A080 M- Farsily Commnercial
15 Houston 316 Brandley Rd £500 Brantey MPH LLC Georgia A Over  (CO260081000  Mubs. Fasily Commmercial
16 Wallcer Chickamasga Ave 15390 Disiel Bust Stein Constroction Co., lnc 2005034 Muki-Family Cosenercial
17 Frankin SWIQ Commseroe R & Cross Roadi La 17610 Jucdy H Clay CENA-GALLC 028-043  Mudt-Fansdy Commercial
18 Hall 1263 MeEver Rd 33320 Amserica’s Home Place, Ine Blenjamin M Smith 06.0001%.00.008  Multi-Famiy Coenmercial
19 Buloch 350 Rucker Ln 24060 BT 5 T % § 576 The Hamprons Statesbore LLC Facker Holdings LLC MS52000004 000 Muti Fandy
20 Trogp W St 5890 3 6343 et 3 Forent Ml Aparsmests, LP West Pot Village, LLC 094-4C-007-088 Ml Famdy
I Trowp 911 N Greeswood St 7900 Kaight LLC Morgaret Amn Maghn 061140090134  Mubi-Famdy Commercial
22 Cherokes 30 Lawrel Canyon Vilage Cir 50550 30 05 6177 -10% 5 5559 Lifesyle 2 Laxed Canyon LLC Lawrel Camyon GPLLC  14-0135-0001 Mol Faendy Office
13 Jackwon NWQ M Ofve R & Harden Ovchard Rd 26.130 KRM Properties, LLC CBNA-GALLC 020 009K Mul- Faibv'Conmercial
24 Houston 1131 § Houston Lake Rd 13370 § 10,848 KKLN Properties LLC State Bank & Trust OW1060 017000  Muki. Farsily Commercial
35 Seephens Terner Rd 800 § 1,306 Chonper Real Entate, LLC D45B Mhi-Fareidy Coerenercial
26 Carroll 1321 Vowom Rd 14760 § 33491 10% $ 3713 Hmven Campus Commmities - Carroliion LLC Yves R Hentrien 3 M- F arnihy Commercial
27 Colquin 2001 TaBokas Poiste Rid 5130 § 35897 o § 40 Talloukas Pomte Apartmeses LP Lyma W Lasseter Muki- Fasmily Comenercial
28 Houston 200 Crestiew Clarch R 28000 § 40,000 -10% § 4500 Asbrry Prskee Associates LLC Houston Heathese Propeetis I 0W1200 100000 Mushi-Farssdy Commnercial
29 Dawson 2201 Pesimeter Rd 15520 § 31443 10% 5 6,100 Farmingtom Woods L Daniel Louis Centofams 93041 Mu Famdy
30 Wame 1400 S 12 5t 11660 5 24374 10% 5 5813 Maria Senicr Gardens LP South Rincon Dievelopment Assoc 86A-9-1 Muti Famdy
31 Thomas 1 Askley Pk I 2610 § 11470 0% 5 3497 Ashley Park LLC H & M brvesment Grosp LLC 086 THO22 N Mot Famady

550 L
1500 5 4832
1837 § 4,857
S0.58 5 106
Souce: County Reconds; Crowa Appraisal Group

As can be seen, fifteen of the sales are proposed for multi-family development. The number of
proposed units is shown in the chart above.
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Analysis and Value Conclusion

As shown, the unadjusted comparable land sales indicate a sale price per unit of $1,042 to
$10,275. The low end range is for a property is a rural town in central Georgia that is located to
the rear of commercial properties with limited visibility. The upper end of the range is for a
property located in close proximity to the Atlantic Ocean. These comparable sales have been
adjusted for location. This narrows the adjusted sale price per unit range to $938 - $7,706 with
an average of $4,857. Due to the subject’s location, a value near the low end of the range is
considered appropriate.

The auditor’s appraised land value is $26,266 or $1,094/unit. This is near the low end of the
range from the comparable land sales. A value conclusion near the low end of the comparable
land sales and near the auditor’s appraised value is considered appropriate.

A point value of $1,100/unit is estimated for the subject land. This indicates an aggregate
value of $26,400 as of the date of valuation. This value is near the auditor’s land value and
near the low end of the range of the comparable sales.
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Improvement Valuation

The Marshall Valuation service has been used to develop the replacement cost of the
improvements. The chart below develops the improvement replacement cost, and the value via
the cost approach.

Improvement Value Value 3
Chester Apartments prospective
subject to restricted rents
Square Unadjusted  Current Local Total Adjusted Total
feet Cost/sf Multiplier Multiplier Multiplier ~ Cost/sf Cost
Multiple Residences, Sec. 12, Average/Good, Class D 19,008 84.55 1.04 0.86 0.89 75.62 1,437,414
Additional buildings 480 84.55 1.04 0.86 0.89 75.62 36,298
Total Cost Estimate 1,473,712
Less: Depreciation
Effective Age 5
Economic Life 60
Depreciation 8.3%
Total Depreciation 122.809
Improvement Cost 1,350,903
[ Improvement Cost (rounded) 1,350,000 |

Source: Marshall Valuation; Crown Appraisal Group

A base cost per square foot is developed. Adjustments are made for current and local
multipliers; the adjusted cost is multiplied by the size of the improvements. After adjusting for
the current and local cost multipliers, the undepreciated replacement cost estimate for the subject
improvements is $1,473,712.

Depreciation/Obsolescence Estimates for Improvements

A depreciated age-life method is used to estimate depreciation. There are two types of
depreciation and/or obsolescence that need to be considered for the improvements. Physical
deterioration and functional/economic obsolescence are considered. Following renovations, the
improvements will be in good physical and functional condition. Marshall Valuation estimates
the economic life of the improvements at 60 years. The effective age of the building (following
renovations) is estimated at 5 years. Total depreciation of the subject improvements is estimated
at 8.3% or $122,809. The total depreciation is deducted from the undepreciated replacement
cost opinion to arrive at a depreciated improvement cost opinion.

Entrepreneurial Incentive

Entrepreneurial incentive is defined in The Appraisal of Real Estate, 14™ Edition, Appraisal
Institute, as follows:

A market derived figure that represents the amount an entrepreneur expects to receive for his or
her contribution to a project and risk.

Typically, properties like the subject are constructed as investment properties. Entrepreneurs, or
developers/builders, of these properties usually seek profit margins of 12% to 25%. Rather than
develop an explicit opinion of entrepreneurial incentive, this item is considered in the Reconciliation
and Final Value Opinion section of the report. The reasoning for the treatment of entrepreneurial
incentive in this manner is that entrepreneurial incentive is, in reality, only realized as a result of how
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well a particular property meets market [participant] attitudes. The reality is that the incentive may
be less than anticipated by a developer, or may be more, depending upon the circumstances.

Conclusion

The cost approach value opinion is reached by adding the land value and depreciated

improvement cost opinions. The following value indication, before entrepreneurial incentive,
is reached for the subject.

Cost Approach Summary land value Value 8
Chester Apartments cost approach total Value 3
Land Value $26,400
Depreciated Improvement Cost 1,350,000
Cost Approach Value Estimate (rounded) 1,375,000
before entrepreneurial incentive
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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Reconciliation and Final Value Opinion

The purpose of this assignment is to develop and report an opinion of value for Chester
Apartments. The specific real property interest, real estate, and type of value have been detailed
within the body of this report. The values developed by the approaches are summarized as follows:

Reconciliation and Final Value Conclusions
Chester Apartments
Value 1 Value 2-RD Value 3 Value 4
prospective prospective
as conventional or unrestricted subject to restricted rents subject to restricted rents as conventional or unrestricted

Income Capitalization Approach 1,160,000 570,000 995,000 1,470,000

Sales Comparison Approach 935,000 n/a n/a n/a

Cost Approach n/a n/a 1,375,000 n/a

before entrepreneurial incentive

Source: Crown Appraisal Group

The methodology and applicability of each approach has been previously explained.

Value 1
The income capitalization approach is the primary approach, with support from the sales comparison

approach.

Value 2-RD
The income capitalization approach is the only approach considered applicable.

Value 3
The income capitalization approach is the primary approach, with support from the cost approach.

Value 4
The income capitalization approach is the primary approach, with support from the cost approach.

Therefore, based upon the analyses and conclusions contained within this report and subject to the
assumptions and limiting conditions contained herein, the value opinions, as of the respective dates
of valuation are:

Value Opinions Date of Value Value
Value 1 - as conventional or unrestricted January 23, 2017 $1,160,000

Value 2-RD - subject to restricted rents January 23, 2017 $570,000
Value 3 - prospective, subject to restricted rents February 1, 2019 $995,000

Value 4 - prospective, as conventional or unrestricted February 1, 2019 $1,470,000
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Interest Credit Subsidy Value Opinion
Value 5

Interest credit is a form of federal assistance available to eligible borrowers that reduces the
effective interest rate of a loan. The USDA Rural Housing Service (RHS or RD) offers direct
loans with favorable terms for affordable housing in the Rural Rental Housing Program and the
Farm Labor Housing Program. The 515 loan falls within this program. In this case, Section 515
permanent loans for new construction and subsequent loans for rehabilitation include interest
rates as low as 1 percent. These loans are made at a “note rate” of interest, but a “basic rate” of
interest to the borrower is typically 1 percent. A monthly mortgage payment is calculated at the
note rate of interest, and the loan is amortized at the note rate of interest, but the borrower's
actual mortgage payment is based on the basic rate of 1 percent. The difference between the note
rate payment and the basic rate payment is the interest credit. The borrower is effectively
subsidized with an income stream represented by the monthly interest credit that is available for
the term of the loan.

In appraisals of Section 515 and Section 538 funded properties, valuation of the interest credit
subsidy (favorable financing) is part of the assignment when the market value, subject to
restricted rents, must be concluded. When interest credit subsidy is the only favorable financing
involved, the security value, on which the loan is based, has two components: 1) the market
value, subject to restricted rents, of the real estate, and 2) the value of the interest credit subsidy.

The value of the interest credit subsidy from RD direct loans on most existing properties can be
calculated by subtracting the monthly debt service at the below-market rate of interest from the
monthly payment at the current rate offered for conventional loans and discounting the
difference by the current conventional interest rate over the remaining loan term. For the
subject, interest credit subsidy values are calculated for the existing Section 515 loan, the
subsequent “new” 515 loan (the existing 515 loan that is rewritten with new terms), and the new
Section 538 loan. These calculations are as of the [unrenovated] date of valuation and are
summarized in the following chart:

Interest Credit Subsidy Valuation
Existing Section 515 Loan/Restated 515 Loan Terms
Chester Apartments
Value 5
Existing/Restated 515 Loan New 538 Loan
Existing Lender’s Terms (market rate) Market Rate
Principal Balance of December 22, 2017 $513,170 Principal Balance $424,000
Conventional Loan Interest Rate 5.250% Conventional Loan Interest Rate 5.250%
Term of Existing Section 515 Loan (years) 30 Term (years) 30
Loan Monthly Payment $2,834 Conventional Loan Monthly Payment $2,341
Restated Section 515 Loan Terms Section 538 Loan Terms
Principal Balance $513,170 Principal Balance $424,000
Interest Rate 1.000% Interest Rate 4.500%
Term (years) 50 Term (years) 40
Section 515 Loan Monthly Payment $1,087 Section 538 Loan Monthly Payment $1,906
Monthly Savings from Below Market Financing $1,747 Monthly Savings from Below Market Financing $435
Present Value of Monthly Savings from Below Market Financing $316,287 Present Value of Monthly Savings $78,811
Note Rate 3.000%
Monthly Payment at Note Rate $1,652
Future Value of Balloon Payment $297,926
Present Value of Balloon Payment $61,885
Value of Interest Credit Subsidy $254,401 Value of Interest Credit Subsidy $78,811
|Existing Section 515 Loan Interest Credit Subsidy Value (Rounded) $255,000 | [ New Section 538 Loan Interest Credit Subsidy Value (Rounded) $80,000 |
Source: Greystone; Crown Appraisal Group
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LIHTC Value Opinion
Value 6

An annual LIHTC of $53,168 is anticipated to be granted for the acquisition and rehabilitation of
the subject. This low income housing tax credit will be granted annually over a 10-year term.
The overall net sum of the LIHTC to the ownership entity of the subject over the 10-year term is
$531,680. The tax credits reduce the owner’s tax liability. Thus, they have value to the owner. The
tax credits can be transferred if the seller guarantees that the transfer will still maintain the LIHTC
requirements.

Current LIHTC Market

Not surprising, LIHTC pricing has not remained static. In this case, according to the seller’s
representative, the purchase of the tax credits will be at $1.29 per gross credit. This is the best
evidence of the appropriate value of the tax credits. Please note, though, that the pricing is
subject to change.

Value of Tax Credits

The value of the tax credits is a fairly simple calculation. The value is developed by taking the
total tax credits and multiplying them by the appropriate pricing — in this case, $1.29 per tax
credit. The value is shown below.

LIHTC Analysis Chester Apartments
Value 6
Period
Annual Tax Credits 53,168
Years 10
Total Tax Credits 531,680
Total Pricing 1.29
| Value of Tax Credits 685,799
Source: Crown Appraisal Group
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State Tax Credits

An annual state tax credit of $53,168 is anticipated to be granted for the acquisition and
rehabilitation of the subject. This state tax credit will be granted annually over a 10-year term.
The overall net sum of the state tax credit to the ownership entity of the subject over the 10-year
term is $531,680. The tax credits reduce the owner’s tax liability. Thus, they have value to the
owner. The tax credits can be transferred.

In this case, according to the seller’s representative, the purchase of the tax credits will be at
$0.45 per gross credit. This is the best evidence of the appropriate value of the tax credits.
Please note, though, that the pricing is subject to change.

The value of the tax credits is a fairly simple calculation. The value is developed by taking the
total tax credits and multiplying them by the appropriate pricing — in this case, $0.45 per tax
credit. The value is shown below.

State Tax Credit Analysis Chester Apartments
Value 6
Period
Annual Tax Credits 53,168
Years 10
Total Tax Credits 531,680
Total Pricing 0.45
| Value of Tax Credits  239,232]
Source: Crown Appraisal Group

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP




CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA

Insurable Value Opinion ~ Page 79

Insurable Value Opinion

Value 7

The insurable value opinion is shown below. The insurable value opinion is based on Marshall

Valuation Service figures.

The reported cost is the opinion to replace the improvements

described within this report with improvements of generally similar utility (physical condition,
quality, and functionality), under the assumption that the improvements need to be completely
replaced for insurance coverage purposes.

USDA Rural Development Value 7
Insurable Value Calculation
Property Name Chester Apartments
Street Address 400 Wynne Avenue
City, County, State, Zip Chester, Dodge County, Georgia 31012
Base Cost
Main Structure/sf 84.55
Sprinkler/sf 0.00
Other/sf 0.00
Adjustments and/or Multipliers 1.04 current cost 0.89
Total Base Cost per square foot 75.62
Building Area square footage 19,488
Total Replacement Cost New 1,473,712
Exclusions per sf percent
Excavations 0.00 0.0% 0
Foundations 2.65 3.5% 51,580
Site Work 0.00 0.0% 0
Site Improvements 0.00 0.0% 0
Architect's Fees 0.00 0.0% 0
Underground Piping 0.00 0.0% 0
Total Exclusions 2.65 3.5% 51,580
Inclusions per unit units
Applicance Packages 750 24 18,000
Patios/Balconies 250 24 6.000
Total Inclusions 24,000
Concluded Insurable Value
Total Replacement Cost New 1,473,712
Less Total Exclusions 51,580
Plus Total Inclusions 24,000
Concluded Insurable Value 1,446,132
Source: Marshall Valuation; Crown Appraisal Group

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP



CHESTER APARTMENTS — CHESTER, GEORGIA Certification ~ Page 80

Certification

Andrew J. Moye

The undersigned hereby certifies that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, or as otherwise noted
in the report:

- the statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

- the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting conditions, and are my personal,
impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.

- I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties
involved.

- I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the three-year
period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment.

- I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this assignment.

- my engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.

- my compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in
value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of the stipulated results, or the occurrence of a subsequent

event directly related to the intended user of this appraisal.

- my analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice.

- The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in conformity with the requirements of
the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute

- The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by its duly authorized representatives.
- As of the date of this report, I have completed the continuing education program for Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute.
- I have made a personal inspection of the property that is the subject of this report.

- no one provided significant real property appraisal assistance to the person signing this certification.

Andrew J. Moye, MAI, AI-GRS

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

| Front | | Side & Rear

Family Room | | Bedroom |

Kitchen | | Bathroom
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Form RD 1944-29 United States Department Of Agriculture FORM APPROVED

PROJECT WORKSHEET FOR CREDIT AND RENTAL ASSISTANCE

( SERVICING OFFICE USE ONLY )

PART I 1. Date Received in the Servicing Office:
2. Borrower Name: 3. Case Number : 4. Project Number :
Chester Apts 10-045-139982974 018
5. Location of Project: 6. R ¢ for th th of
400 Wynn Street - Teport for the month of : November 2016
Chester, GA 31012 ovember
7. Kind of Loan : 8. Plan of Operation:
RRH Full Profit
X e X Planll
RCH Plan I
Plan II RA
LH Section 8%
Plan RA
Direct RRH Plan II (w/Sec. 8)
9. Loan No.: [10. Loan Paymt.: | 11. Overage/ 12. Total Due: RENTAL ASSISTANCE
Surcharge:
01 1,616.17 0.00 1,616.17 18. RA Agreement Number(s): 19. No. of Units Receiving
RA This Month:
17
Late Fees : 13..0.00 20 . Obligation Balance Brought Forward: 0.00
Total ’
e 14.1,616.17
Payment Due:
Less 15. 21 . Rental Assistance Requested this month:
1: 4,699.00 4,699.00
Net
16. _
Payment Due: 3,082.83
Net Payment 17. 2 . Remaining Obligation Balance : -4.699.00
L 0.00 1O
Remitted:
[Use Only for Projects 23. Section 8 Units x 24 = 25,
with New Construction
pection § Units when 26 Section 8 Units x : 27 Hop - 28
HUD rent exceeds note : ' : - :
Fate rent . RHS Note Rate Rent 29
ADDITIONAL PAYMENT TO RESERVE ACCOUNT i

In accordance with Rural Housing Service formula and procedures, all rental units are occupied by households who have executed Form 1944-8 | "Tenant
Certification" and are farm workers if this is the Labor Housing Project or if this is the Rental Housing Project, have incomes within the limitations as set
forth in Rural Development regulations or the Project has written permission from RHS to rent to ineligible occupants on a temporary basis.

I certify that the statements made above and in Part II are true to the best of my knowledge and belief and are made in good faith.

WARNING: Section 1001 of Title 18, United States code providers; "Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the
United States knowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact, or makes false, fictitious or
fraudulent statements or representation, or makes or uses any false writing or document knowing the same or contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement or entry, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both.

30. 31.
Date Signature - Borrower or Borrower's Representativ

*Includes previous Plan I S 8.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid
OMB control number for this collection is 0575-0033. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 40 minutes per response, including the time
for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.
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Property #
Print Date: 12/09/2016

Chester, Ltd. 322

Proiect Worksheet for Interest Credit and Rental Assistance Part 11
Effective Date: 11/01/2016

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.
Apt. Type | Nbr. Initial Cert. Leased To: Basic Note Amt.Due Rental Overage
No. In Occu- Exp. Rent Rate HUD | GTC Utility NTC | Tenant to Assistance and/or
Unit pancy Date Rent Rent Allowance Cover Due Sur-
Date Util Borrower charge
102
01 M1 1 |09/02/2011| 11/30/2016 Veal, Patricia 372 505 30% 102 270
10/18/2016
02 M1 [ Vacant ]
260
03 M1 1 02/01/2007| 01/31/2017 Lampkin, Rosie 372 505 30% 102 112
355
04 M1 | 2 ]03/28/2016|04/30/2017| RYCROFT, APRIL 372 505 30% 102 17
391
05 M2 1 ]09/10/2011]01/31/2017 Bloodworth, Sonja 400 532 30% 141 9
414
06 M2 4 |06/10/2014| 01/31/2017 Mayes, Crystal 400 532 30% 141 0 14
84
07 M2 2 |04/08/2010| 01/31/2017 Allen, Courtney 400 532 30% 141 316
414
08 M2 4 |12/29/2014| 07/31/2017 Lemon, Shirley 400 532 30% 141 0 14
216
09 M2 1 |05/20/2014] 08/31/2017 Yawn, Lillian 400 532 30% 141 184
. 232
10 M2 | 2 |11/01/2005| 11/30/2016 Mays, Lori 400 | s32 30% 141 168
08/09/2016
11 M1 [ Vacant ]
113
12 M1 | 1 ]10/02/2009( 10/31/2017|  Giddens, Lizzie 372 | 505 30% 102 259
44
13 M1 2 |02/12/2016| 06/30/2017| JACKSON, ANDREW 372 505 30% 102 328
14 M1 | 1 |o2/09/2015| 10/31/2017| Washington, Minnie 372 505 30% 102 372 HUD
04/21/2016
15 M2 [ Vacant ]
16 z2 1 |01/31/2014] 01/31/2017 Site, Manager 0 0 % 0 0
TOTALS
16. 17. 18.
Total Assigned R/A Units 17
Maximum Number of R/A Units 17
Available Number of R/A Units 0
84

*  Tenant's prefixed with an "*" have expired certifications.




Property #
Print Date: 12/09/2016

Chester, Ltd. 322
Proiect Worksheet for Interest Credit and Rental Assistance Part 11
Effective Date: 11/01/2016

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15.
Apt. Type | Nbr. Initial Cert. Leased To: Basic Note Amt.Due Rental Overage
No. In Occu- Exp. Rent Rate HUD | GTC Utility NTC | Tenant to Assistance and/or
Unit pancy Date Rent Rent Allowance Cover Due Sur-
Date Util Borrower charge
325
17 M2 2 |12/01/2002| 11/30/2016 Lockett, Minnie 400 532 30% 141 75
427
18 M2 4 |02/27/2013| 06/30/2017 Stidhum, Erica 400 532 30% 141 0 27
421
19 M2 2 |10/19/2015| 10/31/2017| FOSKEY, TAYLOR 400 532 30% 141 0 21
265
20 M2 | 3 |01/12/2011|01/31/2017 Tharpe, Ollie 400 532 30% 141 135
429
21 M1 1 |12/29/2010]11/30/2016 Clark, Lisa 372 505 30% 102 0 57
207
22 M1 | 2 |10/07/2013|10/31/2017 Linder, Betty 372 505 30% 102 165
23 M1 1 |04/15/2016| 04/30/2017 | BARWICK, RACHEL 372 505 36% 102 372
24 M1 1 |08/03/2016| 08/31/2017 | DOLAN, CHRISTOPHE| 372 505 42% 102 372
TOTALS 7,720 2,430 3,154 133 4,699
16. 17. 18.
Total Assigned R/A Units 17

Maximum Number of R/A Units 17

Available Number of R/A Units 0

*  Tenant's prefixed with an "*" have expired certifications. 85



CHESTER: HISTORICAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Maintenance & Repairs

R & M Payroll

R & M Supply

R & M Contract

Decorating / TO Painting

Snow Removal

Elevator Maintenance

Grounds

Services / Extermination

Capital Improvements (Operations)

Other - R&M Expenses (DESCRIBE)
Subtotal

Utilities

Electricity

Water

Sewer

Fuel

Trash Removal

Other - Utilities (DESCRIBE)
Subtotal

Administrative

Site Management Payroll

Management Fee

Accounting

Audit

Legal

Advertising

Telephone

Office Supplies

Office Furniture & Equipment

Training

Health Insurance & Other Benefits

Payroll Taxes

Workman's Compensation

Other - Administrative (DESCRIBE)
Subtotal

Taxes & Insurance

Real Estate Taxes

Special Assessments

Misc Taxes, Licenses & Permits

Property & Liability Insurance

Fidelity Coverage Insurance

Other - Insurance (DESCRIBE)
Subtotal

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

8,014.36 4,576.84 7,002.79 7,930.00 8,168.00
7,936.02 7,346.41 10,209.65 8,320.00 5,105.00
963.54 326.52 1571.14 200.00 786.00
1,133.02 1,869.93 2,540.08 1,066.67 800.00
3,760.65 4,710.75 4,214.78 6,076.00 5,030.00
3,129.43 1,036.15 1,746.67 2,706.67 2,400.00
1,939.72 500.00
26,876.74 19,866.60 27,285.11 26,299.33 22,789.00
4,727.59 2,350.74 2,886.63 2,952.00 2,460.00
1,166.45 74.85 118.95 180.00 200.00
1,210.57 74.84 116.95 120.00 200.00
2,200.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,646.67 2,520.00
9,304.61 4,900.43 5,522.53 5,898.67 5,380.00
3,434.84 3,741.01 4,885.32 5,134.53 6,146.00
7,920.00 9,252.00 9,804.00 11,592.00 13,524.00
5,500.00 2,000.00 2,550.00 3,150.67 6,075.00
- (54.00) 672.00 256.00 600.00
1,463.02 560.00 324.03 366.67 782.00
882.94 1,417.42 1,424.75 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,058.45 838.00 1,706.12 1,534.67 1,535.00
295.61 53.94 12.37 286.67 287.00
1,866.20 1,128.20 2,128.19 2,358.06 2,600.00
1,025.94 842.17 1,173.57 1,312.99 1,421.00
1,909.25 (928.24) 176.32 361.29 502.00
974.51 1,756.87 922.76 926.67 1,218.00
26,330.76 20,607.37 25,779.43 28,780.20 36,190.00
3,710.39 2,589.94 2,912.43 3,108.00 3,495.00
532.80 897.99 43.20 466.67 467.00
1,278.21 582.12 15,306.40 500.00 500.00
2,031.80 3,861.00 3,872.00 4,226.20 3,872.00
7,553.20 7,931.05 22,134.03 8,300.87 8,334.00
70,065.31 53,305.45 80,721.10 69,279.06 72,693.00
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CHESTER: HISTORICAL OPERATING STATEMENT

1. Rental Income

2. RHS Rental Assist. Received
3. Application Fees

4. Laundry and Vending Income
5. Interest Income

6. Tenant Charges

7. Other - Project Sources

8. Less (Vency @ Cntgney Allw)
9. Less (Agncy Aprvd Incentv)
10. Sub-Ttl [(1 thru 7) - (8@9)]
11. Cash - Non Project

12. Authorized Loan (Non-RHS)
13. Transfer From Reserve

14. Sub-Total (11 thru 13)

15. Total Cash Sources (10+14)

16. Total O&M Exp (From Part Il)

17. RHS Debt Payment

18. RHS Payment (Overage)
19. RHS Payment (Late Fee)
20. Reductn In Prior Yr Pybles
21. Tenant Utility Payments
22. Transfer to Reserve

23. RTN Owner / NP Asset Mgt Fee

24. Sub-Total (16 thru 23)

25. Authzd Debt Pymnt (NonRHS)

26. Capital Budget (11l 4-6)

27. Miscellaneous

28. Sub-Total (25 thru 27)

29. Total Cash Uses (24+28)
30. Net (Deficit) (15-29)

31. Beginning Cash Balance

32. Accrual To Cash Adjustment
33. Ending Cash Balance

33,985.00 49,935.00 45,080.00 97,848.00
44,560.00 47,039.00 51,779.00
135.00 180.00
28.07 22.08 25.77 32.00
1,446.00 1,200.00 2,444.95 1,840.00
300.00 96.00 805.00 128.00
80,319.07 98,427.08 100,314.72 99,848.00
11,051.55 14,128.51 24,608.00
11,051.55 14,128.51 - 24,608.00
91,370.62 112,555.59 100,314.72 124,456.00
70,065.31 53,305.45 80,721.10 69,279.06
19,394.04 19,394.04 11,260.25 19,394.04
117.00 355.00 1,416.00
1,175.00 1,573.00 2,422.00
31,985.27 8,636.64 -
- - - 3,306.67
122,736.62 83,264.13 95,819.35 91,979.77
11,051.55 14,128.51 24,608.00
11,051.55 14,128.51 - 24,608.00
133,788.17 97,392.64 95,819.35 116,587.77
(42,417.55) 15,162.95 4,495.37 7,868.23
14,562.90 3,196.70
31,051.35 (5,785.86) - -
3,196.70 12,573.79 4,495.37 7,868.23
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32783 Middlebelt Road | Farmington Hills, Michigan 48334
BR TAMA 'BUDAJ 'RBAAB | phone: 2486263800  Fax: 248-626-2276

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.tbrcpa.com

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Partners of USDA Rural Development
CHESTER, L.P. Area 6
DBA Chester Apartments Cochran, GA

Chester, Georgia
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CHESTER, L.P., Case No.
10-045-139982974 01-8 which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
and the related statements of operations, changes in partners' equity (deficit) and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management 3 Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors "Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the Entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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sl TAMA |BUDAJ | RAAB

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of CHESTER, L.P. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information, except for the portion marked “unaudited”, has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
January 29, 2016, on our consideration of CHESTER, L.P.'s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audits.

TJama, Bucfaf & Raad, P.C.

Farmington Hills, Michigan
January 29, 2016
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8
(A GEORGIA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS
2015 2014
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,492 $ 4,398
Accounts receivable:
Other -0- 1,620
Tenants 1,529 683
Entity receivable - net settlement agreement -0- 122,603
Prepaid expenses 963 595
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 12,984 129,899
RESTRICTED CASH AND FUNDED RESERVES
Tenants' security deposits 4,787 5,697
Real estate tax and insurance escrow 4,455 8,176
Replacement reserve escrow 72,701 52,240
TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH
AND FUNDED RESERVES 81,943 66,113
RENTAL PROPERTY
Land 20,000 20,000
Buildings and components 647,325 647,325
Furniture and equipment 54,217 54,217
721,542 721,542
Less accumulated depreciation (698,637) (698,328)
NET RENTAL PROPERTY 22,905 23,214
OTHER ASSETS
Due from partners -0- 13,327
$ 117,832 $ 232,553

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8
(A GEORGIA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

2015 2014
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - partnership $ -0- $ 658
Other accrued liabilities 310 72
Current maturities of
long-term debt 8,972 8,134
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,282 8,864
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT LIABILITIES
Tenants' security deposits 4,150 5,404
TOTAL DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENT
LIABILITIES 4,150 5,404
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Mortgage note payable 532,128 540,262
Less current maturities (8,972) (8,134)
Advances from General Partner 23,919 104,464
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 547,075 636,592
TOTAL LIABILITIES 560,507 650,860
PARTNERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (442,675) (418,307)
$ 117,832 $ 232,553

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
RENTAL INCOME:
Rental $ 46,496 $ 49,935
Less: Overage (1,416) (355)
Tenant utility allowance (2,422) (1,573)
Rental assistance subsidy 54,201 47,039
TOTAL RENTAL INCOME 96,859 95,046
OTHER INCOME:
Application fees 180 135
Interest income 26 22
Tenant charges 2,445 1,200
Other 804 98
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 3,455 1,455
TOTAL INCOME 100,314 96,501
EXPENSES:
Maintenance and operating 30,101 19,867
Utilities 5,523 4,901
Administrative 25,779 20,607
Taxes and insurance 7,186 7,931
Reserve operating expenditures 27177 14,129
Interest on mortgage payable 11,260 12,086
TOTAL EXPENSES 107,026 79,521
INCOME (LOSS) FROM RENTAL OPERATIONS (6,712) 16,980
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND (EXPENSES):
Entity expense (14,947) -0-
Depreciation (309) (309)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME AND (EXPENSES)  (15,256) (309)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM (21,968) 16,671
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM - net settlement agreement -0- 121,945
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ (21,968) $ 138,616
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS "EQUITY (DEFICIT)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Partners' equity (deficit) -
January 1, 2014

Net income (loss)

Partners' equity (deficit) -
December 31, 2014

Net income (loss)
Partners' distributions

Partners' equity (deficit) -
December 31, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Limited

Total Partner(s) Partner(s)
$ (556,923) $ (5,711) $ (5651,212)
138,616 6,931 131,685
(418,307) 1,220 (419,527)
(21,968) (1,098) (20,870)
(2,400) (2,400) -0-
$ (442,675) $ (2,278) $ (440,397)
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES:
Net income (loss) $ (21,968) $138,616
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used by) operating
activities:
Depreciation 309 309
Entity expense 14,947 -0-
Extraordinary item - net settlement agreement -0- (121,945)
Changes in:
Accounts receivable - tenants (846) 372
Prepaid expenses (368) 279
Accounts payable -0- (5,600)
Tenant security deposits (344) (361)
Other accrued liabilities 238 (476)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 13,936 (127,422)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
OPERATING ACTVITIES (8,032) 11,194
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Tax and insurance escrow 3,720 (5,453)
Deposits to reserve for replacements (47,638) (8,637)
Withdrawals from reserve for replacements 27,177 14,129
Proceeds from settlement agreement 121,945 -0-
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 105,204 39
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal payments on mortgage note (8,133) (7,309)
Advances from (repayments to) General Partner (80,545) -0-
Partner(s) distributions (2,400) -0-
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (91,078) (7,309)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,094 3,924
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,398 474
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 10,492 $ 4,398
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 11,260 $ 12,086
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 8
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

A. ORGANIZATION

The Partnership was formed as a Limited Partnership under the laws of the State of
Georgia, on December 15, 1983, for the purpose of acquiring land, owning, constructing and
operating a 24 unit multi-family rental housing project for low and moderate income persons
on a limited profit basis pursuant to Section 515(b) of the Housing Act of 1949, as amended.
The Project was financed in part with the proceeds of a mortgage note from the United
States Department of Agriculture.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Method

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognized as rentals become due. Rental payments received in
advance are deferred until earned. All leases between the Partnership and the tenants
of the property are operating leases.

Property and Equipment

Buildings, improvements and equipment are being depreciated on various methods over
5 to 27.5 years for both financial statement and income tax accounting purposes.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The
Partnership reviews its investment in real estate for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be
recoverable. There were no impairment losses recognized in 2015 or 2014.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Partnership considers all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Continued...
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Tenant Receivable and Bad Debt Policy

Tenant rent charges for the current month are due on the first of the month. Tenants
who are evicted or move out are charged with damages or cleaning fees, if applicable.
Tenant receivable consists of amounts due for rental income, security deposit or the
charges for damages and cleaning fees. The Partnership does not accrue interest on
the tenant receivable balances.

Return to Owner

In accordance with the Loan Agreement(s), the maximum annual cash return to owner
allowable by RD for the Partnership is $2,480 and is allocated to the partners as
formulated in the Partnership Agreement.

C. INCOME TAXES

No income tax provision has been included in the financial statements because income or
loss of the Partnership is required to be reported by the respective partners on their income
tax returns.

The Partnership’s income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities
generally for three years after they are filed.

D. MORTGAGE NOTE PAYABLE

The note payable is to the USDA, Rural Development and is collateralized by a first
mortgage on the rental property. The note bears interest at 10.75% per annum. However,
the USDA, Rural Development, under a commitment to the Partnership, issues credits
(subsidies) so as to reduce the principal and interest payments of the Partnership to an
amount equivalent to a note at a 1.00% rate of interest. The USDA, Rural Development
interest credits are reduced by rent collections by the Partnership in excess of contract
rents. The note is being amortized at 10.75% as follows:

$5,485 (including subsidy) payable monthly until the principal and interest are fully
paid except that the final installment shall be due and payable on January 1, 2035.

Continued...
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

D. MORTGAGE NOTE PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Maturities of the note payable are as follows for the years ended December 31:

2016 $ 8,972
2017 9,986
2018 11,114
2019 12,369
2020 13,766
Thereafter 475,921

$ 532,128

The note agreement imposes restrictions on cash disbursements, admittance of and
distributions to partners and prohibits the transfer or encumbrance of title to rental property.
Additionally, the General Partner is required to maintain a certain minimum financial interest
in the Partnership.

In accordance with the USDA, Rural Development note agreement, a cash reserve account
is maintained by the Partnership and may only be used with USDA, Rural Development prior
approval for project operations, renewals and replacements, note repayments, borrower's
return, or as otherwise authorized by the USDA, Rural Development.

The liability of the Partnership is limited to the underlying value of the real estate collateral.

E. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Management Fees

An affiliate performs rental, administrative and accounting services for CHESTER, L.P. in
its capacity as managing agent of the Project for which the affiliate received $9,804 for
2015 and $9,252 for 2014.

General Partner Advances

The Partnership has a payable due to the General Partner for reimbursement of
advances totaling $23,919 and $104,464 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014. This payable is non-interest bearing and is to be repaid out of future surplus cash
or from sale or refinance proceeds.

Capital Contributions

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Project is due capital contributions from the
limited partners in the amount of $0 and $13,327, respectively.

11
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

. VULNERABILITY DUE TO CERTAIN CONCENTRATIONS

The Partnership's operations are concentrated in the multifamily real estate market. In
addition, the Partnership operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Partnership are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal,
state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules and regulations
are subject to change by acts of or administrative changes mandated by these regulatory
agencies. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the
related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply with a change.

. TAXABLE INCOME (LOSS)

A reconciliation of financial statement net income (loss) to taxable income (loss) of the
Partnership for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Financial statement net income (loss) $ (21,968) $138,616
Adjustments:
Depreciation 115 (2,570)
Extraordinary income not taxable (basis reduction) -0- (68,744)
Taxable income (loss) $(21,853) $ 67,302

. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Partnership has entered into agreements which may provide various credits or
assistance. In conjunction with these agreements, the Partnership may be bound by
restrictive covenants and needs to comply with various regulations. Failure to maintain
compliance with the covenants and regulations could result in material adverse
consequences for the Partnership.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM - NET SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

The Partnership agreed to terms of a settlement agreement with the United States
government during 2014. The gross settlement amount of $154,004 was offset by related
costs and expenses of $32,059, resulting in a net settlement of $121,945. The net
settlement is reported as an extraordinary item on the income statement and an entity
receivable on the balance sheet in 2014. The Partnership disbursed the settlement
proceeds in 2015.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 29, 2016, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

12
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SCHEDULE 1 - SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATING
Repairs - payroll
- supply
- contract
Painting and decorating
Grounds
Services
Other maintenance and operating expenses
Furniture and furnishing replacement

UTILITIES
Electricity
Water
Sewer
Garbage and trash removal

ADMINISTRATIVE
Site management payroll
Management fee
Auditing
Legal
Advertising
Telephone
Office supplies
Health insurance and other employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Workers' compensation
Employee education
Miscellaneous administrative expenses

TAXES AND INSURANCE
Real estate taxes
Special assessments
Other taxes, licenses and permits
Property and liability insurance
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2015 2014
$ 7,003 $ 4,577
10,210 7,336
1,571 327
2,540 1,870
4,215 4,711
1,747 1,036
2,815 -0-
-0- 10

$ 30,101 $ 19,867
$ 2,887 $ 2,351
119 75
117 75
2,400 2,400
$ 5523 $ 4,901
$ 4,885 $ 3,741
9,804 9,252
2,550 2,000
672 (54)
324 560
1,425 1,417
1,706 838
2,128 1,128
1,174 842
176 (928)

12 54

923 1,757

$ 25,779 $ 20,607
$ 2,912 $ 2,590
43 898

359 582
3,872 3,861

$ 7,186 $ 7,931
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE 2 - MANAGEMENT FEE CALCULATION

See attached calculation on next page.

SCHEDULE 3 - INSURANCE DISCLOSURE

The Partnership maintains insurance coverage as follows:

Deductible Coverage
Property Coverage on Buildings $5,000 $649,240
Comprehensive Business Liability $500 $21,000,000
Fidelity/Employee Dishonesty $5,000 $500,000
SCHEDULE 4 - RETURN TO OWNER
Maximum Return to Owner $ 2480
Budgeted Return to Owner $ -0-

Return to Owner Paid $ -0-
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PROJECT NAME:

2015 MANAGEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

CHESTER APTS LP

Month | PWS Unit Units # Apt. TOTAL MGMT AMOUNT |CURRENT MONTH
Vacant Occupied | Move Ins #'s OCCUPIED FEE EARNED VAC UNITS
JAN 2 21 1 19 22 $38.00 $836.00 1419
FEB 1 22 1 14 23 $38.00 $874.00 14
MARCH 1 22 0 22 $38.00 $836.00 -
APRIL 1 22 0 22 $38.00 $836.00 23
MAY 2 21 1 23 22 $38.00 $836.00 223
JUNE 1 22 0 22 $38.00 $836.00 2
JULY 1 22 0 22 $38.00 $836.00 2
AUG 1 22 0 22 $38.00 $836.00 2
SEPT 4 19 0 19 $38.00 $722.00 2131923
OCT 4 19 1 19 20 $38.00 $760.00 2131923
NOV 4 19 2 1523 21 $38.00 $798.00 2131523
DEC 2 21 0 21 $38.00 $798.00 0213
TOTALS 24 252 6 258 $9,804.00
Vacancy Rate % = Total Units Vacant/Total Number of Units 6.5%
23 Revenue Producing Units | $38.00 [Per Month Per Occupied
100% occupied (does not include manager "Z" coded unit) $10,488.00
Earned Management Fees - (1/1/15 - 12/31/15) $9,804.00
Preliminary G/L Expense $9,494.00
Due to - (Site) or Hallmark Management Inc. 310.00

103




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Partners of USDA Rural Development
CHESTER, L.P. Area 6
DBA Chester Apartments Cochran, GA

Chester, Georgia

We have audited the financial statements of CHESTER, L.P. as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 and have issued our report thereon dated January 29,
2016. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits, we considered CHESTER, L.P.’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal
control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Partnership’s ability
to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the Partnership’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not
be prevented or detected by the Partnership’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies,
that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial
statements will not be prevented or detected by the Partnership’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Continued...
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether CHESTER, L.P.’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information of the partners, management and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture Rural Development and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the
distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record.

TJama, Bucfaf & Raad, P.C.

Farmington Hills, Michigan
January 29, 2016
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CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Case No. 10-045-139982974 01-8

AUDIT FINDINGS ON COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

Reportable Conditions of Non-Compliance

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS:

There were no current year findings.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:

There were no prior year findings.
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32783 Middlebelt Road ' Farmington Hills, Michigan 48334
SH TAMA | BUDAJ | RAAB Phone: 248-626-3800 | Fax: 248-626-2276

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.tbrcpa.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ’REPORT ON
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Partners of
CHESTER, L.P.
DBA Chester Apartments
Chester, Georgia

and

United States Department of Agriculture
Rural Development
Area 6
Cochran, GA

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the
United States Department of Agriculture ("RD") and CHESTER, L.P. ("the Owner”), the owner of
Chester Apartments ("the Project"), located in Chester, Georgia, solely to assist those parties in
evaluating that the accompanying Form RD 3560-10, Multiple Family Housing Borrower
Balance Sheet, Form RD 3560-7, Multiple Family Housing Project Budget (“Financial Reports”)
and Supporting Documentation are prepared in accordance with the criteria specified in RD
Regulations contained in 7 CFR 3560, Section 303(b) and Section 306, in accordance with the
determinations noted in Attachment 4-D of RD Handbook HB-2-3560, for the year ended
December 31, 2015. The Owner is responsible for the presentation of the financial reports.
This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The sufficiency of these procedures is
solely the responsibility of Rural Development and the Owner. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the
purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Our procedures and findings are as follows:

1. We examined selected receipts, invoices, and cancelled checks (or check imaging
on original bank statement) that support administrative; and operating and
maintenance expenses presented on Form RD 3560-7, Part Il, Line ltems 1-10 and
19-32 to determine they were incurred as part of the ongoing operations of the
Project. We selected a representative sample of invoices and supporting
documentation, based on the sample size determined by RD in Attachment 4-D of
RD Handbook HB-2-3560, for expenses included in Lines 1-10 and 19-32 of Form
RD 3560-7 and determined that the services were eligible expenses, in accordance
with Attachment 4-A of HB-2-3560, and the shipping address agreed to the project
address. In addition, we confirmed a sample of the expenditures with the vendors to
determine the invoice paid agreed to the vendor’s records.
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sl TAMA |BUDAJ | RAAB

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Findings:
Total Number of Invoices in Population: 536
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices in Population: $ 55,880
Total Number of Invoices Reviewed: 10
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices Reviewed: $ 525
Total Number of Invoices in Vendor Confirmation Sample: 1
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices in Vendor Confirmation Sample: $ 189
Total Number of Vendor Confirmations Not Received: 0
Total Dollar Amount of Vendor Confirmations Not Received: $ -0-
Total Number of Deviations: 0
Total Dollar Amount of Deviations: $ -0-

2. We confirmed the balance in the replacement reserve account presented on Form
RD 3560-7, Part lll, and confirmed that no amounts were encumbered by the
financial institution that holds the accounts. We determined that all balances are
within FDIC insurance limits or that the financial institution pledged collateral with the
Federal Reserve Bank for an amount equal or exceeding any excess over the limit.
We determined the number of reserve account withdrawals from the original bank
statements and compared the withdrawals to the amounts approved by RD on Form
3560-12. We compared the invoices and cancelled checks (or check imaging on
original bank statement) to the approved withdrawals from RD.

Findings:
Total Number of Reserve Account Withdrawals: 12
Total Number of Withdrawals Authorized by RD: 12
Total Dollar Amount of Reserve Account Withdrawals: $ 29,228
Total Dollar Amount of Withdrawals Authorized by RD: $ 29,228
Total Number of Deviations: 0
Total Dollar Amount of Deviations: $ -0-

The confirmation received from the financial institution agreed to the Project’s bank
reconciliation and no encumbrances were noted on the confirmation. All withdrawals
were paid to the vendors approved by RD on Form RD 3560-12.

3. We obtained the Identity of Interest (I0l) company listing on Form RD 3560-31 from
RD and determined that the services provided and approved fees, if applicable,
agree to the actual service and fees charged to the Project. We examined a sample
of invoices and determined that the services and charges are in accordance with the
disclosures contained in Form RD 3560-31 as agreed to by RD.
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sl TAMA |BUDAJ | RAAB

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Findings:
Total Number of Forms RD 3560-31 Received: 0

Company Name 1: Hallmark Management, Inc.

Total Dollar Amount for the Year: $ 24,678
Total Number of Invoices in Population: 174
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices in Population: $ 24,678
Total Number of Invoices Reviewed: 33
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices Reviewed: $ 4,187

The agreed-upon procedures performed above and the Management
Representation Letter revealed no undisclosed IOl companies.

Hallmark Management, Inc.
Management Fees

Total Number of Invoices in Population: 12
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices in Population: $ 9,804
Total Number of Invoices Reviewed: 2
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices Reviewed: $ 1,672
Payroll/Employee Benefits Reimbursement
Total Number of Invoices in Population: 94
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices in Population: $ 13,195
Total Number of Invoices Reviewed: 20
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices Reviewed: $ 2,381
Other
Total Number of Invoices in Population: 68
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices in Population: $ 1,679
Total Number of Invoices Reviewed: 11
Total Dollar Amount of Invoices Reviewed: $ 134

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit of the subject matter, the
objective of which would be the expression of an opinion on the agreed-upon procedures
applied to the financial reports and supporting documentation of CHESTER, L.P. Accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Owner and management

agent of CHESTER, L.P. and Rural Development, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

TJama, Bucfaf & Raad, P.C.

Farmington Hills, Michigan
January 29, 2016
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MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING
BORROWER BALANCE SHEET

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

PROJECT NAME BORROWER NAME BORROWER ID AND PROJECT NO.
Chester Apartments Chester, Ltd. 10-045-139982974 01-3
CURRENT YEAR PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS
BEGINNING DATES> (01 -01 -2015) (01 -01 -2014)
ASSETS ENDING DATES> (12 -31 -2015) (12 -31 -2014)

CURRENT ASSETS
1. GENERAL OPERATING ACCOUNT........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieciieciieen 10,492 4,398
2. R.E. TAX & INSURANCE ACCOUNT. 4,455 8,175
3. RESERVE ACCOUNT.......... 72,701 52,240
4. SECURITY DEPOSIT ACCOUNT. . 4,787 5,697
5. OTHER CASH (ODR ACCOUNE)....uvtititininiieieiei e eeiee e - -
6. OTHER (identify)...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - -
7. TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Attach list).........c..ocuuveiineinennns 1,529 15,630

ACCTS RCVBL 0-30 DAYS $ -

ACCTS RCVBL 30-60 DAYS $ -

ACCTS RCVBL 60-90 DAYS $ -

ACCTS RCVBL OVER 90 DAYS $ -
8. LESS: ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS............cc..... $ -1$ -
9. INVENTORIES (supplies) % -1$ -
10.  PREPAYMENTS . ..oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 962 | $ 594
11.  ENTITY RECEIVABLE - 122,603
12. TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS (Add 1 thru 11).............cocoocoviiii 94,927 209,339
FIXED ASSETS
130 LAND L ..ot 20,000 20,000
14, BUILDINGS. ... oottt 701,542 701,542
15.  LESS:ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATIO: (721,542) (721,542)
16. FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT.............. . - -
17.  LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION.............cooeiiiiiinniinie - -
18. - -
19. TOTAL FIXED ASSETS (Add 13 thru 18) ........ccovvvueiiiiiiiiinniinn - -
OTHER ASSETS
20. $ -1$ -
21. TOTAL ASSETS (Add 12, 19and 20) ..............cocoviiiiiiniinininnil $ 94,927 | $ 209,339
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
22.  TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Attach list).........cc.veuuiiiiniiiniinnennns 310 72

ACCTS PAYABLE 0-30 DAYS $ -

ACCTS PAYABLE 30-60 DAYS $ -

ACCTS PAYABLE 60-90 DAYS $ -

ACCTS PAYABLE OVER 90 DAYS $ -
23.  NOTES PAYABLE (Attach list).........co.viiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieci, - -
24.  SECURITY DEPOSITS.........coovviiiiiiiiiiniineinn, 4,150 5,404
25. TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (Add 22 thru 24) 4,460 5,476

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a
valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-0189. The time required to complete this information is estimated to average

2 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the
collection of information.
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

26.  NOTES PAYABLE RURAL DEVELOPMENT 532,128 540,262

27.  OTHER (identify) 23,919 105,122

28.  TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Add 26 and 27) ................... 556,047 645,384

29.  TOTAL LIABILITIES (Add 25 and 28) .............c.ccoeveiiiiinnan. [ 560,507 | 650,860 |

30. OWNER'S EQUITY (Net Worth) (21 minus 29).........cccovveeeeeveeeeen.. | (465,580)] (441,521)]

31.  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY [ 94,927 | 209,339 |
(Add 29 and 30)

Warning: Section 1001 of Title 18, United States Code provides: ""Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of any
department or agency of the United States knowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals or covers up by any trick, scheme,
or device a material fact or makes any false, fictitious or fradulent statements or representations, or makes or uses
any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, shall
be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE WARNING STATEMENT AND I HEREBY CERTIFY THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IS COMPLETE
AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

3/18/2016 :jmarkMan gement, Inc. Agem“ Qﬁc{w

(Date) (Signature of Borrower or Borrower's Representative)

President

(Title)

PART II - THIRD PARTY VERIFICATION OF REVIEW

I/We have reviewed the borrower's records. The accompanying balance sheet, and statement of actual budget and income on Form
RD 3560-7, is a fair presentation of the borrower's records.

I/We certify that no identity of interest exists between me/us and any individual or organization doing business with the project or
borrower.

(Date) (Signature)

(Name and Title)

(Address)

In lieu of the above verification and signature, a review completed, dated and signed by a person or firm qualified by license or
certification is attached.

3560-10, Page 2
Chester, Ltd.
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Form RD 3560-7

MULTIPLE FAMILY HOUSING PROJECT BUDGET/

FORM APPROVED

(Rev. 05-06) UTILITY ALLOWANCE OMB NO. 0575-0189
PROJECT NAME BORROWER NAME BORROWER ID & PROJECT NO.
Chester Apartments Chester, Ltd. 10-045-139982974 01-3
Loan/Transfer Amount Note Rate Payment IC Payment
Reporting Period Budget Type Project Rental Type Project Type The following utilities are master |_| I hereby request
Annual |:| Initial |:| Family I:l Full Profit metered 0 0 units of RA.
|:| Quarterly Regular Report |:| Elderly Ltd Profit |:| Electricity I:l Gas Current #
|:| Monthly |:| Rent Change |:| Congregate I:l Non-Profit |:| Water I:l Sewer Borrower Accounting
|:| SNR |:| Group Home |:| Trash Method
|:| Other Servicing |:| Mixed I:l LH |:| Other I:lCash Accrual
PART | - CASH FLOW STATEMENT
CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET or (YTD)
BEGINNING DATES> 01-01-2015 01-01-2015 01-01-2016
ENDING DATES> 12-31-2015 12-31-2015 12-31-2016
OPERATIONAL CASH SOURCES UNAUDITED UNAUDITED
1. RENTAL INCOME 106,368 46,496 106,368
2. RHS RENTAL ASSISTANCE RECEIVED 54,201
3. APPLICATION FEES RECEIVED 180
4. LAUNDRY AND VENDING 0 0 0
5. INTEREST INCOME 20 26 24
6. TENANT CHARGES 1,500 2,445 1,740
7. OTHER - PROJECT SOURCES 0 805 96
8. LESS (Vacancy/Contingency Allowance).... (10,560) (8,520)
9. LESS (Agency Approved Incentive AlOWANCE)..............c.cccceeeverevvnnn. 0 0
10. SUB-TOTAL ....... [(1 thru 7) - (8&9)]. 97,328 104,153 99,708
NON-OPERATIONAL CASH SOURCES
11. CASH -NON PROJECT 0 0 0
12. AUTHORIZED LOAN 0 0 0
13. TRANSFER FROM RESERVE 14,730 27,177 19,031
14. SUB-TOTAL......ccooevirrciiniiiiinnine 14,730 27,177 19,031
15. TOTAL CASH SOURCES (10+14) 112,058 | 131330 #] # 118739 |
OPERATIONAL CASH USES
16. TOTAL O&M EXPENSES 66,615 68,588 68,669
17. RHS DEBT PAYMENT 19,394 19,394 19,394
18. RHS PAYMENT... (Overage) 1,416
19. RHS PAYMENT... (Late Fee) 0
20. REDUCTION IN PRIOR YEAR PAYABLES ... 0
21. TENANT UTILITY PAYMENTS 2,422
22. TRANSFER TO RESERVE.......ccccocoiniiiiiininnicicieneeccceeeeeae 8,616 8,638 8,616
23. RETURN TO OWNER /NP ASSET MANAGEMENT FEE.......... 0 0 2,480
24. SUB-TOTAL....... (16 thru 23) 94,625 100,459 99,159
NON-OPERATIONAL CASH USES
25. AUTH DEBT PAYMENT (NON-RHS).......cooooererean 0 0 0
26. ANNUAL CAPITAL BUDGET (From Part 111, Lines 4-6) . 14,730 27,177 19,031
27. MISCELLANEOUS.......ccoiiiiiiticieirireecicie e enes 0 0 0
28. SUB-TOTAL....... (25 thru 27) 14,730 27,177 19,031
29. TOTAL CASH USES (24+28) | 109,355 | 127,636 | 118,190 |
30. NET CASH (DEFICIT) (15-29) | 2,703 | 3,694 | 549 |
CASH BALANCE
31. BEGINNNG CASH BALANCE 3,178 12,574 5,234
32. ACCRUAL TO CASH ADJUSTMENT........... (1,320) 0
33. ENDING CASH BALANCE. .. (30+31+32). 5,881 14,948 5,783

OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-0189. The time required to

per resy the ime for reviewn,

mstructions, searching existing data soures, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and comp and reviewin,

to average 2 1/2 hours
the collection of nformation.
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PART II - OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE SCHEDULE

R A Al o

—_ =
- o

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.

34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.

41.

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS PAYROLL...........
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS SUPPLY................
MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS CONTRACT........
PAINTING.......cooieiriiieinntcieteeeeneceereeeen e e
SNOW REMOVAL......ccovuiinieiernieienincecinicenns
ELEVATOR MAINT/CONTRACT.......ccccerueuennn.
GROUNDS................
SERVICES
ANNUAL CAPITAL BUDGET (From Part V - Ope
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES .(Itemize) ........
SUB-TOTAL MAINT & OPRG (! thru 10) e,

ELECTRICITY ...coovetiieieieeeeeeiens If master meter
WATER check box on...
SEWER [front
FUEL.....cccoevv . (OIL/COAL/GAS)..........ooo...
GARBAGE & TRASHREMOVAL.......................
OTHER UTILITIES

SUB-TOTAL UTILITIES (12 thru 17) ceeueesesssesees

SITE MANAGEMENT PAYROLL....
MANAGEMENT FEE
PROJECT AUDITING EXPENSE........cccccccceviueune
PROJECT BOOKKEEPING/ACCOUNTING.......
LEGAL EXPENSES
ADVERTISING.
TELEPHONE & ANSWERING SERVICE............
OFFICE SUPPLIES
OFFICE FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT................
TRAINING EXPENSE
HEALTH INS & OTHER EMP BENEFITS...........
PAYROLL TAXES
WORKMAN'S COMPENSATION........ccccccccueuenene
OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. (Itemiz
SUB-TOTAL ADMIN (19 thrut 32) ceseessssssssesesese:

REAL ESTATE TAXES
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.....c.ccccoiiiiiieeeeenas
OTHER TAXES, LICENSES & PERMITS
PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE .
FIDELITY COVERAGE INSURANCE.................
OTHER INSURANCE
SUB-TOTAL TAXES & INS (34 thru 39)..........

TOTAL O&M EXPENSES.(11+18+33+40)....

Form RD 3560-7 Page 2
Chester, Ltd.

CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS YTD
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
UNAUDITED UNAUDITED
12,381 6,702 7,956
4,325 10,210 8,220
400 1,872 200
600 2,540 800
0 0 0
0 0 0
4,500 4,215 5,901
1,850 1,747 2,300
2,120 2,815 1,203
0 0 0
26,176 30,100 26,580
3,078 2,887 2,952
180 119 180
180 117 120
0 0 0
2,700 2,400 2,645
0 0 0
6,138 5,523 5,897
3,367 4,885 5,135
10,488 9,804 11,592
2,363 2,550 2,363
0 0 0
150 672 384
950 324 350
1,500 1,425 1,500
1,050 1,706 1,333
0 0 0
200 12 215
1,535 2,128 2,405
1,651 1,174 1,308
586 176 362
730 923 875
24,570 25,779 27,822
4,452 2,912 3,108
500 43 450
350 359 538
4,429 3,872 4,274
0 0 0
0 0 0
9,731 7,187 8,370
66,6015 68,588 68,669
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PART III - ACCOUNT BUDGETING/STATUS

CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS
BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET or YID
RESERVE ACCOUNT: UNAUDITED UNAUDITED
1. BEGINNING BALANCE.........cccccceceniinenns 58,011 52,240 35,726
2. TRANSFER TO RESERVE.............ccccccuec. 8,616 47,638 8,616
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE
3. OPERATING DEFICIT....................... 0 0 0
4. ANNUAL CAPITAL BUDGET (Part (14,730) (27,177) (19,031)
5. BUILDING & EQUIPMENT REPATF 0 0 0
6. OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPEN 0 0 0
7. TOTAL (3 thrtt 6) ....ceceevueecniicininnene (14,730) (27,177) (19,031)
8. ENDING BALANCE [(142)-7]. cccvvveeveinueuanne. 51,897 72,701 25,311
GENERAL OPERATING ACCOUNT:*
BEGINNING BALANCE.........ccccccoiiiinnne 4,398
ENDING BALANCE.........cccccoiiiiiiiiinne 10,492
REAL ESTATE TAX & INSURANCE ESCROW
ACCOUNT:*
BEGINNING BALANCE.. 8,175
ENDING BALANCE.........ccccooiiiiiiiiinne 4,455
TENANT SECURITY DEPOSIT ACCOUNT:
BEGINNING BALANCE.........cccccceeiiinnne 5,697
ENDING BALANCE.........ccccooiiiiiiiinne 4,787
(*Complete upon submission of actual expenses)
NUMBER OF APPLICANTS ON WAITING LIST.................. 0 | RESERVE ACCT REQ BALANCE.....
NUMBER OF APPLICANTS NEEDINGRA...........ccccccceeni. 0 | AMOUNT AHEAD/BEHIND...............

Form RD 3560-7 Page 3
Chester, Ltd.
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PART IV - RENT SCHEDULE & UTILITY ALLOWANCE

A. CURRENT APPROVED RENTS:

POTENTIAL INCOME FROM
UNIT DESCRIPTION RENTAL RATES EACH RATE
NOTE NOTE UTILITY
TYPE SIZE NUMBER | BASIC RATE HUD BASIC RATE HUD ALLOWANCE
N 1 BR 12 372 12 0 53,568 72,720 0
N 2BR 11 400 11 0 52,800 70,224 0
N 3 BR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N 2BR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N 2BR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CURRENT RENT TOTALS:[ 106,368 142,944 0
BASIC NOTE HUD
JNAUDITED
B. PROPOSED RENTS - Effective Date: 01/01/2016
POTENTIAL INCOME FROM
UNIT DESCRIPTION RENTAL RATES EACH RATE
NOTE NOTE
TYPE SIZE NUMBER | BASIC RATE HUD BASIC RATE HUD
N 1 BR 12 372 12 0 53,568 72,720 0
N 2BR 11 400 11 0 52,800 70,224 0
N 3 BR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N 2BR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N 2BR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PROPROSED RENT TOTALS:| 106,368 142,944 0
BASIC NOTE HUD
JNAUDITED

C. PROPOSED UTILITY ALLOWANCE - Effective Date: 01/01/2016

MONTHLY DOLLAR ALLOWANCES

UNIT
BR SIZE TYPE | NUMBER | ELECTRIC GAS WATER [ SEWER TRASH OTHER TOTAL
1 BR N 12 92 12 5 5 0 0 $114
2BR N 11 131 11 5 5 0 0 $152
3BR N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0
2BR N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0

Form RD 3560-7 Page 4

Chester, Ltd.
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PART V -- ANNUAL CAPITAL BUDGET

Appliances:
Range
Refrigerator
Range Hood
Washers & Dryers
Other
Carpet and Vinyl:
1 BR.
2BR
3BR
4 BR
Other
Cabinets:
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Other
Doors:
Exterior
Interior
Other
Window Coverings:
List
Other
Heating and Air Conditioning:
Heating
Air Conditioning
Other
Plumbing:
Water Heater
Bath Sinks
Kitchen Sinks
Faucets
Toilets
Other
Major Electrical:
List
Other
Structures:
Windows
Screens
Walls
Roofing
Siding
Exterior Painting
Other
Paving:
Asphalt
Concrete
Seal and Stripe
Other
Landscape and Grounds:
Landscaping
Lawn Equipment
Fencing
Recreation Area
Signs
Other
Accessibility Features:
List
Other
Automation Equipment:
Site Management
Common Area
Other
Other:
Last
List
Last

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES:

Form RD 3560-7 Page 5
Chester, Ltd.

UNAUDITED UNAUDITED

Current
Number of
Units/Items

Current
from
Reserve

Current
from
Operating

Actual
Number of
Units/Items

Actual
from
Reserve

Actual
from
Operating

Actual
Comments

Range

460

1,277

Refrigerator

1,35
1,68

560

1,734

(=] (el

Range Hood

Washers & Dryj

Other

olIo|Io|Io|IC

0
0
0

0
0

(=] (el

—[in
oS!

5,343

629

4 BR

Otiler

f==] (o] [w] (o) (o)

olIo|Io|Io|Ie

Kitchens

Bathrooms

Other

(=] (wo] (e

(=] (wo] (e

2,924

Exterior

Interior

Other

(=] (wo] (e

Other |

Heating

3.402

Air Conditioni

Other

(=] (wo] (e

| Water Heater

846

|Bath Sinks

|Kitchen Sinks

|Faucets

Toilets

Other

(=] [wo] [wo] (wo] (e) (e}

Other |

Windows

Screens

Walls

Roofing

0
10,400

Siding

Exterior Paintin

N
=3

Other

{==] [so] [wo] (o] (en] (o] (e}

[==] (=] [wo] (o] (en] (] (e}

Asphalt

Concrete

Seal and Stripe

Other

o|Io|o|S

o|Io|o|S

|Landscaping

Lawn Equipmer

Fencin

|Recreation Are

450

490

ions

Other

(=] [w=] [wo] (wo] (w) (e}

(=] [w=] [wo] (wo] (w) (e}

List |

5
=3
<

Other |

(=1

(=] (e

Site Manageme!

Common Area

Other |

(o] (e} (o)

(o] (e} (o)

802

296

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

[ 0]

14,730

I 2.120] |

27,177

2815 ]

116




PART VI -- SIGNATURES, DATES AND COMMENTS

Warning: Section 1001 of Title 18, United States Code provides: ""Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of any
Department or agency of the United States knowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals or covers up by any trick,
scheme, or device a material fact, or makes any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or representations, or
makes or uses any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE WARNING STATEMENT AND I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IS
COMPLETE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Hallmark Management, Inc as Agent
by: Martin H. Petersen

3/18/2016 Mc-:kw. \ Qi;m,)

(DATE) (Signature of Borrower or Borrower's Representative)
President
(Title)

AGENCY APPROVAL (USDA Rural Development approval official ): DATE:

COMMENTS:
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Chester, Ltd.
3560-7 Accrual To Cash Adj

12/31/2015
Account# Account Name 2015 YTD Change
1130 A/R - Tenants S (846.07)
1131 A/R - Security Deposit S (414.70)
1191 Cash - Security Deposits S 909.97
1240 Prepaid Hazard Insurance S (368.25)
2113 Management Fees Payable S 238.00
2191 Security Deposit Liability S (839.00)

TOTAL $ (1,320.05)
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Chester, Ltd.
Supporting Documentation to RD Forms 3560-10 and 3560-7
Years ended 2015 and 2014

1. Accounts Receivable (3560-10, Line 7)

1130 A/R - Tenants S
1146 A/R - Other S
Total S

2. Notes Payable (3560-10, Line 23)

3. Other (3560-10, Line 27)
Entity Exp - Research Tax Fee
1296:1296 A/R - 1/C Affiliates

2310 Due to - Other Properties
Total

4. Miscellaneous (3560-7, Line 27)

119

1,529.07 $

- S
1,529.07 $
$

23,919.21  $
- S
23,919.21 $

683.00
14,947.26

15,630.26

658.00

80,661.33
23,803.08

105,122.41



Attachment 4-C
Performance Standards
Borrower Self-Certification Letter

March 10, 2016

USDA Rural Development Office

In accordance with the criteria specified in Section 5; part 4.32(C) of the USDA Rural Development
Handbook (HB-2-3560) for the year ended December 31, 2015, the borrower must self-certify the
CHESTER APARTMENTS, L.P. is in compliance with the nine performance standards. The following is a
summary of our compliance with the performance standards.

1.

The required accounts are properly maintained and tracked separately. The accounts we maintain are
marked below:
X Operating Acct x Security Deposit Acct x Tax & Ins Account x Reserve Account

The payments from the operating account are disclosed and accurately represented.

The reserve account:

a. is on schedule with the Agency required minimum funding requirements; (please forward a copy of
RD’s RR tracking schedule so we can verify and track minimum funding requirements)

b. is maintained in a supervised bank account that requires the Agency’s countersignature on all
withdrawals;

c. 1is on schedule with contributions to the reserve account for the current year with the agency required
minimum funding; and

d. has no encumbrances on the reserve funds.

The tenant security deposits are fully funded and are maintained in separate accounts;

The payment of owner return was:

_ Paid in the amount of $0 for 2014 fiscal year and was in accordance with the Agency’s requirements
OR

X Not paid during the reporting year.

The borrower has maintained proper insurance in accordance with the requirements in 7 CFR 3560.105.
Coverage maintained for CHESTER APARTMENTS, L.P. is as follows:

x_Liability Ins x Flood Ins x Property Ins x Earthquake Ins x Fidelity Bond
All financial records are adequate and suitable for examination.

There have been no changes in the ownership of CHESTER APARTMENTS, L.P., other than those
approved by the Agency and identified in the certification.

The real estate taxes (property taxes) are paid in accordance with the state and/or local requirements. As
of December 31, 2015, there were no delinquent real estate taxes (property taxes).

I certify that the above is true, accurate and is properly supported by documentation kept in our files.

Hallmark Management, Inc. — Managing Agent

Martin H. Petersen - President
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Chester Apartments LP Vendor Vendor ID

Chester TI BNGA 8865 Tax Commissioner 322TAXCNTY
Invoice Number Date Description

2015 1917 12/20/2015 2015 CNTY RE TAX

PO Box 668

Eastman, GA 31023

TOTALS:

Atlanta, GA 30339

Payment Number  Date Check Number

00000000000215118 10/06/2015 00001027
Amount Discount Paid Amount
$2,802.96 $0.00 $2,802.96
$2,802.96

| octs, 2015 |

00001027 J

DATE

Form 608-BP

to the Order of:

I Tax Commissioner
PO Box 668

Eastman, GA 31023

CHECK NO.

$2,802.96

m0000 02 B L AP0 2890 WOOLL IBHEE S

Chester Apartments LP Vendor Vendor ID
Chester TI BNGA 8865 Tax Commissioner 322TAXCNTY
Invoice Number Date Description

2015 1917 12/20/2015 2015 CNTY RE TAX

PO Box 668

Eastman, GA 31023

TOTALS:
121

Payment Number Date

Check Number

00000000000215118 10/06/2015 00001027
Amount Discount Paid Amount
$2,802.96 $0.00 $2,802.96
$2,802.96 $0.00 $2,802.96

ELLBL
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s 2015 ADVALOREM TAX NOTICE FOR THE COUNTY OF DODGE

KAY GRAHAM TAX COMM BILL NUMB. 2015 1917
P O BOX 668 ACCT NUMB. 095850 010
EASTMAN GA 31023 TAXPAYER CHESTER APTS
MAP NUMBER 91A 9
Sl e g LEGAL DESC CHESTER APTS
RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED ; g i LOCATION
CURRENT YEAR TAXES 2,802.96

PAY THIS AMOUNT-=-=-==--- >2,802,96
If paying by check or money order, ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 20, 2015

please include your tax bill number.

ol
S| [RTLUTUTLET ELLLY ELLT FTTY | ETLLE | PTLELT RN 1Y L ALY A TSR S (G ST
CHESTER APTS 1917pT P O BOX 668 C0.PT.
C/0O PROPERTY TAX EAGLE 34 EASTMAN GA 31023 1917
3338 COUNTRY CLUB RD STE 10559

VALDOSTA GA 31605-7425

Please return this portion of your bill with your payment in the enclosed envelope

2015 ADVALOREM TAX NOTICE FOR THE COUNTY OF DODGE

YEAR | BILL NUM| ACCOUNT NUMBER|DI| LOCATION/DESCRIPTION MAP/PARCEL FAIR MARKET VALUE
2015/ 001917|095850 010 | 4| CHESTER APTS 91a 9 273,663
TAXING ENTITY ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION | TAXABLE VALUE |MILLAGE RATE| CREDITS TAXES DUE
STATE 109465 109465 .0000500 5.47
COUNTY 109465 109465 .0115560 .66 1,264.98
SCHOOL 109465 109465 .0140000 1,532.51

The gradual reduction and elimination of the STATE
MILLAGE RATE is the result of property tax relief

passed by the Governor, the Georgia State Senate,

and the House of Representatives.

THIS YEAR TAX 2,802.96
: 2,802.96
CHESTER APTS CREDITS ARE LISTED FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY
C/0 PROPERTY TAX EAGLE KAY GRAHAM TAX COMM
3338 COUNTRY CLUB RD STE PAYMENT MUST BE MADE ON OR BEFORE P O BOX 668
VALDOSTA GA 31605-7425 DECEMBER 20, 2015 EASTMAN GA 31023

YOUR CANCELLED CHECKX IS YOUR RECEIPT

If a receipt is requested, please enclose a stamped self-addressed
envelope.

----------------- PLEASE READ, THIS IS AN IMPORTANT PART OF YOUR TAX BILL--------=-=-=-=--

Certain persons are eligible for certain homestead exemptions from ad valorem taxation. In addition to the regular homestead
authorized for all homeowners, certain elderly persons are entitled to additional homestead exemptions. The full law relating
to each exemption must be referred to in order to determine eligibility for the exemption. If you are eligible for one of the
exemptions and are not now receiving the benefit of the exemption, you must apply for the exemption not later than 4/01/2016
in order to receive the exemption in future years. For more information on ellgigility for exemptions or on the proper method
of appl¥in for an exemption, you may contact the office of the County Tax Office at 5401 ANSON AVENUE 478-374-2154

If you feel that your property has been assigned too high a value for tax purposes by the Board of Tax Assessors, {ou should
file a tax return reducing the value not later than 4/01/2016 in order to have an opportunity to have this value lowered for
neg? yezgés3saxgs. Information on filing a return can be obtained from the County Tax Office at 5401 ANSON AVENUE

and/oxr -374-2154

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX CREDIT: LOCAL TAX LEVY:

The General Assembly reenacted the Local Option Sales Tax Mill rate required to produce local budget 11.562
Act and another part of your bill shows the dollar amount of Reduction in mill rate due to rollback to taxpayers

reduction of local progerty taxes which you have received. of sales tax proceeds this previous year . 006
The law now requires the following additional information to Actual mill rate set by local officials 11.556

be provided to each taxpayer:
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Chester Apartments LP Vendor Vendor ID Payment Number  Date Check Number
Chester TI BNGA 8865 City of Chester 322TAXCITY 00000000000215117 10/06/2015 00001026
Invoice Number Date Description Amount Discount Paid Amount
2015 42 12/20/2015 2015 CITY RE TAX $109.47 $0.00 $109.47
PO Box 67

Chester, GA 31012
TOTALS:

$109.47 $0.00 $109.47

[oct6,2015 | ooo01026 | |
DATE CHECK NO,

$109.47

608-BP

Form

to the Order of:

: City of Chester

i‘ PO Box 67

'; Chester, GA 31012

: \Gu:;\:wg% Hi‘n:élﬁz\_”ccg.‘ozagn BACKGROUND - Bon:bsjﬁ;i:gﬂ'rzni_ﬁs MICHOPFIEI_{:‘I‘IH;

0000 0 2E™L e & 7025901k WOOLL3IBBES

Chester Apartments LP Vendor Vendor ID Payment Number  Date Check Number
Chester TI BNGA 8865 City of Chester 322TAXCITY 00000000000215117 10/06/2015 00001026
Invoice Number Date Description Amount Discount Paid Amount
2015 42 12/20/2015 2015 CITY RE TAX $109.47 $0.00 $109.47
PO Box 67

Chester, GA 31012
TOTALS:

123 $109.47 $0.00 $109.47
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DA 2015 ADVALOREM TAX NOTICE FOR THE CITY OF CHESTER

CITY OF CHESTER BILL: NUMB. 2015 42
P O BOX &7 ACCT NUMB., 095850 010
CHESTER GA 31012 TAXPAYER CHESTER APTS
MAP NUMBER 91A 9
LEGAL DESC CHESTER APTS
RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED LOCATION
CURRENT YEAR TAXES 109.47
PAY THIS AMOUNT-----=--- >109.47
If paying by check or money order, ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 20, 2015

please include your tax bill number.

CITY OF CHESTER 2015
CHESTER APTS 42PT P O BOX 67 CITY
C/0 PROPERTY TAX EAGLE CHEESTER GA 31012 42
3338-L1 COUNTRY CLUEB RCA
VALDOSTA GA 31605

Please return this portion of your bill with your payment in the enclosed envelope

2015 ADVALOREM TAX NOTICE FOR THE CITY OF CHESTER

YEAR | BILL NUM| ACCOUNT NUMBER|DI| LOCATION/DESCRIPTION MAP/PARCEL FALR MARKET VALUE

2015/ 000042095850 010 | 4] CHESTER APTS 91a 9 273,663

TAXING ENTITY ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION | FAXASLE VALUE |MILLAGE RATE] CREDITS TAXES DUE

CITY TAX 109465 109465 .0010000 4809.89 109.4"7
THIS YEAR TAX 109.47

109.47

CHESTER APTS CREDITS ARE LISTED FOR INFORMATION PURPOSHS ONLY

C/0 PROPERTY TAX EAGLE CITY OF CHESTER

3338-L1 COUNTRY CLUB ROA PAYMENT MUST BE MADE ON OR BEFORE P O BOX 87

VALDOSTA Ga 31605 DECEMBER 20, 2015 CHESTER GA 31012

YCQUR CANCELLED CHECK IS YQOUR RECEIPT

----------------- PLEASE READ, THIS IS AN IMPORTANT PART OF YOUR TAX BILL-------==rmne=n=~-

Certain pergons are eligible for certain homestead exemptions from ad valorem taxation. In additicn to the regular homestead

authorized for all homeowners, certain elderly persons are entitlied to additional homestead exemptions. The full law relating
to each exemption must be referred to in order Lo determine eligibility for the exemption. If you are eligible for cne of the
exemptions and are not now receiving the benefit of the exempticn, you must applg for the exemption not later than

in order to receive the exemption in future years. For more information on eligi ilit{ for exemptions or on the proper method
of appl¥1ng for an exemption, you may contact the coffice of the Counky Tax Office ab 104 CHESTER AVE N 478-358-4549

If vou Teel that your property hag been assigned too high a value for tax purpeses by the Board of Tax Assessors, ycu should

file a tax return reducing the value not latér than in order to have an opportunity to have this value lowered for
next year's taxes. Information on filing a return can be obtained from the County Tax Office at 104 CHESTER AVE N

and/or 478-358-4549

LOCAL OPTICN SALES TAX CREDIT: LOCAL TAX LEVY;

The General Assembly reenacted the Iocal Opticn Sales Tax Mill rate required to produce local budget 44,5340
Act and anothexr part of your bill shows the dollar amcunt of Reduction in mill xate due to rollback Eo taxpayers

reduction of local property taxes which you have received. of sales tax proceeds this previous year 43.940
The law now requires the following additlconal information to | Actual mill rate set by local officials 1.000
be provided to each taxpayer:
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 USDA
USDA

L _ _ Umted States Department of Agrieulmre .

o . . S0t . A - %

: ,December 29 2015°

‘ "'.-"Mr Marth Petersen

- Tallmark Management Inc.

" 3111 Pages Milt Rd:, Stite A-zso |
- Atlanta, GA 3033

! ‘RE Chester Ltd (Chester Apts)
2016 Proposed Budget L

_‘The above document ha,s been rev1ewed and approved by our ofﬁce 'I‘hls is effectwe

B :V.Januaryl 2016

- The followmg items are noted

‘ 1. : -The reserve: -account is on track but the property does have ﬁna;nc1a1 problems
2 Property has- outstandmg mamtenance 1ssues Management 1s Workmg to get the
. issues corrected ‘

C30 ,'Management Fec'is approved at $42 OO POU/MONTH

. Please call our office if you have any questions.

- _SANDRA R. BRYANT 7Area Speerahst
“For: Ricky P, Sweat; Area Manager
| USDAfRural Developrnent

Erlelo'sures

Rural Development Douglas Semce Center
703 EastWard St., Douglas-GA 31533

sandra. bryant@qa.ysda.gov, hitp//www. rardev.usda.govigal
Vmce (478) 934-6392,. Ext 111 < TDD {770) 253-2555 Fax (478} 934-2597

- - USDA Is an equal oppartunr!y provider and employer, '

L you wlsh io fi le a Clvi! Rights program complalnt of discrimination, complste the USDA Program Discrimination Gomp[aint Form (FDF),
found enline at hitp.iwaie-ascr.usda.goweomplaint_filing_cust himi, or at any USDA officé, or:cail (866) 632- 8002 to request the form. You -
may.also wite a-lefter contaimng all of the information.requested In the formi. Sénd yolir completed complaint form or lefter t0'us by malf -

_ - U:S, Department of Agricuitur, Directot, Offie' of ‘Adjudication, 1400 lndependence Avenue, SW., Washmgton, D.C. 20250-8410, by fax
. '~(202) 690 7442 or ema|l at. program mlake@ueda gov 2 ) ] 7
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kReport + FINFOOO

i Multl Family Informatlon System {MFIS)-

Propesed Budget

. Daté:

-Page-: ‘

Project Name: ] CHESTER .APTS :
Borrower Name: -~ e CHESTER LTD
- [:Boxrower ID and Project No 139982974 0i-8
‘| Date of Operation . 01/04/1585 )
_Loan/Transfer Amount:
Note Rate . Payment.
I Payment : 51,616,17 .
Reporting "|"Budget Type Project Rantal
Period . oL Type
_. Inicial .
X" mnnual . X . Regular Report- _X Family
. Quarterly . ___ Rent Change - Elderly '
.. Monthly ___ 8MR ___ Congregate
. _ Other Servn.c:mg | Group Home
__ Mixed LH

i Pr@fit .A.“I‘ype

Full Profit .
X Limited Profit
‘Nen-Profit

I hereby request’

. units OF RA.

Current number of RA units 17 .

Gas‘ .

The following utilities are
master metered:

TX_'Blecericity
_X_ Water
X Sewer
. Trash
woee. Cther

Borrower ‘Accounting Method

Cash
 Accreal

J

10/22/201
5
1 of 3a

-Sengitive ,bu{-.:U_ncJ._gsaified/Sené‘ir.ﬁive Security Infortpgion - Disseminate on a Neod-To-Know Basis only




Report: FIN1000 Multl Family Informatlon System (MFIS} ‘Date;  10/22/201

N . Propoaed Budget Page: 2 of 38
Projébt Name{ CHESTEQVAFTS ' ‘statE°'10 .Sérvicing Office: 606 CounFy: 45
" Borrower .Name: CHESTER LTD oo Borr- Ibr 139982874  Prj.tbr: 01-8 Paid Code: Active
Clagsification: .C.  Piscal Year: 2016 Version- 01/01/2016 TRANSMITD Totals: By Project ,Ana;ygedz N

i&ém Current ‘ ) Proposed ‘ )
s . ' Budget - Actual . _Budget Commenk

Effectlve Dates: '01/01/20;5' 01/91/2015 - 01/01/2016
"Ending Dates: |-12/31/2018. - 12/31/2018 12/31/2016

FART I - CAGH FLOW STATEMENT

Dpexatiohal cash_sdurceé

1.‘Rental Inéome

2 RHS ‘Renktal- Assist Recelved

35 Appllcation Fee Received

4. Laundry .And Vending

106, 368.00

106.365.00 |

5, Interest Income

6.‘Ténant'chdrggs

7. Other f'ProjéctrSpurces

8. Le&s (Voncy @ Cnkgrcy Allw)

9

Lessg . (Agney Aprvd, Incenty)

10. Sub-Ttl [{i thru 7)- (86911

Hon-Operational Cagh Sources -

11. Cash -~ Non Project

112, huthorized Loan (Non-RHS)

13. Transfer From ‘Roserva

14, Sub-Total (11 thru 13)

15, Total Cash Sources (10+14)

operational Caah Uaes -

16, Tl o&w Exp {From Part IT)

17, RHS Debt Payment

18, RHS ngment (Overage)

12, RHS Payment (Late Fee) -

20. Reductn In Bricr Yr Bybles

21. Tenant Utility JPayments’

22, Transfer to Reperve

0.00
70.00 24.00
1,500,00 "1, 740.00
0.00 95.00 | ADP FEES
~%0,560.00 78,520.00 |
0.00 5,60
97 328, 00, T59,708.00
0.00 | 0.00
6.00 0.00
14,750,00 . 15,631.00 )
14,730.00 19,031,00
112,056.00 118,735,600
66, 615.00 68,665.37
19,394.04 157352, 0%

23. RIN Owner/NP Agset Mgt Fee

24. gub-Total (16 thru 23)

Hon-Operational Casgh Uses

35. Authzd Debt Pymnt (NouRHS]

26, Capital Budget (III 4-6)

27. Miscellaneous'

28. Sub-Total (25" thru 27)

29. Total Cash Uses (24+287

30.-Net (Daficit) (15-29)

. 8,616.00

0,00 ~2,480.00
$4,625.04 95,159,41
0,00 0.00
714,730,006 | 15,031.00

_ 0.00 § T.00
12,730, 00 19, 031.00
109,355,04, 118719041
Z,702.96 548,59

Cash Balance

31, Beginning Cash Balance

32, Acerual To Cash Adjustment

33, Ending Cash Bal (30+31+32)

5,985.00 5,234.00

5,782.59

- Sensitive but ﬂnoléaaifiedlﬂenﬁitive'Sedugity'lnfoﬂﬂihignru Diaéémihatefon a Need-To-Know Basis Only




Report: FIN10OQ : S Multi-Family Information System (MFIS)- ‘ . , Date: 1e/22/201

) o , ‘ 5
Proposed Budget B o Page: | 3 of 26
Project Name:; CHESTER APTS ' - o " 8tate: 10 Servicing Offide: 606 County: 4%
Borrower Name:  CHESTER LTD : " " Borr ID: 135982974 Prj Nbr: 01L-8 Paid Code: Active
Clagsification: C Figtal Year: 2015  Version: 01/01/2016 TRANSMITD . Totals: By Project  aAnalyzed: N
Item S - -Current ] - Proposed
o - Budget Aotual . Budget : Comment
Effective Dates: . . 01/01/2015 I 0170172018 { o1/01/2016

Ending Dates: : ] 12/31/2015 12/31/201% 12/31/2016

PART II - O@M EXPENSE SCHEDULE

1, Maint. @ Repairs Payroll T 12,380.66 7, 256.00
2. Maint. @ Repalrs Supply ~4,325.00 "8,220.00
3. Haint, @ Repairs Confract T 400,00 200,00
4. Painting. N -~ 600,00 ‘8007, 00
5. Snow Removal | 0.00 0.00
G, Blevator Maint./dontract | .60 9.00
7. Grounds B = T 4,560,00. 5,901.00
8. Services - ' 1,856.00 Z,300,00
%, Cpti Byt (Fart V operating)  2,140.00 1,203.00
10. Other Operating Expenses ' 0.00 ; 0.00
iI. Sub-Ttl 0@K (1 thzu id) 26,175.66 2€,580. 00
12, Electricity : 1,078,00 2,952, 00
13. Water ' 180,00 '130.00
T4, Sower — T 180,00 130,00
T5. Fuel (0il/Coal/Gas) ' : 0.00° 5.00
16; Garbage @ Trash Removal ' . 2,700.,00°f 2,645.00
17, Other Utilitics - G.00 T 5.60
1. Sub-T%1 Util. (iz thru 17) §,136.00 5,857.00
"15. Site Management Payroll - 3,366.58 "5,134,53
20. Management. Fee 10,488.00 11,592, 00
21. Project Auditing Expense 2,363.00 . 2,363,00
22. Préj.,Bookkeeping/aécnting ¢.00 ¢.00
23. Legal Expenses ] 150,00 1B4.00.
24. Advertising ' : 550,00 350. 60
25, Phone @ Answering Sexvice 1,500,00 1}500.00
26, Office Supplies “'1,050.00 1,333.00
27, Office Furniture @ Equip. 0.00 .0.00
28, Training Expense . -200.00 215.00
29, Hlth Ing. @ Other Benefits 1,534.85 2,405,26
30, Payfoll Taxes 1,651.08 1,307,.95
31, . Workmans Coﬁpensation 58gE .49 362.20
32. Other Adwmin,Expengses ' 730,00 875,00 | CREDIT CHK, BANK (HG, MILEAGE
33, Bub-Ttl Adwin (19 thru 32) 24,570.00 27,821.94
34, Real Estate Taxes ‘ , T4,452.47 3,108.00
35. Special Agmessments 500,00 ° 450,00
36. Othr Taxes, Longes, Dermos 350,00 538,20 | SOFTWARE + BUSTNESS LIC
37, Property @ Liability Inms, ~ 4,428.87 z,274.23 | :
38, Fidelity Coverage Ins. _ _ 5,00 0.00
39, Other Insurance - 0.00 | 0.00
40.. Sub-TtHl Tx/;n (34 thru §9) 8,731.34 8,370.43
41, Ttl 0GM Exps (11+18+33+40) 7 ] 66,615,00 68,665,37

Senaitiﬁe but Unclassified/Sensitive Security InforfRBtion - Disseminate on a Need-To-Know Basis Only




Report: FIN1000

Multi-Family Information.System (MFIS) » .. Date:. - 10/22/201
Propoged Budget . ’ L ) S - page: 4 of 36

Project Name: CHESTER APTS
Borrower Name: CHESTER ITD

Co ‘Btaktey 10 =Serviéing'0f£ice: 606 ©  County: 45
‘Borr ID 139982974 - Prj Nbr: 01-8 Paid Codé: RActive

Clasgifidation: € . ' . Fiscal Year: 2616- ver91on. 01/01/2016 .TRENSMITD .. Totals: By Project: Analvzed: N

) Itam

Current - . i ‘ prpcsed ) .
CBudget : Actual ~ . | . .Budget- 1. . . Comment

Effective -Dateés:

01701/2015 . 01/902/2015 .- .| 03/01/2016

Ending.Dqtés:

12/31/2015 12/31/2015 - — }.12/31/2018

PART IIT - ACCT BUDGET/STATUS

Reserve Account

1, EEQinnlng Balance

58,011,289 35,726,26

2, Transfer to Reserve

B,EiG}QO '8,616.00

Transfer From Reaarva

3.'Operat1ng DeflUlt

0,00 0.00 |,

4._Cpt1 Bgt - (Paxt v reaerva)

T 14,730,00, - 15,031.00

Su‘Bullding @ Equlp Repair.

0.00 ¢.00

6. Othr Fon- Operatlng Expenses

70.60 | .00

7. Total (3 thry 6)

14 730 00 15,031, 00"

8. Endlng Balance [(1+2) 7)]

25,315.26

51,397.29a

Genaral operat;ng Acceunt

Beg;nnlng Salance

Endlng Balance

Real Esbata Tax- And Ins Escrow

Beglnnang Balance

Ending Balance

Tenantlsgéuxjty Deposit Adat

Beginning Balance’

Ending Balance

Number df~A§p1icants'on'Waiting List | . . . " 0’| Reserve Acct. Req. Balance ] 44,619,26

Nurber of Applicants Needing RA

Amount Ahead/Behind ) 7,621,116

", gensitive but Unclassified/Sersitive Security Iﬁfofﬁ&kiop.-.Diasaminate on & ‘Head-To-Enow Basis Only




_Report: FIN1000 Multi-Family Information System (MFIS)} Date:  10/22/201
‘ Proposed Bu_dget- Page: 5 of 32
Project'Name: CHESTER APTS State: 10 - éervicing Office: 606 County: 45
Borrower Name: CHESTER LTD . . --Borr -ID: 139982974 Prj Nbr: 01-8 Paid Code: Active
Classificatiane‘c Figeal Year: 2016  Version: 01/01/2016 TRANSMITD Totals: By Project Analyzeq: I
[FART IV RENT BCHEDULE
‘A.'CbRREﬁTlAPPROVED RENTZ/UTILITY ALLOWANCE: 01/01/2015 .
Init Descr'ipéion ] Rental Rates ‘Potenl‘;ial Income From Each Rate- IUt:ility
Type |8ize| HC | Rev ] Unit | Number | Basic Note HUD Basic Note HUD Allowance
M 2 All - ) 11 400 532 0 52,800 70,2.24 -0 141
M S All 12 ) 372 .. 505 . 0 53,568 72,720,
CURRENT RENT TOTALS 106,368 142,944
FFFECTIVE DATR OF TENTEUTILITY ALLOWANGE: 01701/2015
l Unit Pesexipticn Eilit-)r Types )
Type | Size | HC Rev Uﬁit Eléct‘. Gas Sewer Trash Othe:f . Total Allow
M 2 All . 131 0 ’ 5 ’ 141
¥ [T |ALL 86 T G 102
B._PROPOSED.cﬂAﬁGE oF RENTS/UTIL;TY ALLOWANCE: 01/01/2016 . )
Unit Description R Rental iates Poﬁential In&ome From Each Rate [Ucility
Type Si.«zelI HC | Rev | Unit | Number Bagic Note HUD Basic Noke ~HUD' AlLlowance
M 2 AllL 11 400 532 ¢] 52,800 70,224 - Q 141
| R TN 12 377 505 0 53,568 72,720 ' 163
PRGPOSED RENT TOTALS 106, 368 142, 944
EFFECTIVE DATE OF RENTS/UTILITY ALLOWANCE: gr/01/2016
Unit Description Utiliky Types ‘
Type | 8ize | HC Rev Unit: Elect Gas Sewer Trash Other Total Allow
M 2 (a1 131 o 5 141
RS F F Vi) 52, 5l 5 102

Senmitive but Unclassified/Sensitive Security_!nforﬁﬁhion - Digpeminate on a Nead~To-Enow Bagis Only




Datea:

. Bensitive but Unclassified/Sensitive Security

Report: FIN1000 " Multi-Family Information System (MFIS). 10/22/201
‘ ‘ Proposed Budget Page: 6 of 36
ﬁrojedt‘,_i\?a‘me: CHESTER APTS SEaté~ 16 Servicing OfEice': 606  County: 45
_.Borrower Name: CHESTER LID = - Borr ID: 139982974 Prj Nbr: 01-8 Pald Code; Active
Classn.fication C - Fiscal Year. 2016 Version 01/03./2016 TRANSMITD . Totals By Project Analyzed: N
Item . Pragosed Propoaed- A_ctual Proposed . -Ac'tuall‘ ) Ac‘tual- Total
Numbexr . From From From From * Total Actual

. N : Unite/Items Regerve Reserve . operating | Operating _Cost  Unita/Items
Effective Dates: ;- 01/03/2018  101/01/2016 {01/01/2015 | 01/01/2016 | 01/0L/2015 - 01/01/2015 - 01/01/2018
Ending Dates: Tiz/31/72008 |, . 1273172018 ' T I12/31/201% . [12/31/2015 [12/31/3015
ammn. capmu. BUDGET |

Appl:.ancers L L o o .

Fppliances © Range _ T3 [ 1,606.00 3,006 505,00 ) ~ 0,00 g
appliancéd ; Refrigerator. 3| 1,735,060 .00 " 0.00. 0.00 0200 0
Appilances - Range Hood | K3 6.00. T 0.00 6560 0.00 300 0
Appiiances - WaEheTs © R ~0.00 .00 T.00 .00 (RTE T
Dryers - L i ‘ SR :

Appliances - Other 0. "0.00 g, o0 0.00 ..0.00 ¢.00 0
K Cagpéi; and Vinyl -~~~ R L i G R o

Carpet @ Vinyl - 1 Bro T 1,390,090 6.00 |- 0.00 000 G.00 0
Carpet @ vinyl - 3 Br. 2] 1,950.00 000 | T0.00 ] _ -0.00 006 "0
Carpet @ vinyl = 3 Br. o[ T0.066 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 2
Carpet @ Vinyl - 4 Br. 3l 0.00 T0.00 6,00 0,00 0.00 Y
“Carpet @ Vinyl - Other 3 0.00 TR 0.00 0.00 .00 0
_Cabinets ) = . . .. T

Cabinéts - Kitchens 0 0,00 000 T 0.00 6.00" "0:00 0
Tabinets - Bathroom b 0.0 6,00 5. 00 ¢, 00 0.00 )
Cabinets - Other 7,00 .00 | 0.00 .00 0.00° 0
Dod?s ‘ ’ '

Doors - Bxterior 0.00 T 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0
Doors - Interlor 0,00 0.00 5,00 T 0.00 6700 0
Doors - Other 0,00 .00 . G.00 G.00 .00 0
Window Coverings B ) ' ’ )

Window Coverings - Petail 3. 5,00 0.00" 0.00] 0.00 0.00 o
Window Coverings - OFher ) 0 0.00 .00, 5.00 | 0.60 G.00 o
Heat aod Aix -Condiﬁioping' - ) . B

Heat @ Alr - Heaking 1| #.100.00 0,00 0.00 | 5,00 0.00 0
Heat ® Air - Alr. 1] 2,100.00 0.00° 0,00 0., 00 0.00 0
Conditioning . .

Heat ® Alxr - Other 0 0.00 .00 .00 0,00- .00 )
Plumbing .

Plumbing - Water Heatex "3 .3_50..00 .60 700.900 0.00 0.00 ¢
Plumbing - Bath Sinks 0 0,080 0.00 0,06 0G0 G.00 0
Plurbing - Kitchien Sinks 0 ©.00 0.00 T6.60 | T 0,00° .00 ¢
Plumbing - Faucets .0 9,00 0:00 0,60 "0.00 0.0 )
Plumbing - Toliets C 0.00 0.00 0.60 .00 0.06 0
Plumbing - OLher 9 9.00 1. 0.00 "0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Mﬁjor Electrical’ ) - — )

Major Electrical - Detail 0.00 G.00 .00 .00 0.30 0
Major Electrical - Other- 0.00 ¢, 00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0
Structures ) ] ' ) - . ]

Structures - Windows 0 0.00 500 |- 5.00 ~0.060 0.00 0
Structurcs - Soreens 0 0,00 5.00 | 0.00 0,00 0.00" o
Structures - Walls 0 0,00 ~0.00, 0.00 0.00 .00 0
Structures -. ROGEINg. o] 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0,00 i
Struccures - Siding . 0 0,60 0.00 | G.00 | 0.00 0.00 0
Structures - EXterior i) 500 0.00 0,00 0.060 0,00 0
Painting . L ' C - L :

Structures - Qther - 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.

Inforfidtion .- Dingeminate on a .Need-;l‘osKnOW Bagis Only

o




Réport: FINLOOD o . Mylei-Family Information System (MFIS) ‘ :  Date: - 10/22/201

. . . . 8
'Proposed Budget ’ o ] . Page; 7 of 36 .
Project Name:. CHESTER ADTE " — . ' —Stafe; 10 . Servicing OLfice; 06 County: 45
Borrovier Name: CHESTER LTD . . : Borr ID: 139982974  Prj Nbr: 01-8 bPaid Code: Active
Class:.flcation c - Flﬂcal Year: 2016 - Version: '01/81/2016 TRANSMITD_ . Totala: By Project  Analyzedi N
_Item ] .,Pro'posed N P-roposed  Actual’ Proposed - Botual - | -~ Aetual -.Total
: L : Number . . From i . From ‘ From ‘From - . Total Actual
- o .| Unitg/Itemg - Regerve Regarve Operating Qperating Cost | Units/Items
Effectlve Dal:es L 101/01/2015, " J01/01/2016 -} 01/01/2015 01/02/2016 01/01/2015 {01/01/2015 {j01/01/2018

Endmg Dates. R o l12/31/z01s ] T {12/31/2018 | . . p12/31/2015 {12/31/2015 |12/31/2015
‘Paving‘ X ] . . : oy
Paving -‘A‘sphaltr 0 0.00°{ - .00 0.00° 0.00 0..00 0
Paving - Concréte 0 0.00 | - 6.00 _ D.o0 . G.00 -F . 0.00 o
Paving - Seal and Stripe’ .0 .00 : .00 | .. D.0D 0.00 0.900 0
“Paving - COther. ‘ i} ¢.o00 S 0,00 . o f.00 ). o0.00 } . 0.00 "0
‘Landscape ‘and Grounda B . . o o . - ‘ : -
-Lngisgp@Grnds - Landscdaping = 0 0.00 ~0.004 0,00 .00 . ¢.00 0

1 Lndé_cp@Grnds' - Lawn : . o T 0 0.00 : 0,00 000 . - 0000 | 0.00 o}
Equipment . . : : b . .
VLnd,scp‘@Gr"nds - Fenain ' : 0 0.00 0.00 o 0.00 | 0.00 0.00
Lndscp@Grnds‘ - Recreation ~ : 0’ 0.00 : g.00 " 6.00 0.00 - 0,00
BrEw . . . : . :

Lndscp@Grnds - Sign,a"r ’ . 0. .00 | -~ Q.0C Q.00 0.0¢ 0.00
Lndscp@drnds. - Other | - BER - 0.00 0.00, 0.00 0.00 - 0.00 | 0
Accessibility Features i S T o ]

Aocesgibility Features - - 0. B,000.00 0.00 0,00 0.00. 0.Co . [+
Detail . ] . . ¥ ) : L i .
Accessibiliby Features - : .0 0,00 - 0.00 B 0.00 0.00 '0.00 ’ 0
Other . TR ' - . ) ) L )

1 Automaticn- Equ:.pmant: ] ] . . 7
Butomdtion Equilp. -Site’ i : . ol - o.oo | "o0.00 | . 0.00 0.G0 0.08 .0
Mngt. . i ' - . B ) . .

| Automation Equip Ee—— ‘ G 0.00 R 0.00- '0.00 | o.00. | . 0.08 0
Ared - . . . : ) . i .o .
AButomation Equip. -Gther . 0 0.00 | 0.00 0,00 .o 0.00 | 0.00. 0
Other i ] - 7
List: ? 0 0.00 6.00 . 0.00 '0.00 ©0.00 .0
Listy ? [ 0.00 ©ooee0f . 0.00 000 7 0.00 0
List: ? 0 9.00 : a.00 0.00 " " 0.00 0.00 0
Total’ Capital Expenses [} 19,431,000 |- - . 0.00 1,203.00 o.00 0.00 0

‘Sl_ansi.}:iVa—'hu.t,._TJnc;ll'a"Els—ifilad/_sanélit:i:.'v_e_ Ssourity Infokdhtion - Digseminate on a Need-To-Enow Basis Only |




Report: FIN100O - . _Multi-Family Tnformation System (MFIS] . Date:  10/22/201

] ) ] 5
Proposed Budget L ) ' Page: 8 of 38
Project Name: CHRESTER APTS T " State: 10.  Servicing Office: 606  County: 45 .
Borrower Name: CHESTER LTD . . ’ -+ Borr ID; 1382982974 - Prji bWbr: 01-8 Paid Code: Ac;iye
Claggificakion: ¢- Figeal Year: 2016 . Version: 01/01/2016 TRANSMITD . - Totals: By Project Analyzed: N

Pant Vi — SIGHATURES, DATES AND COMMENTS

- Warning © .| 8ectlon I001 of Title 18, United States Code provides: "Whoever, in any.matter within the

7| jurisdiction of any department or-agency of the United States knowingly and willfully
faldifies, conceals or covérs up by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact, or makes any
_false, fictitlous or fraudulent statements or representation, or makes or uses any false writing or
document knowing the same to c¢ontain any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, shall
be fined undeir -this .title or impriscnad not more than five years, o6r both,

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE WARNING.STATEMENT AND I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FORHGOING INFORNATION I8.COMPLETE AND ACCURATE
TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, . : A . ) '

HALLMARK GROUP REAL' ESTAYE ‘ B . MA202860

7‘(Date Submittad) {Management Agency) (MA#)
{Date) o -{8ignature of Borrower or -Borrower's Representative) - - -

/’Agency Approval (Rural Deyelopmen
f .

JRIFIS

(Date}

" Senaitive but-Uncrassifiédfsénsit$va Sacurity Infod@dtion - -Dismeminate on' a Need-To-#ndw'BASEB-Only




Report: FINL000 . Multi-Family Information System (MPIS) : . Date:  10/22/201

. . 5

Proposed Budget ‘ Page: g of 36
Project Name: CHHESTER APTS : State: 10 'Servicing Office: 606 County; 45'
Borrower Name: CHESTER LTD L : Borr ID: 139982974 'Prj Nbr: 01-8  Pald Code: Active
Claggification: ¢ ~ Fiscal Year: 2016 Vexrsiomn; 01/01/2016 TRANSMITD Totals: By Project Analyzed; N
SPVS Comment:
Batched/ II. 052515
Narrative: . . . L :
BUDGET NARRATIVE - PROJECT NAME  Chester Apartments

BORROWER NAME Chester Apartments, Ltd,BORROWER ID AND -PROJECT NO  382520114- 017 - [IChester Apartments is a 24
unit community located in Chester, Georgla., In 2015 the property hasa 94 % occupancy rate. DALl findings from
previoug Years are being correctedas funds are available. The property has .applied for an MPR lcan , which will
supply the funding to correct all findings. UAt this time the property is exberienciqg financial hardship due to
deferred mainterance issues and increase cost of employee insurance, [The ‘property hag experienced changes in

" project expenges or cash seurces that' exceed the toleranca threshold in the following areas .ggﬂimmﬁinzggangg_
‘supplies, this is due to deferred maintenance from préviocis yeas.{ It is expected that $19,03T:007 " will be spent

-~ £rom the reserve account in 2016. TESTEnE PO IIoWing Accessible unit, hot water heaters, carpets , stoves
(refrigerators and -roof repair. -0an additicnal $1203.00 will be spent from the operating reaerve., O
Replacements for 2017 through 2019 are as follows 2017 - 2 carpets, 1 stove, L-water heater, i refrigerator, 1
HVACunits, and roof replacement. 2018 - 2 carpets, 1 stove, 1 water heater, 1 refrigerator, 1 HVAC unitsp, 2019 - 1
stove, 1 carpet, 1 water heater, : refrigerator, 2 HVAC unite and roof replacement: . N0 Rent Increase ig needed for
2016. OThere is no additional documentatios necessary for the Agency to establigh that applicable Agenay requirements
have been met.

Séneitive but Uﬁclaasifiad/ﬁansitive Security Infortd:ion - Disseminate on a Nead-ToTKnow Basis Only




USDA

i
United States Department of Agriculture

VIA EMAIL ONLY

December 8, 2016

Mr, Maniin H. Petersen

Hallmark Mgmt. Inc.

3111 Paces Mill Rd., Suite A-250
Atlanta, GA 30339

RE: Chester, Ltd. (Chester Apts)
2017 Proposed Budget

The above document has been reviewed and approved by our office. This is effective
January 1, 2017,

The following items are noted:'

1, The reserve account is on track and ahead of schedule.

2 The property has improved physically but has had issues with unsatisfactory vendor
work, Additional maintenance is needed as funds are available.

3. Management Fee is approved at $42.00 POU/Month as proposed on the budget.

Please call our office if you have any questions.

7

Dishad Llrted
0

SANDRA R. BRYANT, Area Specialist
For: Ricky P. Sweat, Area Manager

USDA/Rural Development

Enclosures

Rural Development » Douglas Service Center
703 East Ward St., Douglas, GA 31533

sandra.bryant@ga.usda.gov, hitp:/;www.rurdev.usda.gov/aa/
Voice (912)384-4811, Ext 127 « TDD (770) 253-2555 » Fax (855)546-2690

UISDA is an equal opportunity provider andg employer.
If you wish to file a Civil Rights program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Compfaint Form (PDF),
found online at hitp:/iwww.ascr.usda.govicomplaint_fling_cust.html, or at any USDA office, or call (868) 832-9992 to request the form, You
may also wrile a letter contalning all of the information requested in the form. Send your compleled commplaint form or letter to us by mail al
U.5. Depariment of Agriculture, Director, Office of Adjudicalion, 1400 independance Avenue, S.W., Washingtan, D.C. 20250-8410, by fax
(202) 890-7442 or email at program.inteke@usda.gov,
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= Sarn B
‘ United States Department of Agriculture

USDA

- VIA EMAIL ONLY

December 8, 2016

Mr. Martin H. Petersen

Hallmark Mgmt, Inc.

3111 Paces Mill Rd., Suite A-250
Atlanta, GA 30339

RE: Rent Increase and Utility Allowance Change

You are hereby notified CHESTER, LTD.; D/B/A CHESTER APTS project(s), and
considered all justifications provided by project management [and comments provided by
tenants]. The Rural Development has approved the following rent (occupancy charge)
and/or utility allowance rates listed below. The changes for all units will become
effective on JANUARY 1, 2017 or later effective date in accordance with state or local
laws. ‘

The change is needed for the following reasons:

The approved changes are as follows: |

Unit Size Present Rent Approved Rent
(Occupancy Charge) (Occupancy Charge)
Basic Note Rate Basic Note Rate
1-Bedroom $372 $505 $384 $517
2-Bedroom $400 $532 $412 $544
The approved utility allowance changes are as follows:
Unit Size Present Utility Approved Utility
Allowance Allowance
1-Bedroom $102 $107
2-Bedroom $141 NO CHANGE

Should you have any questions or concerns, you may contact Rural Development. The
Rural Development Servicing Office address is; 703 East Ward St., Douglas, GA 31533,

Rural Development + Douglas Service Center
703 East Ward St, Douglas, GA 31533

sandra bryant@ga.usda.gov, hitp;/fwww.rurdev. usda.govigal
Voice {912} 384-4811, Ext 127 « TDD {770} 253-2555 « Fax (855) 546-2650

USDA Is an equal opportunity provider and employer.
if you wish 4o file a Civil Rights program complaint of disciimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Gemplalnt Form (PDF),
found online at hitp:/www.ascr.usda.govicomplaint_filing_cust.html, or at any USDA office, or call (866} 832-9992 {o request the form. You
may also write a fetter containing all of the information requested In the form. Send your completed complaint form or lstter to us by mail at
1.8, Department of Agriculture, Director, Office of Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-8410, by fax
{202) 680-7442 or email at program.intake@usda.gov.
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You must notify the tenants (members) of Rural Development's approval of the rent
(occupancy charge) and utility allowance changes by posting this letter in the same
manner as the "NOTICE TO TENANTS (MEMBERS) OR PROPOSED RENT
(OCCUPANCY CHARGE) AND UTILITY ALLOWANCE CHANGE." This
notification must be posted in a conspicuous place and cannot be substituted for the usual
written notice to each individual tenant (member).

This approval does not authorize you to violate the terms of any lease (occupancy
agreement) you currently have with your tenants (members).

For those tenants (members) receiving rental assistance (RA), their costs for rent
(occupancy charge) and utilities will continue to be based on the higher of 30 percent of
their adjusted monthly income or 10 percent of gross monthly income or if the household
is receiving payments for public assistance from a public agency, the portion of such
payments which is specifically designated by that agency to meet the household's shelter
cost, If tenants are receiving Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Section 8 subsidy
assistance, their costs for rent and utilities will be determined by the current HUD
formula. '

You may file an appeal regarding the rate and utility allowance change as approved. An
appeal must be received in the Regional Office no later than 30 calendar days after
receipt of the adverse decision. The appeal should state what agency decision is being
appealed and should include, if possible, a copy of the adverse decision and a brief
statement of why the decision is wrong. A copy of the appeal request should be sent to
the agency.

You must inform the tenants (members) of their right to request an explanation of the rate
and utility allowance change approval decision within 45 days of the date of this notice
by writing to (Ricky P. Sweat, A.D., USDA/RD, 703 East Ward St., Douglas, GA
31533). All tenants (members) are required to pay the changed amount of rent
(occupancy charge) as indicated in the notice of approval.

Any tenant who does not wish to pay the Rural Development approved rent changes may
give the owner a 30-day notice that they will vacate. The tenant will suffer no penalty as
a result of this decision to vacate, and will not be required to pay the changed rent.

However, if the tenant later decides to remain in the unit, the tenant will be required to
pay the changed rent from the effective date of the changed rent.

Sincerely,

i
# .
f}f{fz/mi A erad

SANDRA R. BRYANT, Area Specialist
For: Ricky P. Sweat, Area Director
USDA/Rural Development
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Report: FIN10OGO Multi-Family Information System (MFIS) Date:
Proposed Budget Page:
Project Name: CHESTER APTS
Borrgwer Name: CHESTER LTD
Borrower 1B and Project No: 1398825874 0i~8
| Date of Cperation: 01/04/1985
Loan/Transfer Amount:
Hote Rate Payment:
IC Payment: 81,616,117
Raporting Budget Type Project Rental "Profit Type
Period Type
—_ Initial R4S e, F0ll profit
_X_ Annual ____ Regular Report _X  Family _¥ Limited Profit
. Guarterly - _X_Rent Change _____ Elderly ___ Non-Profit
Monthly SMR Congregate
Other Servicing Group Home
Mixed L
Current number of WA units 17

I herxeby sequent _  units of WA,

Mais

The following utilities are
master metered:

Gag
Bleotricity
Water
Sewer
Trash
Other

Cash
Acgrual

Borrower Accounting Method

12/8/2016
1 of 18

Senaitive but Unclassified/feneitive Becurity Infold@tion - Disseminate on a Need-To-Know Basis Only




Repoxt: FIN10OO

Multi-Family Infoxmation System (MFIS)

Proposed Budgetb

Datey
Page:

}
Project Name: CHESTER APTS
Boxrower Name: CHESTER LTD

Eorr IDi

State; 10
139982974

Servicing Office: £06
Prj Nbx: 01-8

Paid Code: Active

Clasgification: © Figcal Yeax: 2017 Vergion: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD Totald; By Praject Analyzed; N
""" it Current _ Péﬁhﬁée&

- . _Budyget, _ Aobual Bidget Commnnt
gilective latesi 01/91/2016 B1L/01/2016 OAF0L/ P07
Ending Dates: 1273172018 18/31/4071% 12/31/2017%

PART I - CABH VLOW GTATERANT

“Opsrational Caeh Gources

1. Rentai Inroms

3. RHS Rental Rusler. Recedvad

3, Applicabion Fea Receiwved

106,368.80

1. pLaundry An@ Vending

I

G. INCEreAL TOcome

24.00

&, Tanant Ehargbé

1,7a0.00

7. Yther - Praj&ct Sourced

B, 0o

F. bLasy {Voeney 9 Cotgnoy Alle)

-8, 520,00

9. Leas 1hgnry Apivd Incentvl

B.0a

10, gub-Tel [{1 thry 7)-{8a@9}]

.thwbpsrutionnl Cath Bources

11. Pash - Hop 5?Qjﬁﬂt

.00

1%, Avkbhorlzed Lorpn (Hon-kHAY

B, 00

13. Tranefer From Res#erve

38,031.00

T4 EUb-Totnl (LI Ehew 1]

19,031.60

15, Tokal Cesh Sources {(1Gri4)

I ET T

Opsrational Cash Upes

16. Tl O#M Exp (¥rom Part II)

B8, 669,27

17, RHS Debt Faymant

LR, RHS Fayment (Gveragae)

18, RES Payment (Lage Fes)

Z0. Reductn In ¥rior Ve Pybies

21, Wenant Wellity Paymenta

2. TLensier b6 Roserve

1%, 394,04

8,616.00

23. RTH Gwner/BF Agset Hgl Fes:

2, 4B0. 00

B4, pub-Total (16 Ehru 231

an—Dpézatiﬂﬁal Cugh Unek

$9,159.41

25. hAuthad Debt Pymnt (MonRHE)

Q. 0o

26, Oapikal Budget [IIT <-&)

19, D31.00

TV Mince] Laneoug

o.e0

74, Sub-Total (25 thru 27)

13,031.00

5. Toknl Cash Ueea {(24+128)

11ﬁ.190fi1

30, et (Dafiole) {15-729)

CET L

Tosh Balance

31, Beginnifg Codh Haisnce

32, Accrurl To Caih Adjustment

13, Ending Cash Bal [30+31+32)

5,324,040

105,630 .00

.00

i2.00

I

105, b0

I FREZ

-10,968.00

a.00

23,30%.00

oA

0.0

W

4, 51E.00

15¢,597.0¢

71.155.43

14,394,064

6,021, 00

9,480, 06

98, 050.47 |

.00

TN

0.8

"84, 518,00

153,668.47

g58.53

Sonsikive but Unclassified/fenmitive Becurity Informftion - Diaseminate on a Need-To-Inow Basis Only

Counby: 45




Report: FIN1000O

Multi-Family Informabion System {MrIg) Date:
Proposaed Budget

12/8/2016
Page: 3 of 18

i
Project Name; CHESTER APTS
Borrower Name: ¢HESTER LTD

Bory ID: 139982974

10 Servicing Office: 606

County; 45

Pri Wbr: 01-8 Paild Code: Active

Classification: € Fiscal Year; 2017 Version: 01/701/2017 TRANSMITD Totale: By Projack Analyzed: N
Thom Cuyrent Propoged '
) _ Budgee: hatual Buidgat Commant
| Effsorive Dates; 01/01/%015. G1/01F2005 74017
Ending Dakes 13/31/2016 12/33 /7018
FART 11 - OWN ELFRNBE SCHEDULE
1. Waint. @ Ropaize Paproll 7,556, 00 7,650, %1 -
Z. Haint. O Rapalis Supply 8, 230,00 B, 540, Ga
3. Paint. @ Repaire Contract 200.00 2R DY
4. Bainting 200,00 1, 000,06
5. Snow ReEmoval g.og O.ou
&, Elevator Haint./Conbendt n.oo .00
?._Sraunda T 5,901.09 .5,03@.85
8. Bervices T, 400,00 2,450 .05
%, {prl BgtlPart ¥V spepsting) 1,203,640 3,150.00
1o, Tther Operating Bxpanmson G.00 0,60
131, Bub-Ttl OBW (% Ehru 10) 36, BEG .Y #8,LI0.73 )
13, Blectricity Z,953.00 3, A40.00
T3, fater TEG, 00 189,60
|13, Gaver 126,00 156, G0
15. Thiel {O11/Coal/Gaa) o,60 0.65 )
14, darbage @ Trash Removal 3,645.00 2,529,04
17, DEhay Urilitiaes " 0,00 0,00
18, pub-TEL UEIL. (17 Ehew 10) 5 REY 00 %, 325.00 T - N,
T3, STt onagurnt ayioD JEELS 5953 5 PR e
20. Hanagament Fee 11,592,.00° 11, 316. 00 KA
¥Y. Project Anditing Hxpende T2, 363,00 F 2,551, 35 )
37, Btnl. Bookkeeping/Acomting .00 TThan
Zi. Legal Bxpenzes - 354, 00 F85.00
24. Adverbising %50, 00 TIE. 05 |
25, Phona @ Anpwaring Becvice 1,500.00 1,500.00
7%, OFfige Supplies 1,395, 06 1,586 o
27, Office Puemiturs @ Equip. 0.0 5.00
78, Trainitw Expansd TN 220,00
23, Hith Ins. @ other Deneflts 2,405,26 2,544,924
30, Payroil Tazes ¥, 407.9% 1,421,144
3L TiidrEmeng Conpenaetion 53, 24 sol.wr |
32, Other Admin,Expenses 775,00 1,135.00 { MILEDOE, . CREDIT CK, BANK CHd
33, gub-Tt} Admin {1% thru 32) 27.B71.9%4 29, 550,92
1%, Roal Geeare Tawes %, 10, 60 T
35. gpecial Assessments 15G, 00 466.00
&, Ocnr Taxes, Lunsen, Pernkn 538,20 §11,00 | HUSIRESE | BOPTHARE LIC
37, Property @ LiabiliLy ina. 4,078.23 R T ’ -
6, Fldelity Covarags Ina, “w.on D.ow
16, Other Insurancs 0,00 T
0. Bub-Tt1 Tx/In (34 Ehru 39} B,370.43 8,160,868
[ 41.77ET OGN Expn (A3+18433+401 68, 669,37 71158043

gensitive but Unclassified/SBensitive Heourity infoldfition - Disseminate on a Need-To-Know Basis Only




Report: FIN1000 Multi-Fandly Information System (MFI§) Date: 12/8/2018

Proposed Budget Page: 4 of 18

Project Name: CHESTER APTS State; 10 Servicing Dffice: 606 County: 45
Borrower Name: CHESTER LTD Borr ID: 139982974 Prd Nbr: 01-8 Paid Code: Active
Claggification: C Fiscal Year: 2017 Version: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD Tokalg; By Project Analyzed: N

Item T furrent — Proposad B

Budget Aotual RBudget Comment

Effective Bates: ] nl/01/3816 ol/oi/20616 03/n1/2017
Ending Datos: 7 | 12/31/2018 12/3372016 13/7%1/2017

BART ILL - ACUT mODURT/ETATUS

Reser@émﬂébbunt

1,Beqinning Balance 36,726,320 55,713, 84
Z, Transfer to Reserve 8,61& .00 6,021;00
Tranaler From Reserva o
T, Dpecsting Defieit ) T 0,00
4 Cptl Bge IPavt V resbrve) FEERIT) 54,618,00
&L Beilding @ Rguip Repair 0.00 o.00
%. Othr Hon-Uperating BRponsss TR0 0.00
7. Total (3 thid 6) ' - 157031.00 i ,618,00
¥, Ending Dalavas {[(1+31-71] ' T25,301.26 TR, 115,84

General Oparating ACGOUNE

Baginning Balahee

Ending Balance

keal Estate Tox hnd Ine Egarow

Beginning Balianog

foding Baiance

Beginning Dalance

Ending Balance

HNumber of Applitants on Waiting List o | Reserve Acct. Reg. Balance 19,871,43

Number of Applicants Needing RA Amount Ahead/Bshind 52,8%0.01

Sengitive but Unolaasifiadlﬁonsitivé Becurlty 1nfdédation - Disseminate on a Weed-To-Know Basis Only




Report: PIN1000

Multl-Pamlly Informabion System (MFIS) Date: 12/98/2016
Yropoged Budget Page: 5 of 18
Project Name: CHESTER APTS State: 10 Sexvicing Office; 606  County: 45
Borzowax Name: [HESTER LTD Hory ID; 1399833974 by} HMbr: 01-8 Pald Code: Active

claasification:'c

Pigval Year: 2017

Version: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD

Totals: By Project

Analyzed: W

ART IV RENT BCHEDULE

A. CURRENT APPROVED RENTS/UTILITY ALLOWANCE: 01/01/2016

Unit Description

Rental Ratea Potential Income From Each Rate [Ukility
Type 'Size' HC | Rev | Unit | Number Basic Note HUD Basic Note HOD Allowance
M 2 All i1 400 532 [} 52,800 70,224 [} 141
M 1 ALl 12 172 505; [\] 53,568 72,720
CURRENT RENT TOTALS 106,368 142,944
EFFECTIVE DATE OF RENTS/UTILITY ALLOWANCE: 01/01/2016
Unit Descriptlon Utllity Types
Type | Size| HC Rev Unit Elect Gas Sawer Trash Othex Total Allow
M 2 all 131 0 141
M 1 All 92 Q 102
B. PROPOSED CHANGE OF RENTS/UTILITY ALLOWANCE: 01/01/2017
Unit Descripcion ) Rental Rates Poterntial ITnoome from Lach Rate ULty
Type |Size] HC | Rev | Unit | Number Bagic Note HUD Basic Note HUD [Allowance
2 ALl 11 412 544 4] 54,384 71,808 ¢ 141
1 ALL 12 384 517 0 55,296 74,448 107
PROFOSED RENT TOTA;LS 109,680 146,255
EFFECTIVE DATE OF RENTS/UTILITY ALLOWANCE: 01/01/2017
Unit Description tility Types
Type |Size| HC Rev Unit Blect Gas Sewer Trash Other Total Allow
M 2 All I31 0 5 141
M 1 All 97 Q -1 Q 167

fensitive but Unclassified/Fensitive Becurity Infolfdtion - Disseminete on a Need-To-Know Basls Only




Report: FIN100Q Multi-~Family Information System (MFIS}) bDate: 12/8/2016
Proposed Budget Page; 6 of 18
Project Name: CHRSTER WoTE Bracte: 10 Savvicing OFEice: GU6  Tounty: 45
Borrower Name: CHESTER LTD Borr ID: 139982974 Prd Nbr: 91-8 Paid Code: hotive
Clasgification: C Figcal Year: 2017 Yersion: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD Totale: By Project Analyzed; H
Item Proposad Proposed Actual Proposed Actual Actual Total
Numbey Prom From From From Total Actual
Unitg/Items Resexve Regerve Operating Operating Cost Unita/Items

Bffedtive Datesg: 01/01/2016 01/01/2017 [01/01/2016 01/01/2017 0L/01/2016 |01/01/2016 |01/01/2014
Ending Dates: 12/31/2016 12/31/2016 12/31/2016 [12/31/2016 |12/31/2016
ANNUAL CAPITAL BUDGET

appliances

Appliances - Range 3 1,272.00 0.00 ¢.00 0,00 0,00 1)
Appliances - Refrigerator 2 1,256.00 .00 0,00 .00 0.00 0
Appliances - Range Hood 0 0.00 0.00 D.00 0,00 0.00 0
Appliances - Washers @ 0 0.00 .00 .00 0.00 0.00 0
Dryars

Mppliances - Othex ) .00 3,00 .90 0,00 G .00 A
Caxpet and Vinyl

Carpet @ Vinyl -~ 1 Br, 4 1,660,00 0,00 L,660.00 0,00 0.00 0
Carpet @ Vinyl » 2 Br, 4 3,900.00 0,00 G.00 Q.00 ¢.00 0
Carpat @ Vinyl + 3 Br. 0 0,00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0,900 [}
Carpet @ Vinyl « 4 Br. 0 0.00 0.00 g, 00 ¢,00 ¢.00 4
Carpet @ Vinyl + Other 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Cabinets

Cabinets - Kitchens [4] .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Cabinetrs - Bathroom 0 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.6G0 .00 0
Cabinets - Other o 0,00 0.00 0.09Q 0.00 3.00 0
Doors

Doors - Exterior 0,00 0.00 400.00 0.00 .00

Doors - iInterior 0,00 g.00 0.00 ¢.00 0.00 0
Doors - Other 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1}
Window Coverings

Window Coverings - Datail .00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Window Coverings - Othex 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Heat and Air Conditioning

Heat ® Alr - Heating 2,100.00 .00 .00 0.00 0,06

Heat @ Air - Air 1 2,1006.00 ¢.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Conditioning

Heat @ Air - Other 0 2.00 G.00 0.00 0.00 0,006 0
Plumbing

Plumbing - Water Heater 3 550.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.00 0,00 0
Piumbing - Bath Sinks 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Plumbing - Kitchen Sinks 0 0.0C 0.00 9.00 0.00 0.00 0
Plumbing - Faucets 1] Q.06 ¢.00 0,00 .00 0.00 0
Plumbing - Tollets 0 0,00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 Q
Plumbing - Other o G.00C 0.0G 0.0G0 0.90 0.00 V]
Major Electrical

Major Electriwal - Detail 0 o.o0C .00 0.00 D.00 0.00C D
Major Blactrical ~ Other 0 0.00 0.00 0.60 0,00 0.00C )
Structures

Structures -~ Windows 0 ¢.00 G,00 0.00 0.09 0,00 0
Structurea - Screens 0 .00 .00 0,00 0.00 0.00 4]
Structures - Walls ] 0,00 0,00 0,09 0,00 0.00 ¢
. Structures - Roofing ¢ 19,780.00 G.00 0.00 0.00 .00 ¢}
. Structures - Siding 0 2,00 0.00 .00 g9.00 0.90 0
Structures ~ Exterior 1] 2,00 ©,00 0.00 0,00 0.00 1)
Painting

Structuyes - Othey Q 6.00 G.00 0.00 0,80 4.00 Y

genaitive but Unclassified/Bensitive Becurity

Infotbaition - Disseminate on & Need-To-Know Basis Only




Report: FINLOOOG Multi-Family Informatlion System (MFIS) ’ Date: 12/9/2016

Proposad Budget Page: 7 of 18
]
Project Nama: CHESTER AbLTS Statae: 10 Saxvicing Office: 606 County: 4%
Borrower Nama: CHESTER LTD Borr ID: 139982974 Prj Nbr: 01-8 Paid Code: Active
Clapaification; ¢ Ploeal Year: 2017 Version: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD Totala: By Project Analyzed: N
Item Proposed Proposed Actual Proposed Actual Actual Total
Nunber From From From From Total Actupl

Units/Items Regerve Ragarve Operating Cperating Cost Units/Items
Effective Datas: 01/01/2016 01/01/2017 [01/01/2016 01/01/2017 01/01/2016 |01/01/2016 [01/01/2016
Ending Dates: 12/31/2016 1273172018 12/31/2016 [12/31/201e [12/31/2016
Paving
Paving - Asphalt 0 290,000.00 0,00 0,00 3,00 0,00 0
Paving - Concreta 0 .00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00 G,00 0
Paving - Seal and Stripe ¢ Q.00 0,909 0.00 0,00 0,00 0
Paving - Other 0 Q.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 Q
fiandscaps and Grounds
Lndscpe@rnds - Landscaping 0 .00 0,00 0.00 G.00 0.00 [+]
Lndsop@3rnds - Lawn 0 G.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 [}
Egquipment
Lndacp@Grnds - Fencin o 0.00 c.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4]
Lndscp@Grids - Recreation 0 0,00 0.00 ¢.00 0.00 0.00 ¢
Area
Lndacp@Grnds - Signs ] .00 0.00 0.00 Q,00 ¢.00 0
LndscpaGrnds - Othexr ¢ 0.00 0.00 [ 0.00 0,00 ] 0,00 0
Accepnibility Features :
Accessibility Peatures - 0 2,000.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Datail
Rocesaibility Features - 0 ¢.00 0.00 .00 ¢.00 ¢,00 0
Other
Automation Bquipment
Automation Equip. -Site o 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
Mngt.
Automation Equip. -Common [i] 0.00 ’ 0.60 G.00 .00 0.00 1]
Area
Automation Eguip., -Other ¢ 0.00 G.00 G.0¢ 0.00 0.00 0
Other
List: ? 0 0.00 Q.00 Q.00 Q.00 0,00 ¢
List: ? 0 0,00 a,00 Q.00 Q.00 0,00 ¢
List: ? [} 0.00 G.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 G
Total Capital RBxpenses 0 54,618,00 0,00 3,160.00 0.00 0.00 0

sensitive but Unclassified/Sensitive Security Infoifdtion - Disseminate on a Need-To-Know Basis Only




Report: FIN100O Multi-Family Information System (MFIS) Date: 12/8/2018

Proposed Budget Page: 8 of 18
)
Project Name: ¢HESTER APTS State; 10 Servicing Office: 608 County: 45
Borrowar Name: CRESTER LTD . Borr ID: 139982974 Pr] Nbr: 61l-8 Paid Code: Active
Clasgification; ¢ Fiogal Year: 2017 Vargion: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD Totals: By Projeck Analyzed: N

Part Vi - SIGNATURES, DATEB AND COMMENTS

Warning Section 1001 of Title 18, United States Code provides; "Whoever, in any matter within the
jurigdiction of any department or agency of the United States knowingly and willfully

falsifies, conceals or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact, or makes any
false, fictitlous or fraudulent statements or representation, or makes or uses any false writing or
document knowing the same to contaln any false, fictitious or fraudulent gtatement or entry, shall
be fined undeyr thils title ox ilmpriscned not wore than five years, or both,

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE WARNING STATEMENT AND I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND ACCURATE
TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

HALLMARK GROUP REAL ESTATE MMAZ02860
{(Date Submitled) {Management lgency) (MA#H}
(Dake) ) {Signature of Borrower or Borrower's Repregentative)
) itle)
W i na -5l
i - TN = Cjthh
gency Approval (Ruxgl Davelopment Ap) al fficigl): {Date)

sensitive but Unclassified/Pensitive Becurity Infoldfation - Disseminate on a Mead-To-RKnow Pasis Only




Repork: PIN:OGOD Multi-Family Information System {MFIS) Date: 12/8/2016

Propoged Budget Pager 9 of 18
Project Name: CHESTER APTS Stake: 10 Servicing Office: 606 County: 45
Borrower Name: CHESTER LTD Borr ID: 139582974 Prj Nbr: 61-8 Paid Code: Active
Classification: € Fiscal Year: 2017 Version: 01/01/2017 TRANSMITD Totals: By Project Analyzed: N
SPVS Commenkt:
Batched/ 11 092616/ II 120816
Naxrative:
BUBGET NARRATIVE PROJECT NAME Chester Apartments
BORRCWER NAME <Chester Apartments, Ltd.BORROWER ID AND PROJECT NO 382520114- 017 .Chester Apartments ig a 24

unit community located in Chester, Georgia. In 2016 the property hasa 94 % occupancy rate. (ALl findings from

previous years are being corrected as funds are available, The property has applied for an MPR loan , which will
supply the funding to correct all findings. At this time the property is experiencing financial hardship due to
deferred maintenance issues and increase cost ofemployee insurance. MThe property has not experienced changes in

project expenses or cash sources that exceed the tolerance threshold in any categeories. '. Itis expected that
$54,618.00 will De spent from the reserve account in 2017. forthe following Accessible unit, a water heater, 2
HVAC, 3 carpets , 3 stoves,2 refrigerators, 3 vinyl, asphalt paving and roof replacement of 2 buildings. “An

additional $3,160.00 will be spent from the operating reserve for 1 carpet,2 water heaters, 2 windows and 1 vinyl
replacement. Replacements for 2018 through 2020 are as follows 2018 - 2 carpets, 1 stove, 1 water heater, 1
refrigerator, 1 HVAC units, and remaining 2 roof replacements. 2018 - 2 carpets, 1 stove, lwater heater, 1
refrigerator, 1 EVAC units, playground equipment 2019 - 1 stove, 1 carpet; 1 water heater, 1 refrigerator, 2 HVAC

units " Management request a$l12.00 rent increase for the one & 2 bedroom units due to increasing maintenance and
administrative cost for 2017 LiThers is no additlonal documentation necessary for the Agency to establish that
applicable Agency reguirements have been met.

Sensitive but Unclassified/Senesitive Becurity Infoifd@tion - CDisseminate on a Need-To-Know Basis Only




FORM RD 3560-13 ‘ FORM APPROVED
(Rev. 03-11) OMB NO 0575-0189

MULTI-FAMILY PROJECT BORROWER'S/MANAGEMENT AGENT'S
MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION

Borr({wers of multifamily housing loans are required by 7 C.F.R, §3560.102 (j) to submit certain data for review by the Servicing
Official for approval of a new management agent. These requirements apply to all multifamily projects.

Effective Date (x-xx-200x);  01.01-2017

»

Project Name; _Chester Apartments, L.P. Borrower Caseff /Project 1D _
10-045-139982974 City/State; Chester, GA

Acting on behaif of Chester Apartments, L.P, » the project berrower (Borrower), and

Hallmatk Management, Inc, » the management agent (Agent), make the following certifications and agreements to the

Urited Sintes Depurtment of Agriculture regarding management of the above project.

1. We certify that:

a. We will comply with Rural Development requirements and contract obligations, and agree that no payments have been made
to the Borrower in return for awarding the management contract to the Agent, and that no such payments will be made In the
future, )

b. We have executed or will execute, within 30 days 2 management agreement (Agreement) for this project, The Agreement
provides that the Agent will manage the project for the term and for the Per Unit Per Month (PUPM) management fee
described below. Changes in the management fee will be implemented only in accordance with Rural Development's

requirements.
{1} Term of Agreement (xx-xx-20xx throngh xx-x0c-20xx): 01-01-2017 until nullified
(2) Pees: -

A @JPM fee as specified in HB-2-3560, Attachment 3-F, as revised, for the term specified above
(applied to revenue producing occupied units only).

b) UPM fee is below the PUPM fee specified in HB-2-3560, Attachment 3-F, as revised, for the term
specified above (applied to revenue producing occupied units only)
Fee Amount: § 22/ O 0D . %
[

¢} [0 Add-On Fees as specified in HB-2-3560, Check all that apply. Include total add-on fees below.
(applied to all revenue producing units regardless of occupancy)

{_J Management of propertics with 15 units or less,

[J One project that has buildings located on different noncontiguous parcels of
land (i.e. across town or in another town).

[J Management of properties in a remote location.

[0 Troubled properties with workout plans and new management only.

¢. We will disburse management fees from project income only after:
(1) We have submitted this certification to Rural Development:
(2) Rural Development has approved the Agent to manage this project
d. We understand that no fees may be earned or paid after Rural Development has terminated the Agreement
e. If Rural Development notifies me of a management fee above that listed in HB-2-3560; Attachment 3-F the Agent will
within 30 days of the notice either;

(1) Reduce the compensation to an amount Rural Development determines to be reasonable and

(2) Require the Agent to refund to the project all excessive fees collected, or

(3) Appeal the decision and sbide by the results of the appeal process, making any required reductions and refunds within
30 days after the date of the decision letter on the appeal,

2. We will select and admit tenants, compute tenant rents and assistance payments, recertify tenants and carry out other subsidy
contract administrative responsibilities in accordance with HB-2-3560 and Rural Development regulations.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may nof conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to raspond to, a collaction of information
uniess it displays a valtd OMB contrel mumber. The valid OMB control number for this informuotion collection is 0375-0189%. The time required to complete this
information collection is estimated fo average 30 minutes per response, Including the time for reviewing Instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the dala needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.
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3. We agree to:

4. Comply with this project's Mortgage and Promissory Note, and Loan Agreement/Resolution or Workout Agreement.

b. Comply with Rural Development Handbooks and other policy directives that relate to the management of the
project,

c. Comply with Rural Development requirements regarding payment and reasonableness of the management fee and the
project account,

d. Refrain from purchasing goods or services from entities that have identity of interest with us unless the requirements of
TC.F.R, §3560.102(g) are met.

4. The Agent agrees to:
a. Ensure that all expenses of the praject are reasonable and necessary.

b. Exert reasonable effort to maximize project income and to take advantage of discounts, rebates and similar money-saving
techniques,

¢. Obtain conteacts, materials, supplies and services including the preparstion of the annual financial reports on terms most
advantageous to the project.

d. Credit the housing project with all discounts, rebates or comnmissions including any sales or property tax relief granted by
the State or local government received.

¢. Obtain the necessary verbal or written cost estimates and document reasons for accepting other than the lowest bid.

f. Maintain copies of the documentation and make such documentation available for inspection during normal business hours,

& Invest project funds that Rural Development policies require to be invested and take reasonable effort to invest other project
funds unless the Borrower specifically directs the Agent not to invest those funds.

5. We certify that the types of insurance policies checked below are enforceable and wili be maintained to the best of our ability at
all times. Fidelity bonds and hazard insurance policies will name Rural Development as co-payee in the event of loss. Note: for
any box not checked, Rural Development may require an explanation as to why a ceriain type of insurance was not obtained.

a. 7] Fidelity bond or employce dishonesty coverage for:
(1) all principals of the Agent and
(2) all persons who participate directly or indirectly in the management or maintenance of the project and its assets,
accounts and records,
b. [ Hazard insurance coverage required by 7 C.E.R. §3560.105.

¢. i1 Public liability insurance required by 7 C.F.R. §3560,105.
d. O Other (specify) as may be required by 7 C.F.R. §3560.105,

6. The Agent agrees to:

4. Fyrnish a written response to Rural Development's supervisory visit review reports, physical inspection reports, and written
inquiries regarding the project's annual financial statements or monthly accounting reports within 30 days after receipt of
the report or inguiry. '

b. Establish and maintain the project's accounts, books and records in accordance with;

(1) Rural Development's administrative requirements; and
(2) Accounting principles under 7 C.F.R. §3560.302(b).

7. Wc agrec that:
a, All records related to the operation of the project, regardless of where they are housed, shall be considered the property of
the project.

b. Rural Development, the Office of Inspector General {O1G), and those agencies' representatives may inspect:
(1) Any records which relate to the project’s purchase of goods or services,
(2) The records of the Borrower and the Agent, and
(3) The records of companies having an identity-of-interest with the Borrower, Rural Development and the Agent.
¢. The following clause will be included in any contract entered into with an identity-of-interest individual or business for the
provisiort of goods or services to the project:

"Upon request by Rural Development, the Borrower or Agent, the coniractor or the supplier will make available to Rural
Dcvelopment at a reasonable time and place, its records and records of identity-of-interest companies which relate to goods and
services charged to the prOJect Records and information will be sufficient to pcrmlt Rural Development to determine the services
performed, the dates the services were performed, the location at which the seyvices were performed, the time consumed in
providing the services, the charges made for materials, and the per unit and total charges levied for said services." The Borrower
agrees to request from the contractor or supplier such records within seven (7) days of receipt of Rural Development's
reguest.

8. We agree to include the following provisions in the Agreement and to be bound by them:
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8. Rural Development has the right to terminate the Agreement for failure to comply with the provisions of this Certification,
or other good cause,

b. If Rural Development exercises this right of termination, 1, the Borrower, agree to promptly make arrangements for
providing management to the property that is satisfactory to Rural Development.

¢. If there is a conflict between the Agrccmcnt and Rural Development's rights and requirements, Rural Development's rights
and requirements will prevail,

d. If the Agreement is terminated, I, the Agent, will give to the Borrower all of the project's cash, trust accounts, investments
and records within 30 days of the date the Agreement is terminated,

1, the Borrower, agree to submit a new management certification to Rural Development before taking any of the following
actions:
a. Authorizing the agent to collect a fee different from the fees specified in Paragraph 1 of this Certification,
b. Changing the expiration date of the Agreement;
¢. Renewing the Agreement; )

* Permitting a new Agent to operate the project;

- € Permitting a new Agent to collect a fee;

10,

11

12,

£ Undertaking self-management of the project,

We agres to!

a, Comply with all Federal, State, or local laws prohibltmg discrimination against any persons on grounds of race, color, creed,
familial status, handicap, sex or national origin, including Title VI of the Civil nghts Act of 1964, Fair Housing Act,
Executive Order 11063 and all regulations implementing those laws,

b. When the head of houschold or spouse is otherwise eligible, give familics with children cqual consideration for admission.

¢, Give handicapped persons priority for subsidized units that were built and equipped specifically for the handicapped.

d. The project will comply with the provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 and all regulations and administrative Instructions implementing these laws, The Agent
understands that these laws and regulations prohibit discrimination against applicants or tenants who are handicapped or of
a certain age.

€. Furnish Rural Development any reports and information required to monitor the project’s compliance with Rural
Development's fair housing and affirmative marketing requirements.

1. Not discriminate agamst any employee, applicant for employment or contractor bccause of race, color, handicap, rcl:glon,
sex or national origin.

& Provide minorities, women, and socially and economically disadvantaged firms equal opportunity to participate in the
project's procurement and contracting activities,

We certify that we have read and undetstand Rural Development's definition of "identity-of-interest” as defined in 7 C.I.R
§3560.11 and that the statement(s) checked and information entered below is true.

a. [J No identity-of-interest exists among the Borrower, the Agent and any individuals or companies that regularly do business

with the project, or

b. ] Only the individuals and companics listed on Form RD 3560-31 have an identity-of-interest with the Borrower or the
Agent.

The iterns checked below are attached: s

a. [] Management Plan
b.[F Identity-oi-Interest {I01) Disclosure Qualification Certificate or Certification of No Identity-of-Interest (101)
¢. [0 Other (Specify):
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Warnings:
There are fines and imprisonment for anyone who makes false, fietitious, or fraudulent statements or entries in any matter within the jurisdiction
of the Federal Government {18 U.S.C, 1001),

There are fines and imprisonment for anyone who mistses rents and proceeds in violation of Rural Development regulations relative to this
project. (Section 543 of the Housing Act of 1949),

Rural Development may seck a "double damages” c¢ivil moncy damages remedy for the use of assets or income in viclation of any Loan
Agreement/Resolution or any applicable Rural Development regulations.

Rural Development may seck additional civil money pesalties to be paid by the mortgagor through personal funds pursuant 1o 7 C.F.R.
$3560.461(b). The penaltics could be as much as $50,000 per violation {Section 543 (b) of the Housing Act of 1949),

By Project Borrower: Chester Apartments, L.P,
Hallmark Group Services of GA T, LLC,
Name/Title: By: Martin H, Petersen, Managing Member

Signature; Mm Q@t}w Date: 9/26/2016

By Management Agent: Hallmark Management, Inc.

Name/Title: Norine Lewis, Vice President

Signature: %‘@u’m Date: 9/26/2016

By Servicing Officlal; .

Name/Title:

i Dda -2, 7-1¢

Dves gﬁw&w
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Form RD 1924-13 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FORM APPROVED
(Rev. 12-98) RURAL DEVELOPMENT OMB No. 0575-0042

ESTIMATE AND CERTIFICATE OF ACTUAL COST

This form is to be used by the contractor and borrower to estimate the cost of
construction and total PROJECT NUMBER (Borrower ID Number) development cost, or to
certify the actual cost of project construction and development.

BORROWER/OWNER-BUILDER CONTRACTOR

Hallmark  Chester, LLC Great Southern, LLC
NAME OF PROJECT LOCATION

Chester Chester, GA

This certificate is made pursuant to existing regulations of the United States of America acting through the Rural Development in order to induce the Government to provide
or extend assistance. As part of that inducement, the following certifications are made:

Check and Complete Applicable Box:
[0] A.ESTIMATE
| certify that the estimates of costs as set forth through line 44 in the ESTIMATED COST column are true and correct as computed by me or

as given to me by the subcontractors or payees named, as general contractor or owner-builder for the development of the project described above, as determined from the plans and
specifications accepted, signed and dated by the Rural Development State Director of Rural Development or the State Directors's del egated representative, on

ZOL_ Asborrower or owner-builder for the development of the project described above, | certify that the estimates of cost as set forth from line 44 in the ESTIMATED COST
column are true and correct as computed by me or as given to me by the subcontractors or payees named. Subsequent to this estimate and prior to final payment, when directed by
Rural Development, | agree to furnish a certification of actual cost. The estimate and the final certification will be in accordance with Rural Development regulations requiring
estimates and certifications.

[ ] B. ACTUAL cosT

| certify that the actual cost of labor, materias, and necessary services for the construction of the physical improvements in connection with the project described above, after
deduction of all rebates, adjustments, or discounts made or to be made to the undersigned borrower or general contractor, or any corporation, trust partnership, joint venture, or
other legal or business entity in which the undersigned borrower or general contractor, or any of their members, stockholders, officers, directors, beneficiaries, or partners hold any
interest, is as represented herein. The deduction of such rebates, adjustments, or discounts from actual hard costs will not be used to increase builder's profit over and above the
final estimated amount. | further certify that all soft costs associated with construction of the project as set forth on lines 45 through 57 are correct as represented herein.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of] 995, an agency may not conductor sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unlessit displays a valid OMB control number The valid
OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-0042. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 2 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions,
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

PO?'BHIOH 6 Form RD 1924-13 (Rev. 12-98)
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Page 2

Estimated Actual Cost Name of Subcontractor 101
Line | Div Trade ltem Cost Paid To Be Paid Total or Payee *
1 " 3 [ Concrete
2 4 | Masonry $1,68000
3 5 | Metals
4 6 | Rough Carpentry $120,48400
5 6 | Finish Carpentry $7,03200
6 7__| Waterproofing $7,05000
7 7 | Insulation $9,00000
8 7 | Roofing $46,27000
9 7 | Sheet Metal
10 8 | Doors $43,06460
11 8 | Windows $39,505.00
12 8 | Glass $1,08000
13 9 | Drywall $13,48800
14 9 | Tile Work
15 9 | Acoustical
16 9 | Resilient Flooring $38,40000
17 9 | Painting and Decorating $33,93600
18 10 __| Specialties $22,64176
19 11 Special Equipment
20 11| Cabinets $71,328.00
21 11 Appliances $35 ,480 . 64
22 12 | Blinds and Shades, Artwork $2147103
23 12 | Carpets
24 13 | Special Construction $30,50000
25 14 | Elevators
26 15 | Plumbing and Hot Water $60,13608
27 15 Heat and Ventilation $62,23200
28 15 | Air Conditioning
29 16 | Electrical $41,136.00
30 2 | Earth Work
31 2 | On-Site Utilities
32 2 | Roads and Walks
33 2 | On-Site Improvements $65,51680
34 2 | Lawns and Planting $2,40000
35 2 | Unusual On-Site Conditions
36 2 | Off-Site Development
37 Miscellaneous (Labor and Materials)
38 Total Hard Costs $754.83191
39 1 | General Requirements $45,28992
40 General Overhead $15|09664
41 Other Fees Paid By Contractor $0 OO
42 Total Costs $815,218.47

NOTE: (If additional space s required for these other items, append Rider thereto, with references and initial. When more than one subcontractor jl%pgrformi ng a trade item, the attached work sheet must he completed giving the information indicated.) Form RD 1924-13 (Rev. 12-98)

* Breakdown on page 4.




Page 3

CONTRACTOR'S AND BORROWER'S ESTIMATE AND CERTIFICATE OF ACTUAL COST
Estimated Actual Cost Name of Subcontractor

Line Trade ltem Cost Paid To Be Paid Total or Payee

Balance Brwt. Forward (line 42) $815,218.47
43 Builder's Profit $45,289.92
44 Total Construction Cost $860,508.39
45 Architectural Fees
46 Survey and Engineering
47 Financing Costs Loan Fees
48 Interest During Construction
49 Closing Costs & Legal Fees
50 Land Cost or Value
51 Nonprofit O&M Capital
52 Tap and or Impact Fees
53 Tax Credit Fees
54 Environmental Fees
55 Market Study Cost
56
57
58 Total Development Cost $860,508.39

"Whoever, in any matter, with the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States knowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals or covers up by trick, scheme, or device a
material fact, or makes any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or representations; or makes or uses any false writing or statement or entry, shall be fined under thistitle or
imprisoned not more than five years, or both."

WARNING: Section 1001 of Title 18, United States Code provides: Furthermore, submission of false information relating to the content of this Estimate and Certificate
of Actual Cost will subject the submitter to any and all administrative remedies available to USDA. Such remedies may include suspension and debar ment from
participating in any Rural Development or other Federal program.

Form RD 1924-13 (Rev. 12-98)
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Page 4

ITEMIZED BREAKDOWN - ESTIMATED COSTS

CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
(Job Overhead)

CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL OVERHEAD

OTHER FEES - PAID BY CONTRACTOR

ITEM TOTAL ITEM TOTAL ITEM TOTAL
Office  Expense ¢ 6,793.49 Salaries & PR Taxes ¢ _ 15,096.64 $
Insurance ¢ 3,011.78 $ $
Phone/Temp _Facilities $_ 2,264.50 $
Supervision ¢ 22,644.96 $
Travel/Per Diem $ 6,793.49 $
Other s 3,781.70 $

$ $
$ $
$
$
$
TOTAL (Line 39) $ 45289.92 TOTAL (Line 40) $ 15,096.64 TOTAL (Line 41) $ 0.00
ITEMIZED BREAKDOWN - ACTUAL COST
CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL REQUIREMENTS CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL OVERHEAD OTHER FEEDS - PAID BY CONTRACTOR
(Job Overhead)
ITEM TOTAL ITEM TOTAL ITEM TOTAL
$ $ $
$ $ -
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$
$
$
TOTAL (Line 39) $ TOTAL (Line 40) $ TOTAL (Line 41) $

Form RD 1924-13 (Rev. 12-98)
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Page 5

The undersigned hereby certifies that: (check as appropriate)

There has not been and is not now any identity of interest between or among the borrower and/or general contractor on the one hand and any subcontractor, material supplier,
equipment lessor, or payee on the other (including any of their members, officers, directors, beneficiaries, or partners).

Attached to and made part of this certificate is a signed statement fully describing any rebates, adjustments, discounts, or any other devices which may have or have had the effect
of reducing cost, and all amounts shown above as "to be paid in cash" will be so paid within forty-five (45) days.

ESTIMATES:
Date 02-28-2017 Dete
Lines | through 44 (Nane of Contractor) Li nes 44 through 58 (Nane of Mdrtgagor)
By: By:
(Sgnature) (Sgnature)
Title: Title:
ACTUAL
Date Date
Lines | through 44 (Nane of Contractor) Li nes 44 through 58 (Nane of Mdrtgagor)
By: By:
(Sgnature) (Sgnature)
Title: Title:

Form RD 1924-13 (Rev. 12-98)
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PRELIMINARY NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, RECORDING PURPOSES OR IMPLEMENTA

CHESTER APARTMENTS RENOVATION

Chester,

EMENTATID

PROJECT INFORMATION

SITE DATA
SITE ZONING:|EXISTING TO REMAIN
SITE SIZE:|EXISTING TO REMAIN
SITE DENSITY:|EXISTING TO REMAIN
NO. OF PARKING |(34) TYPICAL + (2) ACC. + (1) VAN ACC.= (37) TOTAL
SPACES:
BUILDING DATA
RENTAL UNITS|BLDG. A = (3) TYP. 1-BR UNITS, (1) AUDIO/VISUAL 1-BR UNIT;

BY BUILDING:

BLDG. B = (6) TYP. 2-BR-TH UNITS;
BLDG. C = (3) TYP. 1-BR UNITS, (1) UFAS 1-BR UNIT;
BLDG. D = (&) TYP. 2-BR-TH UNITS;
BLDG. E = (3) TYP. 1-BR UNITS, (1) UFAS 1-BR UNIT

C

RPOSES OR I

RENTAL UNITS
BY TYPE:

(10) TYP. -BR UNITS;

(1) UFAS 1-BR UNIT;

(1) AUDIOVISUAL 1-BR UNIT;
(12) TYP. 2-BR-TH UNITS

TOTAL RENTAL
UNITS:

(24) TOTAL UNITS

NO. & MIX OF
UNITS:

(12) 1-BR UNITS;
(12) 2-BR UNITS;

DWELLING UNIT
AREA:

(10) TYP.1-BR UNITS @ 674 SF = 6,740 SF;

(1) UFAS 1-BR UNIT @ 674 SF = 674 SF;

(1) AUDIOVISUAL 1-BR UNIT @ 674 SF = 674 SF;
(12) TYP. 2-BR-TH UNITS @ 910 SF = 10,920 SF;
19,008 TOTAL SF DWELLING AREA

NON-DWELLING
UNIT AREA:

4850 SF (OFFICE/LAUNDRY/MAINT. BUILDING)

TOTAL BUILDING
AREA:

19,4866 SF (GROSS)

, RECORDING PU

TOTAL ACTUAL
AREA:

BLDG. A = 2,696 SF;
BLDG. B = 5,460 SF;
BLDG. C = 2,696 SF;
BLDG. D = 5,460 SF;
BLDG. E = 2,696 SF;
OLM BLDG. = 460 SF

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A

1 PRELIMINARY NOT FOR' CONSTRUCTION, RECORDING PURPOSES OR IMPLEMENTATIO

0.0
AS1.0
A1.O
Al
Al2
A3.0

COVER SHEET

INDEX TO DRAWINGS

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

BUILDING PLANS

TYP. 1-BR, UFAS 1-BR, CONVERTED UFAS 1-BR DEMO & RENO PLANS, & BLDG. KEY
2-BR TH & OLM DEMO & RENO PLANS

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

MATERIAL SQ. FT. DISCLAIMER:

SQUARE FOOTAGE CALCULATION OF FINISH MATERIALS ARE BASED ON EXISTING LATOUTS & INFORMATION
IN PART AS PROVIDED BY OTHERS. THESE NUMBERS ARE NOT TO BE UTILIZED FOR BIDDING PURPOSES.
WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE THE ARCHITECT ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE ACCURACY. CONTRACTORS SHALL PERFORM INDEPENDENT FIELD VERIFICATION FOR SITUATIONAL
DEPENDANT ACCURACT.

Georgia

ARCHITECT'S JOB NO. 3425

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

SITE: creser 631012

SIGNATURE AREAS

NOTE: PROJECT CONSTRUCTION MUST BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES, ORDINANCES, LAWS, AND REGULATIONS AS
ENUMERATED ELSEWHERE IN THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS..

ARCHITECT: WALLACE ARCHITECTS, L.L.C.
302 CAMPUSVIEW DRIVE SUITE 208, COLUMBIA, MO 65201

PURPOSES OR IMPLEMENTATID

'NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, RECORDING

—PRELIMI

BY: DATE:
OWNER:
BY: DATE:
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BY: DATE:
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PRELIMINARY NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, RECORDING PURPOSES OR IMPLEMENTATIO

NOTE:
CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND MEASUREMENTS.

LEGEND

AREAS OF NEW CONCRETE
SIDEWALK / SURFACE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

_——— ACCESSIBLE ROUTE
(2% CROSS SLOPE MAX, 5%
RUNNING SLOPE MAX,

REPLACE AS REQUIRED.)
@ EXISTING MANHOLE

D

DO L EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT
N0

—100— " EXISTING CONTOUR & ELEV.
— — CENTERLINE DRAINAGE

NOTE: INSTALL NEW HANDRAILS AS NOTED AND ON
ACCESSIBLE ROUTES EXCEDDING 5% BUT LESS THAN £.33%
SLOPE. 5'-0O" LANDING REQUIRED AT TOP AND BOTTOM OF
RAMPS.

PLEMENTATID

NOTE: APARTMENT NUMBERS ARE TO BE FIELD VERIFIED BY
GENERAL CONTRACTOR. ARCHITECT TO BE NOTIFIED OF ANY
DISCREPANCY PRIOR TO FINAL PRODUCTION / INSTALLATION

ACCESSIBILITY NOTES

l. SIDEWALK SHALL NOT EXCEED 5% (I'-O" IN 20'-0O") SLOPE
WITH A 2% (I'-O"IN 50'-0") CROSS-SLOPE AND SHALL BE 4
WIDE EXCEPT AS NOTED ON SITE PLAN. PROVIDE STAIRS,

RAMPS, CURBS, ETC., AS NOTED AND DETAILED.

// SITE NEW SIDEWALK. TO ®
[ENTRANCE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

I ]

| R e ey P TN dy
R R I N P

;«} O

e e - .I_LI __{ .-».: = —

T

I/ 24i25 | 2 2||
|

C

2. PARKING AREAS AND ACCESSIBLE SPACES AND ACCESS
AISLES SHALL NOT EXCEED A 2% (I'-O" IN 50'-0") SLOPE IN
ANY DIRECTION. OTHER PORTIONS OF THE ACCESSIBLE
ROUTE SHALL NOT EXCEED A 5% (I'-O" IN 20'-0")
LONGITUDINAL SLOPE NOR A 2% (I'-O" IN 50'-0")
CROSS-SLOPE.

POLLUTION / EROSION
CONTROL NOTES:

DUST ON SITE SHALL BE CONTROLLED. THE USE OF MOTOR
OILS AND OTHER PETROLEUM BASED OR TOXIC LIQUIDS FOR
DUST SUPPRESSION OPERATIONS IS PROHIBITED. .

2. SUFFICIENT OIL AND GREASE ABSORBING MATERIALS AND
FLOATATION BOOMS SHALL BE MAINTAINED ON SITE OR
READILY AVAILABLE TO CONTAIN AND CLEAN-UP FUEL OR
CHEMICAL SPILLS AND LEAKS.

3. ACTIVE UNDERGROUND PIPES, CONDUITS, OR OTHER UTILITIES
OF ANY TYPE, WHETHER INDICATED ON THE DOCUMENTS OR
NOT, MUST BE PROTECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR DURING THE
COURSE OF THE WORK AND REMAIN ACTIVE, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING ON-SITE -
STORMWATER INLET STRUCTURES AND SINWALES A
THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE WITH TEMPORARY
STORMWATER SEDIMENT COLLECTION BAGS ON ALL INLET
SIDES OR SEDIMENT BARRICADE AT PROPERTY LINE WHERE
SWALES CONNECT TO EXISTING CITY DRAINAGE. STORM
WATER PROTECTION SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE AND BE
MONITORED TO MAINTAIN QUALITY OF PROTECTION
MEASURES THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE.

5. ALL MATERIALS SPILLED, DROPPED, WASHED, OR TRACKED
FROM VERICLES ONTO ROADWAYS OR INTO STORM DRAINS
MUST BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY. CONTRACTORS OR
SUBCONTRACTORS WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING
SEDIMENT THAT MAY HAVE COLLECTED IN ANY STORM
SEWER DRAINAGE SYSTEM IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
STABILIZATION OF THE SITE.

6. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE STABILIZED AT THE END OF
EACH WORKING DAY. THIS INCLUDES BACKFILLING OF
TRENCHES FOR UTILITY CONSTRUCTION AND PLACEMENT OF
ERAVEL OF BITUMINOUS PAVING FOR ROADS.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT BEST MANAGEMENT
PRACTICES AND SHALL CONFORM TO THE FEDERAL, STATE
AND LOCAL REQUIREMENTS AND MANUALS OF PRACTICE.
AS APPLICABLE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT
ADDITIONAL CONTROLS AS DIRECTED BY PERMITTING
AGENCY OR OWNER

5. CONFLICTING AND / OR UNFORESEEN FIELD CONDITIONS
SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR - WHO SHALL NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT
IMMEDIATELY FOR RESOLUTION PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.
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" TO REMAIN

SITE UTILITY NOTES

1) ALL EXISTING SITE UTILITIES ARE PRESUMED TO BE FUNCTIONING
PROPERLY AND ARE FREE OF LEAKS, BLOCKAGES, DEBRIS, ETC.
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XX XXX XXXX

REVISIONS

2) ALL EXISTING UNITS AND/OR BUILDINGS ARE PRESUMED TO HAVE
PROPERLY SEALED, CONNECTED, AND WORKING VALVES, SHUT-OFFS,
MANIFOLDS, ETC.

PRELIMINARY

3) THE EXISTING WATER PRESSURE 1S PRESUMED TO BE AT AN ACCEPTABLE
< LEVEL AND/OR PRESSURE REDUCING VALVES (PRV'S) HAVE BEEN
PREVIOUSLY INSTALLED WHERE NECESSARY. THESE ITEMS WILL BE
INSPECTED DURING THE COURSE OF THE REHAB AND ANY NECESSARY A L T e .
REPAIRS, REPLACEMENTS, AND/OR ADDITIONS WILL BE COMPLETED AND ' . — . —_— 5
REFLECTED ON A CHANGE ORDER.

4) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICES AND/OR PRESSURE REDUCING VALVES
ARE PRESUMED TO BE EXISTING, FUNCTIONING PROPERLY, AND ARE NOT

INCLUDED IN THIS SCOPE OF WORK. ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

5) SANITARY SEWER MAINS AND LATERALS ARE PRESUMED TO BE FREE OF
OBSTRUCTIONS AND CURRENTLY FUNCTIONING PROPERLY. ANY SCALE: I" = 30'-0"
DISCOVERED ISSUES SHALL BE INSPECTED AND REQUIRED MEASURES WILL
BE PERFORMED TO RESTORE PROFPER DRAINAGE AND WILL BE REFLECTED
ON A CHANGE ORDER.
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) INTERIOR CASING TRIM TO BE REPLACED @ ALL L)
REPLACED DOORS. >
2) WOOD BASE TO BE INCLUDED AT ALL NEW AND/OR
RELOCATED DOORS WALLS. n'-.
3)  EXISTING BATHROOM VENT COVERS ARE TO BE
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» o E - EXHIBIT “a" P

v
;/

All that tract oxr parcel of land, lying and being in Land Lot 52 of the 19th

District; Dodge County, Georgia, -in the City of-Chester, being 2.85 acres

as shown and delineated on a plat entitled "Plat of Survey for Xebec;
Incorporated" dated 12/12/84, prepared by Marvin D. Clements, recorded in’

Plat Book o, page .2¢ , in the Office of the Clerk of Superlor Court of

‘Dodge County, Georgia, which plat and the record thereof are each by

reference incorporated herein. Said property is more particularly described

-as: BEGINNING. at a corner located on the southeastern right of way of Wynne

Street, which point is 626.03 feet southwesterly along said right of way

from its intersection with the southwestern right of way of Tower Street;

frem ~ thence south 36 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds east 422.88 feet to a

corner; thence south 43 degrees 46 minutes 09 seconds west 279.26 feet to .

a corner; thence north 36 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds west 143.20 feet to

a corner; thence gouth 53 degrees 44 minutes 39 seconds west 40 feet to a

- corner; thence north 36 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds west 50 feet to a corner;

" thence north 53 degrees 44 minutes 39 seconds east 40 feet to a corner;

. thence north 36 degrees 15 minutes 21 seconds west 293.10 feet to a corner

- located on the southeastern right of way of Wynne Street; thence along said
right of way north 53 degrees 32 minutes 46 seconds east 175 feet to a corner;

thence continuing along said right of way to thé point of beginning, the choxd

of which is north 62 degrees 38 minutes 21 seconds east 101.26 feet. . -
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EXHIBIT "B"

(1) 1984 taxes have been paid.

There is a sanitary sewer easement across subject property from Dodge County
to the City of Chester dated Januwary 2, 1980, recorded in Deed Book 163,
page 631, Dodge County Public Real Estate Records.

(2)
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EXHIBIT "C"

The property described herein was obtained or improved through Federal financial
assistance. This property is subject to the provisions of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the regulations issued
pursuant thereto for so long as the property continues to be used for the saume
or similar purpose for which financial assistance was extended or for so 1ong

as the purchaser owns it, whichever is longer.

This instrument alsc secures the obligations and covenants of Borrower set forth
in Borrower's Loan Agreement of December 3,198iwhich is hereby incorporated

herein by reference.

The borrower and any successors in interest agree to use the housing for the
purpose of housing people eligible for occupancy as provided in section 515 of
Title V of the Housing Act of 1949 and FmHA regulations then extant during this
uéﬁ/twenty year period beginning qﬁuuﬁy‘qliﬂ/ No person occupying the houszing
shall be required to vacate prior to the close of such twenty year period because
Tjﬁt~_ of each repayment. The borrower understands that should an unsubsidized project
be converted to subsidized within 15 years from the date the last loan on the
project is closed, that the period will be increased by 5 years. The borrower
will be released during such period from these obligations only when the
Government determines that there is no longer a need for such housing or that
Federal or other financial assistance provided to the residents of such housing
will no longexr be provided. A tenant may seek enforcement of this provision as

well as the Government.
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SURVEY

A survey is not currently available. A site plan has been included in the addendum. Due to the size of this
portfolio transaction, and as surveys expire prior to closing, the ALTA Survey will be completed, submitted
to the Agency, and approved closer to closing.
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7;” Crown Appraisal Group

{orporate Office
6797 N. High Street
Suite 325
Columbus, OH 43085
tel 614.431.3332
fox 614.431.3376
www.crownappraisal.com

October 19, 2016

Caitlin Waldie

Development Coordinator

Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC
4025 Lake Boone Trail, Suite 209

Raleigh, NC 27607-2986

RE: Georgia Portfolio
Dear Amie:

Thank you for considering Crown Appraisal Group (“Crown”) for the appraisal of the referenced
property portfolio (“portfolio”). The following details my understanding of your needs and
presents our proposal.

Assignment

Crown Appraisal Group will prepare and deliver (scope of analysis as noted in Attachment 7-D
to HB-1-3560) individual appraisal reports that provide the specific and separate value types as
required. The reports will certify a number of entities — the lender, housing agency, USDA/RD,
and the LIHTC syndicator — may rely upon our findings. The reports will also be prepared in
compliance with USPAP standards and requirements.

As part of the assignment, we will identify the CRCU (Competitive Rents for Comparable Units)
on the Executive Summary page for ease of location. The reports will be prepared in a manner
similar to previous work product prepared by Crown for Greystone on other assignments.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Caitlin Waldie. Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC
October 19, 2016
Page 2

Values that will be developed and reported (not all values will be developed and reported) are
identified are below.

Value USDA/RD V Comments
1 Market within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(ii) (all properties) As is market value

2 Market value within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b){1)(ii), premised upon a Prospective market value using market rents at stabilized occupancy
hypothetical condition as-if unsubsidized conventional housing in
compliance with 7 CFR Part 3560.656(c)(1)(i) (if applicable)

3 Prospective market value within 7 CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(ii), Prospective market value at stabilized occupancy, as by the restricted rents
premised upon a hypothetical condition as-if-conventional housing (combined with the market rents, if mixed), incorporating a market cap rate

4 Prospective market value, subject to restricted rents within 7 Prospective market value at stabilized oceupancy, as by the restricted rents
CFR Part 3560.752(b)(1)(i) (combined with the market rents, if mixed), assuming existing (or proposed)

bond financing, and incorporating below-market capitalization rate (band of
investment method). (If applicable)

! 5 Market value of underlying land (if applicable) As is land only value 1

6  Market value of the interest credit subsidy from assumed 514/515 loan
(with new terms)

7 Market value of the tax credits (if applicable)

8  Prospective insurable value

The reports will be addressed and delivered to you at the address noted above. You will be the
initial contact for getting information about the properties. You can be reached at the above
address, and at 919.882.2384 (0), 919.902.0938 (¢), or caitlin.waldie @ greyco.com.

Timing and Fee

We anticipate that the first report(s) will be delivered within three weeks of receipt of the
requested information (we recognize that not all requested information will be available). We
anticipate that all reports will be sent within 60 days. Should any revisions be required, these
will be made as expediently as possible. Subsequent draft reports will be delivered as
completed. The final report can be delivered within five business days of approval of the draft

copy.

The fee for the multi-property assignment is $166,050.00. This assumes electronic (PDF) reports,
not hard copies. If hard copies are needed, an additional fee of $400 per report per property will
be billed. The property listing at the end of letter breaks down the fee on a property by property
basis. The fee is on a gross basis, with all expenses incurred by Crown. Invoices will be
delivered concurrent with delivery of the individual draft reports. Payment of the fee is as
follows: 10% as an initial deposit and 90% upon delivery of the initial draft reports. As in prior
assignments, Crown recognizes that report revisions might be required, and Crown will make
those revisions. Of course, should “updates” due to the age of the reports be required, additional
compensation arrangements will be made.

Should the assignment be cancelled during any phase, the fee will be pro-rated based upon the
time and cost incurred.

As part of the terms and conditions of the assignment, the signatory and any users agree that
Crown’s services are and will be subject to the standard statements, limiting conditions, and
other terms set forth in the appraisal report(s). The standard statements and limiting conditions
include, but are not limited to, recognition of financial liability limitations as well as limitations

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Caitlin Waldie, Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC
October 19, 2016
Page 3

as to parties that may rely upon the appraisal report. It is also recognized and acknowledged that
during the course of the assignment, Crown may determine additional conditions and terms
affecting the appraisal assignment which may by identified in the appraisal report(s). A copy of
the standard statements and limiting conditions are at the end of this engagement proposal.

Crown Appraisal Group adds 1.0% per month for delinquent accounts and charges an additional administrative fee of
$500.00 for accounts that are more than three months delinquent. All costs, including legal fees incurred in the
recovery of accounts that are delinquent, are also payable by the client. The terms of the agreement shall be
governed by and construed under the laws of the state of Ohio.

Authorization to Proceed

This proposal can serve as our agreement and understanding of the assignment. The signature at
the bottom of this letter and receipt of the 10% initial deposit serves as our authorization to
proceed. After signing, please return one copy to me. You may mail the copy, email it to me
(amoye(@crownappraisal.com, or edegood@crownappraisal.com). By signing, the signatory is
acknowledging that they have the authority to authorize engagement of our services.

Again, thank you for selecting Crown Appraisal Group for this assignment. If you have any
questions, please do not hesitate to call me at 614-431-3332,

Sincerely,

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP

+
L

Andrew J. Moye, MAI, AI-GRS
Principal

AJM/ed

AGREED TO AND AUTHORIZED BY:

Dingy é&”&uuﬂ‘ Pis it 10[25 ||«

Signature, Caltlin Waldie Date

(ROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Caitlin Waldie, Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC
October 19, 2016

Poge 4
Property Identification
GA Portfolio
Fee before
Name Address City County Units Discount Discount Net Fee
1 Academy Village 203 Hillsboro Street Monticello Jasper 10 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
2 Arrowhead 369 Broad Street Hawkinsville Pulaski 51 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
3 Chester 400 Wynne Avenue Chester Dodge 24 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
4 Chickasaw 18158 Morgan Road NE Arlington Calhoun 18 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
5  Colonial Homes 319 Keller Street Blackshear Pierce 20 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
6  Country Manor 310 Pomeroy Street Blackshear Pierce 55 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
7  Cumberland Village 116 Martha Drive St Marys Camden 65 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
8  Gray Gardens 200 Eatonton Highway Gray Jones 55 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
9  Heritage Villas of Alma 234 Floyd Street Alma Bacon 24 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
10 Hilltop Terrace I 4059 Martin Luther King Jr Blvd Kingsland Camden 55 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
11 Hilltop Terrace II 4059 Martin Luther King Ir Blvd Kingsland Camden 55 $3,800.00 10.0% $3,420.00
12 Hunters Run 701 Lupo Lane Douglas Coffee 51 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
13 Meadow Crossing 408 Spinks Drive Omega Tift 37 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
14 Piedmont Hills 1001 West Main Street Forsyth Monroe 50 $6 100.00 10.0% $5,450.00
15 [Plantation L Plantation 0, Plantation Il 201 Cascy Drive _ Richmond Hill Bryan 165 $10,000.00 10.0% $9,000.00]
16 Quail Hollow I 888 Carswell Street Homerville Clinch 55 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
17 Quail Hollow I 962 Carswell Street Homerville Clinch 41 $3,800.00 10.0% $3,420.00
18 Quail Village 199 Memorial Drive Reidsville Tattnall 30 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
19 Sandalwood Terrace 23 Fourth Street Northwest Ludowici Long 31 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
20 Satilla Villas 1100 Mcdonald Avenue Woodbine Camden 59 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
21 Sawgrass Cove 534 Mcintosh Road Darien Mclntosh 51 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
22 §pring Hollow 800 Ash Street Extension Springiield  Effincham 53 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
23 |The Forest I & The Forest I1 582 26th Avenue SE Moultrie Colyuitt 119 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00]
24 The Forest III 2701 5th Street SE Moultrie Colquitt 53 $3,600.00 10.0% $3,240.00
25 The Grove 303 Jerriel Street Vidalia Toombs 55 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
26 Wildwood Villas 1 50 Wildwood Circle Statesboro Bulloch 53 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
27 Wildwood Villas II 54 Wildwood Circle Statesboro Bulloch 58 $3,800.00 10.0% $3,420.00
28 Yester Oaks 51 Yester Oaks Drive Lafayette Walker 44 $7,000.00 10.0% $6,300.00
29 Charlton Court 38 Charlton Court Folkston Charlton 41 $6,100.00 10.0% $5,490.00
30 Hillerest 1503 John Collins Road NE Pelham Mitchell 49 $6,100.00 10.0% $5.,490.00
31 Hillmont 7069 Lakes Boulevard Lake Park Lowndes 43 $6,100.00 10.0% $5.490.00
Plantation L II, I will be consolidated and presented in a single report - individual market values, consolidated prospective values
The Forest T and II will be consolidated and presented in a single report - individual market values, consolidated prospective values
Total $184,500.00 $166,050.00
CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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INITIAL DATA REQUEST

(for each Property)

This list details the items we will need to commence the appraisal report:

0O Property contact name and telephone number.
0 Current rent roll.
0 Current rental subsidy contract
O Property Operating Statements for 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 ytd.
Q Completed market studies (it is Crown’s understanding that there are no current market studies)
O Details regarding expected tax credits
0 Details regarding expected financing (dollar amount, term, interest rate)
Q Unit Floor Plans
0 Detail re: improvements
> Units - sizes (square feet and bedrooms), current rental rates, proposed rental rates etc.
» Amenities—pool, exercise facilities, club house, etc.
Q Site plan.
0 Legal description and survey.
O Most recent real estate tax bills for the parcels that comprise the subject site.
Q Details regarding the capital expenditures (dollar amount, scope of renovations) that are planned to be
completed to the property.
Thank you,

Crown Appraisal Group

6797 N. High Street, Suite 325
Columbus, OH 43085

Phone: 614-431-3332

Fax:

614-431-3376

(ROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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Financial Acknowledgement

The liability of Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. and its employees is limited to the fee collected for the
preparation of the appraisal report. There is no accountability or liability to anyone not specifically identified
as an intended user.

Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

e The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable. No warranty is given for its accuracy,
though.

e No responsibility is assumed for the legal description or for matters including legal or title considerations.
Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless otherwise stated.

e The property is appraised free and clear of any or all liens or encumbrances unless otherwise stated in the
report.

e It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local environmental
regulations, laws, and license requirements unless otherwise stated in the report.

e The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements applies only
under the stated program of utilization. The separate valuations for land and improvements must not be
used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used.

e The value opinions, and the costs used, are as of the date of the value opinion.

e All engineering is assumed to be correct. The plot plans and other illustrative material in this report are
included only to assist the reader in visualizing the property.

e The proposed improvements, if any, on or off-site, as well as any repairs required, are considered, for
purposes of the appraisal, to be completed in a good and workmanlike manner according to information
submitted and/or considered by the appraiser.

* Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed.

e [tis assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or structures that
make it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or for arranging for
engineering or environmental studies that may be required to discover them.

e Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous material, which may or may not be
present on or in the property, was not observed by the appraiser. The appraiser has no knowledge of the
existence of such materials on or in the property. The appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect such
substances. The presence of such substances may affect the value of the property. The value opinion is
predicated on the assumption that there is no such material on or in the property that would cause a loss
in value. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any expertise or engineering
knowledge required to discover them. The client is urged to retain an expert in this field, if desired.

e It is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements is within the boundaries or property lines
of the property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in the report.

e All mechanical components are assumed to be in good, operable condition unless otherwise noted.

(ROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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e The appraiser is not required to give further consultation, testimony, or be in attendance in court with
reference to the property in question unless arrangements have been previously made.

¢ Our opinion of value does not consider the effect (if any) of possible noncompliance with the
requirements of the ADA.

¢ This appraisal is to be used only in its entirety. Possession of the report or any copy does not carry
with it the right of publication. The report may not be used for any purpose by any person or
corporation other than the client or the party to whom it is addressed or copied without the written
consent of the signing appraiser(s).

e Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. and its employees accept no responsibility for changes in market
conditions or the inability of the client, intended user, or any other party to achieve desired outcomes.

¢ Projections or estimates of desired outcomes by the client, intended user, or any other party may be
affected by future events. The client, intended user, or any other party using this report acknowledges
and accepts that Crown Appraisal Group, Inc. and its employees have no liability arising from these
events.

¢ Unless specifically set forth, nothing contained herein shall be construed to represent any direct or indirect
recommendation of Crown Appraisal Group, Inc., its officers or employees to purchase, sell, or retain the
property at the value(s) stated.

®  Unless specifically set forth, nothing contained herein shall be construed to represent any direct or indirect
recommendation of Crown Appraisal Group, Inc., its officers or employees to provide financing (mortgage,
equity, or other) for the property at the value(s) stated.

®  Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC, or its representative(s), agrees to indemnify and hold Crown
Appraisal Group, Inc,, its officers and employees, harmless from and against any loss, damages, claims, and
expenses (including costs and reasonable attorney fees) sustained as a result of negligence or intentional acts
or omissions by Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC, or its representative(s) arising from or in any
way connected with the use of or purported reliance upon, the appraisal report or any part of the appraisal
report.

e The contents of the appraisal report, and all attachments and information that will be contained within the
report, is proprietary and confidential. Greystone Affordable Housing Initiatives, LLC, or its
representative(s) will not release or provide the report, in any form, in whole or in part, to any third party,
including any borrower, potential borrower, buyer or potential buyer, without the signing appraiser’s
express written authorization.

ACCEPTANCE OF, AND/OR USE OF, THIS APPRAISAL REPORT CONSTITUTES
ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABOVE CONDITIONS.

CROWN APPRAISAL GROUP
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PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
ANDREW J. MOYE, MAI, Al-GRS

Business Experience

Crown Appraisal Group, Columbus, Ohio.

Principal

Real estate consulting, including appraisal, appraisal review, business valuation, and market
study assignments for commercial and residential real estate.

Vista Capital/Chemical Mortgage Company, Columbus, Ohio.
Vice President.
Appraisal assignments and market studies of commercial real property.

Landauer Associates, Inc., West Palm Beach, Florida.

Assistant Vice President.

Valuation and evaluation of real property, and development of land use studies for large
commercial and residential PUDs.

Education
Masters of Business Administration (Finance), The Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio.

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration (Real Estate), The Ohio State University,
Columbus, Ohio.

Professional Education (partial list)

Basic Valuation Procedures Residential Valuation
Capitalization Theory, Part 1 Standards of Professional Practice
Capitalization Theory, Part 2 Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation
Capitalization Theory and Techniques, Part B Valuation Analysis and Report Writing
Advanced Applications Advanced Sales Comparison & Cost Approaches
Basic Income Capitalization Litigation Appraising: Specialized Topics and Applications
Advanced Income Capitalization General Appraiser Market Analysis and Highest & Best Use
The Appraiser as Expert Witness: Preparation and Expert Testimony Market Analysis
Review Theory — General Condemnation Appraising: Principles and Applications

Professional Qualifications, testimony venues

MAI designation offered by Appraisal Institute

AI-GRS designation offered by Appraisal Institute

Young Advisory Council attendee, moderator, Appraisal Institute

Certified General Appraiser (permanent certification): AL, AZ, CO, FL, GA, IL, IN, KY, MI,
NC, NY, OH, SC, VA, WV

Expert witness in Federal Bankruptcy Court, Common Pleas Courts throughout Ohio, various
Boards of Revision, State Board of Tax Appeal
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STATE OF GEORGIA
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS BOARD

ANDREW JOHN MOYE

5464

IS AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF GEORGIA IN THE CAPACITY AS

CERTIFIED GENERAL REAL PROPERTY
APPRAISER

THE PRIVILEGE AND RESPONSIBILITIES HEREWITH ARE CONTINGENT UPON THE REQUISITE FEES AND
ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF THE OFFICIAL CODE OF GEORGIA ANNOTATED, CHAPTER 43-39A. THE
APPRAISER IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF ALL FEES ON A TIMELY BASIS.

D. SCOTT MURPHY RONALD M. HECKMAN
Chairperson JEANMARIE HOLMES
KEITH STONE

JEFF A. LAWSON

Vice Chairperson 46535506
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